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Letter to Shareholders

Dear Fellow Shareholders,

Changes in technology and consumer behavior have always had a meaningful impact on our industry.
This was true in the 1970's when John was pioneering the cable industry and more so today due to
the ever accelerating pace of technological change. Today's always-connected, mebile, digital and
cloud-based world has a compressed technology roll-out cycle, Formerly stable sectors can transform
rapidly, leaving management teams with little time to adjust strategy of reallocate resources. Liberty
seas the TMT world in three segments:

1) Clear winners: companies we would love to own, but which are likely
at prohibitively high valuations;

2} Clear losers: companies to avoid or monetize before the underlying trend
becomes obvious; and

3) Ambiguous middle: this is where the greatest opportunities are likely to lie,
A combination of competence, conviction and patience, where Liberty's house
view differs from the market, can allow for highly successful investments.

The market often shoots first and asks questions later. Temporary bouts of market hysterla are common
in our industry; sometimes the concerns are unfounded and the business in question is fundamentally
sound. Aswe have done in the past, we will continue to invest based on our long-term vision for how
the industry is most likely to evalve, not the proverbial flavor of the week. While our industry may be too
dynamic to adhere to Berkshire Hathaway's forever holding period, we believe we will be able to find
investments where the holding period can be leng, technological change notwithstanding. Due to
increasing consumption trends, we remain excited about the media industry, and the music industry in
particular, as we will discuss in more detail below. Mest importantly, we are grateful for your continued

trust inus.

As it relates to the year that was at Liberty Media, we:

« Increased our percentage ownership in SiriuskM;

+ Announced and closed the tax-efficient spin-off of Liberty Broadband Corporation,
which holds cur former Charter investment;

+ Increased our ownership in Live Nation;

+ Issued non-voting Series C shares, representing a useful future acquisition currency;

+ Monetized the remainder of our investment in Barnes & Moble; and

+ Increased the share repurchase authorization by $300 million in conjunction with
the distribution of a like amount from Liberty Broadband.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014



.

What is Liberty Media?

Given the many changes at Liberty Media over the past few years, this s a question that deserves to be
reexamined. Following the completion of the Liberty Broadband spin-off, the assets of Liberty Media are
now almost entirely related to the music industry, although SirlusXM has a wide breadth of non-music
radio programming as well. As of this writing, SiriuskM and LiveNation represent over $0% of Liberty

Media's enterprise value.

While a number of secular trends have heavily impacted both the recorded and live music industries, we
believe our two largest investments continue to be well positioned. As will be discussed in more detail
below, SiriusXM’s exclusive content and OEM relationships and Live Nation's global, technology-driven
eco-system, should provide sustainable competitive advantages.

Changes in the structure of the music industry are likely to continue. The way music is owned and
monetized is in a state of continuous evolution. We believe this creates a fertile hunting ground for
Liberty Media. While an "anything is possible” caveat should always accompany a discussion of Liberty
strategy, we believe the music industry will be an area of focus for new investments for the foreseeable

future. Stay tuned.
We see two significant exceptions to our music-focused investment policy: SiriusXM is investing in the

connected car, which we view as a highly attractive market adjacency, and we are investing with the

Atlanta Braves in and around their new stadium in Cobb County.
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Liberty Broadband Spin-off

We completed the spin-off of Liberty Broadband, which holds our former Charter Communications
investment,in November of 2014, Through the date of the spin-off, our initial investment in Charter
appreciated by over 55%; a good outcome in about 18 months. We will reserve a detailed discussion of
Charter for the Liberty Broadband shareholder letter, but we remain excited about its prospects.

As we have discussed in the past, the rationzle for the spin-off was to:

1) simplify the investment profile of Liberty Media and narrow the discount to NAV
(mission, as of yet, not accomplished);

2} Create a pure-play financing currency focused on the US cable industry, as there may
be further consolidation in the cable industry, and permit Liberty Broadband to raise
capital, including through its completed rights offering, on more attractive terms; and

3} Increase the likelihood that a potential agreement could be reached with respect toa
combination of Liberty and SiriusXM.

As part of the Liberty Broadband spin-off, we distributed $300 million in cash from Liberty Broadband

to Liberty Media. The cash was funded through a new margin loan at Liberty Broadband. We are required
1o use the funds to repurchase Liberty Media shares within twelve months of the spin-off.
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SiriusXM

As we have stated in the past, the historically low discount to NAV for Liberty Media stock factored heavily
on the timing of cur January 2014 bid for SiriusXM. Despite the spin-off of Liberty Broadband in November
2014, the discount of Liberty Media stock to underlying NAV has risen since then. While we tend to ignore

short-term market fluctuations, we did expect compression in that discount following the Liberty Broadband
spin-off. We will continue to assess the best strategy for us 1o pursue with respect to SirluskM.

SiriusXM is a great example of a business where the market has, at times, overreacted to technolegical
change. The company has posted impressive subscriber growth over the past few years, despite the
proliferation of various low-cost or ad-supported music-streaming services. SirfusXM has accomplished
this,in large part, by offering a wide breadth of exclusive, high-value content. Qur streaming “competitors”
are often simply repackaging highly commaditized music and many questions remain as to the business
model of these music-only streaming services. There will be more competition in the car going forward,
but the strong value proposition of SiriusXM is based on ease of use, unique content, and a technological
beachhead created by an installed device in over 70 million cars.

The state of SirusXM Is strong, led by Jim Meyer and his highly talented management team. The company
has a large and growing user base and among the best marginal unit economics in all of the media industry.
Its exclusive portfolio of content clearly resonates with consumers. Its OEM relationships have never been
stronger. The deliberate nature of new car technology development provides several years of visibility.
SirfusXM Connected Vehicle Services, which provides enhanced safety, security and convenience features
within automobiles, positions the company to be a leader in the evolution of the car as a technology
platform. And, the company continues to preduce sizeable amounts of free cash flow. Owver the course of

the year, it was able to repurchase 2.5 billion of its own shares at very attractive valuations. Long-term
shareholders are better off as a result.

The next few years should be exciting for SiriusXM. In particular, the used-car market remains a large
source of opportunity. SirlusXM has done a great job of building out a used-car network which now
exceeds 15,000 dealers. For perspective, roughly 16 million new vehicles are sold each year, while nearly
40 million used vehicles change hands annually. It took many years for SiriusXM to build up a meaningful
installed base but a sizeable percentage of the used vehicles sold each year now include a SiriusXM radio.
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And the number of satellite enabled vehicles is expected to roughly double from the current 70 million by
2022, Premium TV networks such as Starz have achieved a collective household subscriber penetration of
arcund 30%. Could “premium radic”achieve a similar subscriber penetration of North American vehicles?
Only time will tell, but it seems clear that there is significant runway from SiriusXM's current penetration

of a little north of 10%.

Live Nation Entertainment

Live Nation s a business with the wind at its back. The past decade has seen the unbundling of the album
and the growth of streaming services which do not reward performers. As a result, artists are more reliant
than ever on income generated through live performances. In addition, the global nature of technelogy
platforms like YouTube, Facebook and Yahoo {with which Live Nation has a joint concert streaming service)
allows fans around the world to follow and discover artists. This has massively broadened the geographic
scope of live tours, Bands that formerly toured only North America and Western Europe are now seeing
high demand on six continents. Live Mation's unique ability to offer the one-stop-shop fer global tours
provides a distinct advantage in securing top acts.

Live Mation is the unambiguous category leader in live music. In 2014, the company promoted 22 of
the top 25 global tours and the gross transaction value of primary tickets sold through Ticketmaster
reached a record $23 billion. Live Nation has created an eco-system where the whole of consumer
facing e-commerce platforms, venue facing ticketing platforms, concert promotion, ancillary services
and adwvertising is greater than the sum of its parts.

Live Nation is run by a top-tier management team led by Michael Rapino, has a deep competitive meat,
has adapted well to technological changes, possesses several high margin operating segments and has
controllable capital requirements. We expect that the priorities for Live Nation will include: geographic
expansion, building on impressive progress in the secondary ticketing market, remaining at the forefront
of the mobile user experience, growing its festival portfolio, inding new ways to monetize live content
in a digital format {with the Yahoo and VICE partnerships as just the beginning) and better leveraging its
understanding of the needs of concert fans globally.
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Capital Allocation

There are several sources of possible liquidity for new investments at Liberty Media. Margin loan capacity
and over 5400 million of accessible cash represent potential dry powder if the right opportunity presents
itself. In addition, we continue to seek tax-efficient ways to monetize our non-core assets. Gur non-voting
Series C shares could provide an acquisition currency, but the bar for equity issuance remains high,

Liberty Media was once again actively repurchasing stock in early 2015. The spin-off of Liberty Broadband
included a $300 million tax-free distribution to Liberty Media, which we must use to repurchase shares
within 12 months of the spin-off. The tax-free nature of the distribution coupled with the current discount
to NAV make these repurchases highly efficient.

We have also remained active with several acquisitions during the year. While small in dellar terms, these
investments position us well in several emerging and exciting categories.

+ Tastemade is producing high-quality streaming video in the food and lifestyle category.
Online video consumption is an area we understand well based on our experience
with QWC. What started as a passionate niche of *foadies” is slowly transforming into
a broader lifestyle brand.

+ Saavn is a highly popular Indian audio streaming service focused on Bollywood music.
Thisinvestment allows us to learn more about the music streaming industry with a
limited amount of capital atrisk.

+ ldeiasnet is a diversified technology venture fund in Brazil that Liberty has owned a 5%
stake in since |ate 2010. We bought another 5% due to the devalued Real, the slowdown
in the market and resulting weakness in the iBovespa, as well as the significant discount
to NAV that the company stock value represented.

Finally, we should mention the Atlanta Braves. While the team isn't expected to occupy its new home
in Cobb County until 2017, we are pleased to see the development of the new stadium progressing as
planned. We are also excited by the development of the mixed use component of the site. We expect to
have a world class mix of residential, office, retail and entertainment venues when all is complete, creating
one of the most unique mixed use neighborhoods in the country. On the field, we have high hopes for
the upcoming season as management has set the team up for success.
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Closing
2014 was another exciting year; much was accomplished, but mudh remains on our plate. We look forward

to the challenge and the opportunity.

The Board of Directors is also pleased to repert that Liberty has extended Greg's empleyment contract to
serve as CEQ for five maore years. Greg and his team have successfully overseen the evolution and growth
of the Liberty family of companies and increased shareholder value. We look forward to a continuation

of this success for years to come.

We look forward to seeing many of you at this year's annual investor meeting, which will take place on
November 12th at the Times Center at 242 Waest 415k Street in New York City.

We appreciate your ongoing support,

WVery truly yours,

W ¢, 7}@»‘&1—
Gregory B. Maffei John C. Malone
President and Chiel Executive Officer Chatirman of the Board
April 2015
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Stock Performance

The following graph compares the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder
return on an investment in the former Series A and Series B Liberty Capital common stock from
December 31, 2006 through December 31, 2014, to the percentage change in the cumulative total
return on the 5&F 500 Media Index, which reflects the performance of companies in our peer group,
and the S&P 500 Index. We have combined the closing market prices of each of the predecessor
securities to our current Series A and Series B common stock based on the ratios used toissue
the Liberty Entertainment group, Liberty Capital group and Liberty Starz group tracking stocks of
Liberty Interactive Corporation (*LIC*) (our former parent company). The returns presented below
include (i} the March 4, 2008 reclassification in which LIC reclassified a portion of assets and liabilities
previously allocated to its Liberty Capital group to its newly created Liberty Entertainment group,
(i} the share price of DIRECTV following the split-off of a portion of the Liberty Entertainment group
and subsequent combination of that portion of the Liberty Entertainment group with DIRECTV on
November 19,2009, 0n an as-exchanged basis and assuming a sale of the resulting DIRECTV shares
on the one-year anniversary of the split-off and reinvestment of the proceeds in Liberty Capital
commaen stock, (fii) the Liberty Entertainment group's subsequent re-designation as the Liberty Starz
group, (iv) following the completion of our split-off from LIC, the November 28,2011 conversion of
each outstanding share of our Series A and Series B Liberty Starz common stock for 0.88129 of a
share of the corresponding series of Liberty Capital common stack, (v) the spin-off effected by the
corporation formerly known as Liberty Media Corporation (now known as Starz) of our company
on January 11,2013 assuming a sale of the resulting Starz shares on the one-year anniversary of
the spin-off and reinvestment of the proceeds in Liberty Madia commen stock, (vi) the distribution
of our Series C shares, (vii) the spin-off of Liberty Broadband Corporation on November 4,2014 and
{will} the Liberty Broadband rights offering.
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Liberty vs. S&P Media and 500 Indices
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The following graph compares the percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder return on the former

Serfes A and Serles B Liberty Capital group tracking stock from March 4, 2008 through December 31,2014,
to the percentage change in the cumulative total return on the 58P Media Index and the S&P 500 Index. Qur
Series A and Series B common stocks currently trade under the NASDAQ symbals LMCA and LMCB, respectively.

This chart includes the impact of (i} the value of Starz, which was separated from our company on January 11,

2013, assuming a sale of the resulting 5tarz shares on the one-year anniversary of the spin-off and reinvestment

of the proceeds In Liberty Media comman stock, (i) the distribution of our Serles C shares, [[ii) the spin-off of

Liberty Broadband Corporation on November 4, 2014 and (iv) the Liberty Broadband rights offering.
Liberty Media Common Stock vs. S&P Media and 500 Indices
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Note: Trading data for all Series B shares is limited as they are thinly traded,
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The following graph compares the percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder returm on our Series
C common stock from July 24, 2014 (the date on which the Series C comman stock first traded “regular way®)
through December 31,2014, to the percentage change in the cumulative total return on the S&P Media Index
and the &P 500 Index. Qur Series C commaon stock currently trades under the NASDAQ symbol LMCK.
This chart includes the impact of the spin-off of Liberty Broadband Corporation on Movember 4,2014 and
the Liberty Breadband rights offering.
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Investment Summary | Biedon publicy avalsble inforaation s of March 31. 2015

libertymedia.com/asset-listaspx

Liberty Media Corporaticn owns interests in a broad range of media, communications and entertainment businesses,
Those interests include subsidiaries Atlanta Mational League Baseball Club, Inc.and Sirius XM Haldings Inc, a significant
but non-controlling equity interest in Live Nation Entertainment, Inc., and minority equity investments in Time Warner
Inc. and Viacom Inc.

The following table sets farth some of Liberty Media Corporation’s major assets that are held directly and indirectly
through partnerships, joint ventures, commaon stock investments and instruments convertible into common stock.
Ownership percentages in the table are approximate and, where applicable, assume conversion to common stock by
Liberty Media Corporation and, to the extent known by Liberty Media Corporation, other halders. In some cases,
Liberty Media Corporation’s interest may be subject to buy/sell procedures, repurchase rights or dilution.

ENTITY * DESCRIPTION OF OPERATING BUSINESS ~ OWNERSHIP

Associated Partners, LP Investment and operating partnership that targets Er
long-term, risk-balanced and tax-efficient returms.

Atlanta Mational League Owner of the Atlanta Braves,a Major League Baseballclub, |~ 100%
Baseball Club, Inc. as well as certain of the Atlanta Braves minor league clubs.
Crown Media Holdings, Inc. Owns and operates pay television networks inthe L5, 3%
(NASDAT: CRWN) dedicated to high-guality entertainment programming

for families,
|deiasnet A Brazil-based company that develops projects and 10%
(BOVESPA: IDNT3) acquires stakes in companies in technology, media |

and telecommunications. i
INRIX, Inc. Pravider of traffic data and analytics to auto OEMS, 4%

governments, businesses and consumers,

Kroenke Arena Company, LLC | Owner of the Pepsi Center, a sports and entertainment ‘ 7%
facility in Denver, Colorada. |

Liberty Associated Partners, LB | Investment firm specializing in private equity investments, 9%

¥
1

Liberty ksrael Venture Fund LR | Investment fund focused on lsraglitechnology companies,  80%
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Live Maticn Entertainment, Inc.
(NYSE:LYV)

Sirius XM Holdings Inc.
(NASDACE SIRI)

Viacom Inc.
(NASDAQ:VIA)

Largest live entertainment company in the world,
consisting of five segments: concert promation and
venue operations, spensorship, ticketing solutions,
eCommerce and artist management.

A satellite radio company delivering commercial-free
music, sparts, news, talk, entertainment, traffic and weather.

One of the largest media companies in the world, with
influential brands such as TIME, PEOBLE, Sports lllustrated,
InStyle, Real Simple, Wallpaper, Travel + Leisure and Food

Global entertainment content company that creates
television programs, motion pictures, short-form videos,
applications, games, brands for consumer products, social
media and other entertainment content. Brands include
MTV, Nickelodean, Nick at Nite, WH1, BET, Paramount
Pictures, TV Land, Comedy Central, CMT, and SPIKE.

<1%
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Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Muarket Information

On January 11, 2013, we completed the Starz Spin-OiT, which was effected as a pro-rata dividend of shares of Liberty
1o the stockholders of Starz, Due to the relative significance of Liberty to Starz (the legal spinnor) and semior management's
contineed involvement with Libenty following the Starz Spin-Off, Liberty was treated as the "accounting successor” to
Starz. Therefore, the historical financial statements of Starz continue o be the historical financial statements of Liberty,
aind Starz has been treated as discontinued operations in Liberty’s financial statements upon completion of the Starz Spin-
OIF in the first quarter of 2013,

Prior to January 11, 2013, the Liberty Serics A and B shares were traded under the LMCA and LMCB ticker symbols
{which are now reflected under the STRZA and STRZB ticker symbaols, respectively, for the respective time period).
Subsequent to Jammary 11, 2003, Starz and Liberty are separate publicly traded companies. Shares of Starz Series A and
Series B common stock (ticker symbols STRZA and STRZDB, respectively) are traded separately from Liberty’s Series A
and B common stock, which are traded under the LMCA and LMCB ticker symbaols, respectively.

Om July 23, 2004, holders of Liberty's Senes A and Senes B common stock as of 5:00 pm., New York City time, on
July 7, 2014, the record date for the dividend, received a dividend of two shares of Liberty Series C common stock (ticker
symbol LMCK) for each share of Liberty Series A or Series B common stock held by them as of the record date. The
impact of the Liberty Series C common issuance has been reflected retroactively due to the reatment of the dividend as a
stock split for accounting purposes.

On November 4, 2004, Liberty completed the spin-off to its stockholders of common stock of a newly formed
company called Liberty Broadband Corporation (" Liberty Broadband”) {the “Droadband Spin-OfT"). Shares of Liberty
Broadband were distributed to the shareholders of Liberty as of a record date of October 29, 2014, Liberty Broadband is
comprised of, among other things, (i) Liberty's former interest in Charter Communications, Ine. (“Charter™), (ii) Liberty's
former subsidiary TruePosition, Ing. (“TreePosition™), (i) Liberty's former minority equity investment in Time Wamer
Cable, Inc. ("Time Wamer Cable”), (iv) certain deferred tax liabilities, as well as liabilities related to Time Warner Cable
call options and (v) imtial indebiedness, pursuant 0 margin loans entered into prior to the completion of the Broadband
Spin-Off. In the Broadband Spin-OfT, record holders of Liberty Series A, Series B and Series C common stock received
ont share of the corresponding senes of Liberty Broadband common stock for every four shares of Liberty common stock

held by them as of the record date for the Broadband Spin-Off, with cash paid in lieu of fractional shares,

F-1



Each senes of our common stock 15 traded on the Nasdag Global Select Market. The following fable sets forth the
range of high and low sales prices of shares of our common stock for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, as
adjusted for the Series C common stock dividend, as discussed above and in the accompanying consolidated financial
statemenis in Part 11 of this repori.

_ Series A (LMCA) = Series B (1MCRE)
High Lavw High Lavw

2013

January 1, 2013 - January 11, 2003 €10 0o oeve i s § 4145 3897 4132 3943 NA NA
First quarter (after Janoary 11, 2003) ... ..o .0 L. § 3785 3500 3740 3536 NA NA
b T T L PR 5 43ad4 3569 4190 3596 NA NA
Third quarter $ 5027 4212 5017 4244 NA NA
Fourth quarter £ 5301 4645 5144 4756 NA NA
2614

T T 5 B A e A I A e S e B e I Y 5 4878 4190 4368 4217 NA NA
Second quarter 5 4560 4085 4589 4108 NA NA
Third quarter (July § - July 230 ............ § 47.50 4464 4767 4565 NA  NA
Third quarter (July 24 - September 300 (2) . ................ $ 4994 4592 5503 4625 5006 45.00
Fourth quarter (October 1 - November ) .. ........o.00u... § 4867 4100 4854 4620 4844 4020
Fourth quarier (November 5 - December 313 (3) ............ $ 3772 33212 4854 32,15 3728 33.07

(1) Mow reflected under the STRZA or STRZB ticker symbol, respectively, for the respective period.

(1 As discussed above and in the accompanying consolidated financial statements in Part [T of this report, on July 23,
2014 Liberty issued shares of its Series C common stock to holders of its Series A and Series B common stock, effected
by means of a dividend, Holders of Series A and Series B common stock received a dividend of two shares of Senes C
common stock for each share of Series A or Series B common stock held by them as of the record date.

{3) Represents the high and low sales prices of each respective series of common stock subsequent (o completion of the
Broadband Spin-Off.

Holders

As of Janvary 31, 20135, there were approximately 1,500, 100 and 1,500 record holders of our Series A, Series B and
Series C common stock, respectively. The foregoing numbers of record holders do not include the number of stockholders
whose shares are held nominally by banks, brokerage houses or other institutions, but include each such instifution as one
shareholder,

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock, and we have no present intention of so doing.  Payment
of cash dividends, if any, in the future will be determined by our board of directors i light of our earnings, financial
condition and other relevant considerations,

Securities Authorized for Isswance Under Equity Compensarion Plans

Information required by this item is incorporated by reference 1o our definitive proxy statement for our 2015 Annual
Meeting of stockholders that will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or before April 30, 2005,



Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer
Share Reprivchase Progvams

On January 11, 2013 {ratified February 26, 2013) Liberty Media Comporation anpounced that its board of directors
authorized $450 million of repurchases of Liberly common stock from that day forward. Additionally, in connection with
the Broadband Spin-Off, an additional authorization of $300 million in Liberty share repurchases was approved by the
Liberty board of dircctors on October 9, 2004, There were no repurchases of Liberty common stock made pursuant to the
repurchase program during the fourth quarter of 2014, As of December 31, 2014, $627 million is available for repurchases
unrder the Company’s share repurchase program.

Selected Financial Data.

The following tables present selected historical financial statement information relating to our financial condition and
results of operations for the past five years. The following data should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Diecember 31,

14 2003 FITH) 2011 2010

amounis in millions

Summary Balance Sheet Dota:
(o} - S R SR O Ca B OG0 e L e L Or BT SO RO e S RO e s 681 1,088 a3 970 1,773
Investments in available-for-sale securities and other cost

mvestments (3)
Investment in affiliates, accounted for using the equity

$  Rl6 1,324 1,392 1,859 4,550

method CIZHIN .0 e £ 851 3,299 3,341 563 49
Intangible assets not subject o amomization. . ... .....0.oou.. 8 24,018 24,038 344 344 354
Intangible assets subject to amortization, net. . 5 1L,09s 1,200 108 119 144
Assets of discontinued operations (4) ... ... s — —_ 2112 2582 1,828
TRl BESELE . L0 oo ettt e e e e ey $ 3,207 34542 8325 7,719 10,771
Current portion of deferred revenue. .. ............ e £ 1,641 1,575 4 30 114
Current portion of debl .. ..o i i e 5 257 7 —_— 750 —
Longstermdabl ...ccvvoamiceirnenicnnnernennnissneini £ 5,595 4,778 2033
Deferred tax liabilities, noneurrent. . ... ... oviieiia... £ 2438 2,312 817 376 1
Stockholders equity 5 14,081 6,440 5,259 5,005
Noncontrolling imterest (1) .. ... ... .. ... .ol $ 8,778 9,801 {8) {10y —
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Years ended Id 3,
2014 013 2012 2o 0
smwunis in millions, except per share amonnts

Summary Statement of Operations Data:

Revenne (INS). - oo oo oo $ 4450 4,002 168 1409 404
Operating income (1055) .. .. ..ooerereieeeninns e s 841 Bl4 (80)) 531 (94)
DIETESE ERPHEIIER . ... s coine nassmi n b s b i 8w § (255) {132) (M {16} {6l)
Share of camings (loss) of affilistes, net (10(2)............... £ (13 (32) 1,346 87 (9%)
Realized and unrealized gans (losses) on financial

IMSIPUMEnis, N8l oL ... i 5 38 255 230 0 264
Gains {losses) on ransactions, met (1) ... .. ..oooinininon & — 7978 22 1 16
Net earnings (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling interests .. 5§ 217 211 (2) {4) (3)

Eamings (loss) from contiming operations atiributable to
Liberty Media Corporation stockholders (6)

Liberty common stock . .. ... ... o 5 178 8,780 1,160 (k] 843
Liberty Starz common S10ck ... ..o e NA NA NA (39) (18)
5 178 8,780 1,160 504 B25

Basic eamings (loss) from continuing operations atiributable
to Liberty Media Corporation stockholders per common

share (7):
Series A, Series B and Series C Liberty common stock. . .. . § 052 24.73 in 248 313
Series A and Series B Liberty Starz common stock. .. .. ...« NA NA NA {0.25) {0.12)

Diluted eamings (loss) from continuing operations aftributable to
Liberty Media Corporation stockholders per common share (7):

Series A, Series B and Series C Liberty common stock . . .. . £ 052 24.46 3.12 2.40 3.03
Series A and Series B Liberty Starz common stock. .. ... ... NA NA NA  (0.25)  (0.12)

(1) Dwring the year ended December 31, 2012, Liberty acquired an additional 312.5 million shares of SIRIUS XM

I

(3

—

Radio, Inc. (now known as Sirus XM Holdings [ne., “SIRIUS XM") in the open market for 3769 million.
Additionally, Liberty setiled a forward contract and purchased an additional 302.2 million shares of SIRTUS XM for
4649 mullion, SIRIUS XM recogmized a $3.0 billion tax benefit during the year ended December 31, 2012, SIRIUS
XM recorded the tax benefit as the result of significant positive evidence that 4 valuation allowance was no longer
necessary for its recorded deferred tax asseis. The Company recognized its poriion of this benefit ($1,22% million)
based on our ownership percentage at the time of the recognition of the deferred tax benefit by SIRIUS XM. On
Januvary 18, 2013, as discussed in note 3 to the accompanying consolidated financial stalements, Liberty acguired an
additional 50 million commaon shares and acguired a controlling interest in SIRIUS XM and as a result consolidates
SIRIUS XM as of such date. Liberty recorded a gain of approximately $7.5 billion in the first quarter of 2013
associated with application of purchase accounting based on the difference between fair value and the camying value
of the ownership interest Liberty had in SIRIUS XM prior to the acquisition of the controlling interest. The gain on
the transaction was excluded from taxable income.

As discussed in note 8 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, in May 2013, Liberty acquired
approximately 26.9 million shares of common stock and approximately 1.1 million warrants in Charter for
approximately $2.6 billion, which represented an approximate 27% beneficial ownership in Chanter at the time of
purchase.

Ag discussed in note 1 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, on November 4, 2014, Liberty
completed the Broadband Spin-Oif. Liberty Broadband is compnsed of, among other things, (i) Liberty's former
interest in Charter, (i) Liberty's former wholly owned subsidiary TruePosition, (iii) Liberty s former minority equity
invesiment in Time Wamner Cable, (iv) certain deferred tax liabilities, as well as liabilities related 1o Time Wamer
Cable call options and (v) initial indebtedness, purssant to margin loans entered into prior o the completion of the
Broadband Spin-Off. The Company’s former invesiments in and results of Charter and Time Wamer Cable are no
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longer included in the results of Liberty from the date of the completion of the Broadband Spin-OfF forward. Based
on the relative significance of TruePosition to Liberty, the Company concluded that discontinued operations
presentation of TruePosition is not necessary.

I January 2013, the entity then known as Liberty Media Corporation {now named Starz) spun-off (the “Starz Spin-
OI"y 1ts then-former wholly owned subsidiary, now known as Liberty Media Corporation, which, at the time of the
Stare Spin-Of, held all of the businesses, assets and habilities of Starz not associated with Stare, LLC (with the
exception of the Starz, LLC office building). The transaction was effected as a pro-rata dividend of shares of Liberty
to the stockholders of Starz. Due to the relative sigmficance of Liberty to Starz (the legal spinnor) and senior
management’s continued involvement with Libenty following the Starz Spin-Off, Liberty is treated as the "accounting
successor” (o Starz for financial reporiing purposes, notwithstanding the legal form of the Starz Spin-Off previously
described. Therefore, the historical financial statements of the company formerly known as Liberty Media Corporation
continue (o be the historical financial statements of Liberty, and Starz, LLC 15 presented as discontinued operations
for all peniods prior to the completion of the Starz Spin-Oif, Due to the short period between December 31, 2012 and
the distribution date, Liberty did not record any results for Starz in discontinued operations for the statement of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 due to the insignificance of such amounts for that period.

In 2011 TruePosition recognized £1,029 million of previously deferred revenue and 3409 million of deferred cosis
associted with two separate contracts,

Eamings (loss) from continuing operations attributable to Liberty stockholders were allocated to the Liberty Starz
Group and Liberty Capital Group for all the periods prior to the conversion of each share of Liberty Starz common
stock into 0.8812% of a share of the corresponding series of Libeny Capital common stock, with cash paid in liew of
fractional shares, on November 28, 2011 based on businesses and assets attributed o each respective group at the time
prior fo any corporae iransactions between the groups. Subsequent fo the conversion and elimination of the
Company’s tracking stock structure, the Liberty Capital common stock is referred 1o as Liberty common stock.

On July 23, 2014, holders of Liberty Series A and Series B common stock as of 5:00 p.m., New York City, time on
July 7, 2014, the record date for the dividend, received a dividend of two shares of Series C common stock for each
share of Series A or Series B common stock held by them as of the record date. The impact on basic and diluted
eamings per share of the Series C common stock issuance has been reflected retroactively in all periods presented due
1o the treatment of the dividend as a stock split for accounting purposes. Basic and diluted earnings per share were
caleulated for Liberty Capital and Liberty Starz common stock, prior (o the Split-OdT date, based on the eamings
attributable to the businesses and assets to the respective groups divided by the weighted average shares on an as if’
converied basis for the periods assuming a 1 to 1 exchange ratio for the Split-Of.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis provides information concerning our resulls of operations and financial
condition. This discussion should be read in conjunction with our accompanying consolidated financial statemenis and the
notes thereto.

Explanatory Note

On January 11, 2013 Liberty Media Corporation ("Liberty” or "the Company”) was spun-off, through the distribution
of shares of Liberty by means of a pro-rata dividend from Starz (previously Liberty Media Comporation, formerly known
as Liberty Spinco, Inc.) {the "Starz Spin-OdT™), which was previcusly an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Liberty
Interactive Corporation ("Liberty Interactive,” formerly known as Liberty Media Corporation). Liberty Interactive's capital
structure previous]y utilized three tracking stocks: Liberty Inferactive common stock, Liberty Starz common stock and
Liberty Capital common stock. Dunng September 2011, Liberty Interactive completed the separation of its Liberty Capital
and Liberty Starz tracking stock groups from its Liberty Interactive tracking stock group (the "Split-Off™), The Split-OfF
was effected by means of a redemption of all of the Liberty Capital common stock and the Liberty Starz common stock in
exchange for all of the common stock of Liberty, which at the time of the Split-Off held all of the assets, liabilities and
businesses altributed o Liberty Interactive’s Liberty Capital and Liberty Starz tracking stock groups. Liberty eliminated
its tracking stock structure in November 2011 through the conversion of Liberty Stare common stock into Liberty Capital
common stock (the “Conversion™). As a result of the Conversion there are no longer outstanding shares of the Liberty Starz
tracking stock as of the Conversion date.

Due to the relative significance of Liberly to Starz (the legal spinnor) and senior management's continued involvement
with Liberty following the Starz Spin-OfF, Liberty was treated as the "accounting successor” 1o Starz for financial reporting
purposes, notwithstanding the legal form of the Starz Spin-Off previously described. Therefore, the historical financial
statements of Starz will continue 1o be the historical financial statements of Liberty and now present the results of Star,
LLC as disconfinued operations in all periods prior to the Starz Spin-OfT. Therefore, for purposes of this Form 10-K Liberty
15 treated as the spinnor for purposes of discussion and as a practical matter of describing all the historical information
contained herein.

On Movember 4, 2014, Liberty completed the Broadband Spin-Off, Shares of Liberty Broadband were distributed to
the shareholders of Libenty as of a record date of October 29, 2014, Liberty Broadband is comprised of, among other
things, (i) Liberty's former interest in Charter, (i1) Libenys former subsidiary TruePosition, (ii1) Liberty s former minority
equily investment in Time Wamer Cable, (iv) certain defermed tax habilities, as well as liabilities related to Time Wamer
Cable call options and (v) initial indebtedness, pursuant to margin loans entered into prior o the completion of the
Broadband Spin-Ofif. Prior to the transaction, Liberty Broadband borrowed funds under margin loans and made a final
distribution to Liberty of approximately £300 million in cash. The Broadband Spin-Off was intended to be tax-free to
stockholders of Liberty. In the Broadband Spin-Oii, record holders of Series A, Series B and Series C common siock
received one share of the corresponding series of Liberty Broadband common stock for each four shares of common stock
held by them as of the record date for the Broadband Spin-Off, with cash paid in lieu of fractional shares. The Company’s
former mvestments in and results of Charter and Time Warner Cable are no longer included in the results of Liberty from
the date of the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off forward, Based on the relative significance of TruePosition to Liberty,
the Company concluded that discontinued operations presentation of TreePosition is nol necessary,

Overview

We own controlling and non-controlling interesis in a broad range of media, communications and entertainment
companies, Our most significant operating subsidiary, which 15 our reportable segment, 15 SIRIUS XM. SIRIUS XM
broadeasts its music, sponts, enterainment, comedy, talk, news, traffic and weather channels, as well as infotainment
services, in the United States on a subscription fee basis through its two proprietary satellite radio systems. Subscribers
can also receive music and other channels, plus features such as Sirius XM On Demand and MySXM, over the Internet,
including through applications for mobile devices.
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Our "Corporate and Other” category includes our consolidated subsidiary, the Atlanta National League Baseball Club,
Inc. ("ANLBC"), corporate expenses and prior 1o the Broadband Spin-Off, TruePosition,

In addition to the foregoing businesses, we hold an ownership inferest in Live Nation Entertainment, Inc. ("Live
Wation"), which we account for as an equity method investment at December 31, 2014, We also maintain minority
positions in other public companies such as Bames & Noble, Inc., Time Warner Inc. and Viacom Corporation, which are
aceounted for al their respective far market values and are included in corporate and other,

Kirategies and Challenges of Business Unirs

SIRIUS XM, SIRIUS XM is focused on several initiatives to increase is revenue. SIRIUS XM regularly evaluates its
business plans and strategy. Currently, its strategies include:

-

-
-

-

The acquisition and pricing of unique or compelling programming;

Increased penetration in the secondary car market;

The introduction of new features or services:

Significant new or enhanced distribution arrangements;

Investments in infrastructure, such as satellites, terrestnal repeater networks, equipment or radio spectrum;
and

Acquisitions of other businesses, including acquisitions that are not directly related to its satellite radio
business.

SIRIUS XM faces certain key challenges in its aftempt to meet these goals, including:

-

. & &

Its ability to convince owners and lessees of new and previously owned vehicles that include satellite radios
1o purchase subscriptions (o its servige;

Potential loss of subscribers due to economic conditions and competition from other entertainment
providers,

Competition for both listeners and advertisers, including providers of radio and other audio services;

The operational performance of its satellites;

The effectiveness of integration of acquired businesses and assets into its operations;

The performance of its manufacturers, programming providers, vendors, and retailers; and

Unfavorable changes i legislation,
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Results of ations—Consolidated

General.  We provide in the tables below information regarding our Consolidated Operating Resulis and Other
Income and Expense, as well as information regarding the coninibution to those items from our reporiable segments, The
"corporate and other™ category consists of those assets or businesses which do not qualify as a separate reportable segment.
For a more detailed discussion and analysis of the Anancial results of our principal reportable segment, see "Resulis of
Operations-Businesses” below.

Consolidated Operating Results
Years ended December 31,

2004 13 20012
amounnts in millians

Revenue
SIRIUS XM ..o cn i ee e 5 4141 3,625 NA
Corporateand other . ... ... iinns 30 377 368
£ 4430 4,002 368
Adjusted (IEDA
SIRTUS XM . ..ottt ceee i iaeerans 1466 1,289 NA
Corporate and other . ... ... i i iie e (45 33 3
§ 1417 1,322 8
Operating Income (Loss)
BIRTUS XM . ... oot i iaaiaiiaeiian i aaranas 1,004 B8 NA
Corporate andother ... oL (163) {64} {80}
g #41 B4 (610

Revennwe.  Our consolidated revenue increased $448 million and $3,634 million for the vears ended December 31,
2004 and 2013, respectively, as compared (o the comesponding prior year periods, The current year increase was primarily
due 1o revenue growth at SIRIUS XM (approximately $382 million) and a full vear of consolidated SIRIUS XM revenue
(5166 million), which was partially offzet by reduced revenue at ANLBC and TruePosition and no revenue eared during
the year ended December 31, 2004 related 1o a contractual arrangement with CNBC that was held by a subsidiary
exchanged in the fourth quarter of 20013 with Comeast. TruePosition revenue decreased 520 million in 2014 as compared
1o the prior year due primarily to a decrease in international and domestic hardware and software sales offset shightly by
revenue from an acquisition during the year and the timing of the Broadband Spin-Off. ANLBC revenue decreased S10
millien for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to the prior vear. The decrease was primarnly due to a one-time
recognition of revenue from a setilement of historical broadeast rights issues duning the year ended December 31, 2013,
The increase in 2013 was primarily due to the treatment of SIRIUS XM as a consolidated subsidiary beginning on January
18, 2013 and increased revenue at ANLBC. For the yvear ended December 31, 2013, ANLBC revenue increased by $36
million or 16% as compared to the prior year, due to a one time recognition of revenue from a settlement of outstanding
broadeasi rights issues, slightly greater fan attendance and slightly higher average prices per tickel and concession spend
per tumstile. See Results of Operations—Businesses below for a more complete discussion of the results of operations of
SIRIUS XM.

Adjusted WEDA.  We define Adjusted OIBDA a8 revenue less operating expenses and selling, general and
admimstrative {"SG&A") expenses (excluding stock compensation). Our chief operating decision maker and management
team use this measure of performance in conjunction with other measures to evaluate our businesses and make decisions
aboul allocating resources among our businesses. We believe this is an important indicator of the operational sirength and
performance of our businesses, including each business's ability to service debt and fund capital expenditures. In addition,
this measure allows us 10 view operating results, perform analytical comparisons and benchmarking between businesses
and identify strategies o improve performance. This measure of performance excludes such costs as depreciation and
amortization, stock-based compensation, separately reported litigation settlements and restructuring and impairment
charges that are included in the measurement of operating income pursuant o GAAP Accordingly, Adjusted OIBDA
should be considered in addition to, bul not as a substitule for, operating income, net income, cash flow provided by
operating activities and other measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with GAAP. See note 18 to the
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accompanying consolidated financial statements for a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA o Eamings (loss) from
continuing operations before income taxes.

Consolidated Adjusted OIBDA increased $25 million and $1,3 14 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively, as compared to the cormesponding prior year periods. The increase in the current vear was primarily
driven by the result of a full year of consolidated resulis for SIRIUS XM and increased operating efficiencies at SIRIUS
XM offset by reduced Adjusted OIBDA results at ANLBC, TruePosition and the impacts of a transaction in the fourth
quarter of 2013 related to the revenue shanng agreement with CNBC discussed above. The Adjusted OIBDA decrease for
ANLBC was primanly the result of inereased player payroll due to season ending injuries at key positions which required
additional players to be added to the roster. Additionally, other players were released from the roster and full recognition
of guaraniced portions of their confracis were recognized during the current period. The increase in 2013 was primarily
driven by the treatment of SIRTUS XM as a consolidated subsidiary beginning on January 18, 2013 and an improvement
in Adjusted OIBDA for ANLBC. ANLBC's adjusied OIBDA increased $20 million during 2013 due to an increase in
revenue (discussed above), slightly offset by an increase in player salaries during the current year, See Results of
Operations—Businesses below for a more complete discussion of the results of operations of SIRIUS XM.

Stock-based compensation.  Stock-based compensation includes compensation related o (1) options and stock
appreciation rights ("SARs") for shares of our common stock that are granted to certain of our officers and employees,
{2) phantom stock appreciation rights ("PSARs") granted to officers and employees of certain of our subsidianies pursuant
10 private equity plans and (3) amortization of restricted stock grants,

We recorded $217 million, $193 million and 846 million of stock compensation expense for the vears ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The increase in stock compensation expense during 20014 primarily
relates o additional stock-based compensation from SIRIUS XM. The mcrease in stock compensation expense in 2013
relates o two tlems: the recognition of additional stock-based compensation from SIRIUS XM (8133 million) resulting
from our consolidation of SIRIUS XM during the year, and an increase in the recognition of incremental compensation
expense due to the option exchange program that occumred in December 2012, As of December 31, 2014, the total
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested Liberty equity awards was approximately $58 million, Such amount
will be recognized in our consolidated statements of operations over a weighted average period of approximately 2.3 vears,
As of December 31, 2014, the tolal unrecognized compensation cost related to unvesied SIRIUS XM stock options was
5236 million. The SIRIUS XM unrecognized compensation cost will be recogmized in the Company's consolidated
statements of operations over 4 weighted average period of approximately 2.4 years,

Operating income,  Our consolidated operating income increased £27 million and $894 million for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as compared (o the corresponding prior year periods. The increase in 2014 15
primarily the result of increased operating results at SIRIUS XM, offset by increased stock compensation expense and the
other subsidiary activity discussed above in the Adjusted OIBDA section. The increase in 2013 is primarily the result of
the treatment of SIRTUS XM as a consalidated subsidiary beginning on January 18, 2013,
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Other Income and Expense

Components of Other Income (Expense) are presented in the table below.

Vears ended December 31
2004 203 2012
amwunis in millions

Oiher income (expense):

Imterest eXpense. ... ... oo L iiiiiiiiiiiiiiis 5 (235) {132) {M
Dividend and interest income. ... ... 27 48 76
Share of carnings (losses) of affiliates {113 (32) 1,346
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial

INSIRMIENES, BED ..o e i 38 295 230
Gains (losses) on transacions, BEl. . . ... c.oivevaiaiieaans T7.978 22
OMBEL, L. o e e e e {77) {115) 42

§ (380) _ 8042 1,704

Interest expense.  Interest expense increased $123 mllion and 125 million for the yvears ended December 31, 2014
and 2013 as compared o the cormesponding prior year periods, respectively. The overall increase in interest expense in the
current year was primarily due to an overall increase in the average debi balance outstanding during the period and a
reduction in premium amortization as a result of debt refinancing by SIRIUS XM in the prior period. The overall increase
in interest expense in 2013 was primarily due to the treatment of SIRIUS XM as a consolidated subsidiary beginning on
January 18, 2013 and the interest expense related to the debt that was acquired,

Dividend and inferest income,  Consolidated dividend and interest income decreased $21 million and $28 million
for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2003 as compared to the prior year periods, respectively. The decrease from
the prior year is primarily due to a decrease in interest eamed from our investment in Barmes and Noble, Inc. due to the
sale of the majority of our interest in the second quarter of 2014, The decrease in 2013 was pnmarily due to the reduction
in interest income recognized on certain debt instruments in SIRIUS XM that were considered effectively settled upon
consolidation.

Share of earnings (losses) of affiliates.  The following table presents our share of ecamings (losses) of affiliates:

Years ended I 3,
014 Pk 2012

amounts in millions

£ (949 (83) NA

—_ 8 1367

(30} {18) (45)

5 7 NA

(31T e S B DA e e A C O (e Hn e O CE R E Ca Can G0 e i 54 4

§ (113)  (32) 1346

In May 2013, we acquired approximately 26.9 million shares of common stock and approximately 1.1 million warrants
in Charier for approximately $2.6 billion, which represented an approximate 27% beneficial ownership in Charter ai the
time of purchase. Our share of losses related to Charter included 560 million and 851 million of losses due to the
amoriization of the excess basis of our investment for the years ended December 31, 20014 and 2013, respectively. Duning
May 2014, Liberty purchased approximately 897 000 additional shares of Charter common stock for $124 million resulting
in an economic ownership of 26% of Charter. Charter's results declined slightly period over period, primarily due to
increased revenue, offset by higher operating costs and interest expense on outstanding debt. As discussed above, on
November 4, 2014, Liberty completed the spin-off to its stockholders of commaon stock of a newly formed company called
Liberty Broadband, which was comprised of, among other things, Libeny’s interest in Charter. As of the date of the
completion of the Broadband Spin-Off, the Company's former investment in and results of Charter are no longer included
in the resulis of Liberty.
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We acquired a controlling interest m SIRIUS XM on January 18, 2013 resulting in share of carnings for only the first
seventeen days of January 2013, SIRIUS XM recognized approximately $3.0 billion of tax benefit dunng the year ended
December 31, 2012, SIRIUS XM recorded the tax benefit as the result of significant positive evidence that a valuation
allowance was no longer necessary for its recorded deferred tax assets. The Company recognized our portion of this benefit
(£1,22% million) based on our ownership percentage at the time of the recognition of the deferred tax benefit by SIRIUS
XM.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we acquired an additional 1.7 million shares of Live Nation common stock
for approximately $3% million. During the year ended December 31, 2013, we acquired an additional 1.7 mllion shares of
Live Nation common stock for approximately $19 million. During the vear ended December 31, 20012 we made additional
invesiments in Live Mation common stock, obdaining approximately 11 million shares for $107 million. Live Nation's share
of losses increased during the vear ended December 31, 2014 primarily due to an impairment taken at Live Nation in the
fourth quarter of approximately $135 mallion (Liberty’s portion of this loss was approximately $36 million). Exclusive of
the impairment, the core businesses were slightly improved year over year, Live Nation's share of carnings improved during
the year ended December 31, 2013 due to a $38 million gain on the sale of an operating asset, improvements in EBITDA
due to favorable concert activity and reduced corporate expenses, parfially offsel by a $36 million loss on exiinguishment
of debt.

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial instruments. . Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial
instruments are comprised of changes in the fair value of the following:

..... Vears ended December 31,
24 N E] e
amnts in oifllio s
Fair Value Oplion Scurifies. .. ... .o veeverinraneiinenns 5 B0 306 310
Cash convertible BOIES . ... .00t e 12 (17) —
Change in fair value of bond hedges . ........... tdooo0dco o0 {89) (1)
Odher derivalives . . .o vu i i iecaiiianaiaranananaranana 35 7 (&)

5 3R 2495 230

The decrease in gains on Fair Valee Option Securities is primarily due to a general decrease in market valuation
adjustments for Liberty's public pontfolio during 2014.

Liberty issued $1 hillion of cash convertible notes in October 2013 which are accounted for at fair value, as clected
by Liberty at the ime of issuance of the notes. At the same time, Liberty entered into a bond hedge transaction on the same
amount of underlying shares. These denvatives are marked to fair value on a recurring basis, The primary driver of the
change in the current period is the change in the fair value of the underlying stock,

As previously discussed, Liberty obtained Chaner warrants in the second quarter of 2013, These warrants were marked
0 fair value based on the rading price of Charter and other observable markel data. The change in fair value is incloded
in other derivatives in the table above and primarily driven by the change in the trading price of the Charter common stock.
As discussed above, on November 4, 2014, Liberty completed the spin-off to its stockholders of common stock of a newly
formed company called Liberty Broadband, which was compnsed of, among other things, Liberty's interest in Charter,
The Company's former investment in and results of Chanter, including the Charter warrants, are no longer included in the
resulis of Liberty from ihe date of the completion of the Broadband Spin-OfT forward.

Gains (fosses) on fransactions, mef. . During January 2003, we acquired a controlling nterest in SIRTUS XM which
resulted in the application of purchase accounting and the consolidation of SIRIUS XM in the first quarter of 2003, Liberty
recorded a gain of approximately $7.5 billion associated with application of purchase accounting based on the difference
between fair value and the carrying valee of the ownership interest Liberty had in SIRIUS XM prior to the acquisition of
the controlling interest. The gain in 2012 relates to gains associated with the repayment of certain SIRIUS XM dett
securifies.
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(irer, net. The decreases in 2014 and 2013 are primarily due to warrant and stock option exercises al Charter at a
price below Liberty's book basis per share. Additionally, in 2013, losses on the early extinguishment of SIRIUS XM debt
during the period contributed to the total losses recognized in the other, net line item, The other category increased for the
vear ended December 31, 2012 as a resuli of a reversal of a contingent liability as discussed in more detail in note 17 in
the accompanying financial statements.

Fneome faxes.  Our effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2013 and 2002 was an expense of 14%;,
a benefit of 2% and an expense of 29%, respectively, Our effective tax rate for all three years was impacted for the following
reasons:

+  During 2014, our effective tax rate was lower than the federal tax rate of 35% primarily due 1o the liquidation
of a parinership invesiment and the related reduction in the fax basis of the paninership’s assets, which was
oot recognized for financial statement purposes, partially offset by the net taxable impact of SIRIUS XM
shares repurchased from Liberty by SIRIUS XM during the vear.,

+  During 2013, our effective tax rate was lower than the federal tax rate of 35% primarily due to the recognition
of a 7.5 ballion gain on the consolidation of SIRIUS XM on January 18, 2013, which was not subject to tax,
and the gain recognized on a non-taxable exchange of one of our consolidated subsidiaries on October 4,
2013, in exchange for Liberty shares.

+  During 2012, our effective tax rate was lower than the federal tax rate of 35% primarily due to tax benefits
related to a change in valuation allowance and dividends received deductions offset slightly by state income
laxes,

Net earmings.  We had net eamings of £395 million, 58991 million and 51,412 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The change in net eamings was the resull of the above-described

Muctuations in our revenue, expenses and other gains and losses.

Liguidity and Capital Resourees

As of December 31, 2014, substantially all of our cash and cash equivalenis are invested in U.S. Treasury securifies,
other government securities or government guaranteed funds, AAA rated money market funds and other highly rated
financial and corporate debt instruments.

The following are potential sources of liquidity: available cash balances, cash generated by the operating activitics of
our privately-owned subsidiaries (fo the extent such cash exceeds the working capital needs of the subsidianies and is not
otherwise restricted), proceeds from net asset sales, monetization of our public investment portfolio, debt and equity
issuances, available borrowing capacity under margin loans, and dividend and interest receipis.

Liberty currently does not have a debt rating subsequent to the Split-Off and the Starz Spin-Off,
As of December 31, 2014, Libenty's liguidity position consisted of the following:

Unencum bered
Cashand Cash  Fair Value Option
Eguivalents AFS Secnrifies
anwants in millions
Corporate and other, ... ... 3 533 157
L o e e T e et e e A P e e e 3 148 —

To the exient the Company recognizes any taxable gains from the sale of assels we may incur fax expense and be
required to make tax payments, thereby reducing any cash proceeds. Additionally, on January 18, 2013 the Company
obtamed a controlling interest in SIRIUS XM which has significant cash flows provided by operating activities, although
due to SIRIUS XM being a separate public company and the significant noncontrolling interest, we do not have ready
access (o its cash,
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The cash provided {used) by our continuimg operations for the prior three years is as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Cash Flow Information amaunts in millions
SIRIUS XM cash provided (used) by operating activities. . . . . $ 1,253 1,103 NA
Liberty cash provided {used) by operating activities .. ....... {128) 133 (29)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities . .. ........ § 1,125 1236 g“};
SIRIUS XM cash provided (used) by investing activities . .. . . 5 (%) (TDIJ
Liberty cash provided {used) by investing activities .. ....... {315)  (2,063) 224

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities | ceaes B (411) (2764) 224
SIRIUS XM cash provided (used) by financing activities . .. .. S(L144) (788 NA
Liberty cash provided (used) by financing activities . .. ...... 23 1601 (1,162)

Met cash provided (used) by financing activities . .......... S (1,121} 813 (1,162)

Liberty’s primary uses of cash during the year ended December 31, 2014 {excluding SIRIUS XM's uses of cash) were
£920 million debt repayments, $360 million mvestments in shon-term and other marketable securities, $183 million
additional investmenis in cost and equity method investees and 368 million capital expenditures, These uses of cash were
funded by cash provided by operating activities, debt bomowings, net cash provided by the Broadband Spin-Oifi, SIRTUS
XMs repurchase of shares from Liberty, proceeds from the sale of the majority of our interest in Barnes & Noble, sales of
short term investments and cash on hand.

The projected uses of Liberty cash (excluding SIRIUS XM's uses of cash) are primarily the investment in new or
existing businesses, debt service, capital expenditures (including new ANLBC baseball facility see diseussion below) and
the potential buyback of common stock under the approved share buvback program as well as further repayment of the
margin loans. Liberty expecis to fund ils projecied uses of cash with cash on hand, cash from operations and borrowing
capacity under margin loans. We may be required to make net payments of income tax liabilities 1o settle items under
discussion with fax authorities.

In 2014, ANLBC, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, purchased 82 acres of land for the purpose of constructing a
Major League Baseball facility and developing a mixed-use complex adjacent to the facility. The new facility is expected
to cost approximately $672 million. Funding for the ballpark will be shared among ANLBC, Cobb County and Cobb-
Marietta Coliseum and Exhibit Hall Authority {(the “Authority”). The Authority and Cobb County will be responsible for
funding £392 million of ballpark related construction and ANLBC will be responsible for remainder of cost, including cost
overruns, ANLBC agreed to advance funds to cover project related costs (o maintain a 2017 opening date. The Authority
will issue $368 million in bonds that are expected to close and fund in second half of 2015, At which time ANLBC expects
to receive reimbursement of the advances that have been made through that date. Al the completion of construction the
facility is expected to be leased from the Authority and Cobb County.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, SIRIUS XM repurchased $2.5 billion of 1is common stock, including $340
million of shares repurchased pursuant to the repurchase agreement with Liberty, and repaid approximately $1.0 billion of
long-term debt, SIRIUS XM's uses of cash were funded by cash provided by operating activities, SIRIUS XM's additional
borrowing of approximately $2.4 billion of long-term debi and cash on hand. [n addition to normal operating expenses
{including tax payments), SIRIUS XM's uses of cash are expected to be the repayment of certain outstanding de, the
repurchases of its common stock in accordance with its approved share buyback program and strategic opporiunities,
Liberty expects SIRTUS XM to fund its projected uses of cash with cash on hand, cash provided by operations and
borrowings under the existing credil facility.

We believe that the available sources of liguidity are sufficient to cover our projected future uses of cash,

F-13



ff-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contracinal Obligations

SIRIUS XM has entered into various programming agreements, Under the terms of these agreements, SIRIUS XM's
obligations include fixed paymenis, advertising commiiments and revenue sharing arrangemenis. SIRIUS XM's future
revenue sharing costs are dependent upon many factors and are difficult to estimate; therefore, they are not included in
the schedule of contraciual obligations below.

The Atlanta Braves have entered into long-term employment coniracts with certain of their players and coaches
whereby such individuals' compensation is guaranieed. Amounts due under guaranieed contracts as of December 31, 2014
aggregated 3398 million. See the table below for more detail. In addition to the foregoing amounts, certain players and
coaches may eam incentive compensation under the terms of their employment contracts.

Information concerning the amount and timing of required payments, both acerued and ofi-balance sheet, under our
contractual obligations, excluding uncertain tax positions as it 15 indeterminable when payments will be made, is
summarized below,

Fayments due by period
Total Luess than 1 year 2 -3 years 4-Syears Aller 5 vears
amounts in millions

Consalidated contracteal obligations

Long-term debt (1) ... . . b3 5,801 257 385 100 5,149
Interest payments (2) .. 2,028 265 512 484 767
Programming fees (3)..... S84 231 185 108 60
Operating lease obligations .. ... ... 60l 53 @1 n 380
Employment agreements .. ......... 398 &0 160 99 39
Other obligations (4). . ............. R64 315 443 49 57

Total consolidated ............... § 10,366 1,201 1,776 917 65472

(1) Amounts are stated at the face amount at maturity of our debt instroments and may differ from the amounts stated in
our consolidated balance sheet to the extent debt instruments (1) were issued at a discount or premium or (i) have
elements which are reported at fair value in our consolidated balance sheet, Amounts include capital lease
obligations, Amounts do not assume additional borrowings or refinancings of existing debt.

(2

—

Ammounts (i) are based on our outstanding debt at December 31, 2014, (i) assume the interest rates on our variable
rafe debt remain consiant ai the December 31, 2004 rates and (1) assume that our existing debd is repaid at maturity.

(€]

=

SIRIUS XM has entered into various programming agreements under which SIRIUS XM's obligations include fixed
paymenis, advertising commitments and revenue sharing arrangements. Future revenve shanng costs are dependent
upon many factors and are difficult to estimate; theretore, they are not included in the table above.

{4) Includes amounts due related to the new ANLBC baseball stadiom and SIRIUS XM satellite and transmission,
marketing and distnbution, satellite incentive payments, and other contractual commitments. SIRIUS XM satellite
and transmission commitments are atinbutable to agreements with third parties to operate and maintaim the off-site
satellite telemetry, racking and control facilities and centain components of its terestnal repeater networks, SIRIUS
XM marketing and disinibution commitmenis primarily relate to payments (o sponsors, retailers, automakers and
radio manufacturers pursuant o marketing, sponsorship and distribution agreements (o promote the SIRIUS XM
brand. Boeing Satellite Systems International, Inc. and Space Systems/Loral, the manufacturers of SIRIUS XM's in-
orbit satellites, may be entitled to future in-orbit satellite incentive performance payments based on the expected
operating performance of the satellites meeting their fificen-year design life, Boeing may also be entitled to an
additional $10 million if the XM-4 satellite continues to operate above baseline specifications during the five years
beyvond the satellite’s fifteen-yvear design life. Additionally, SIRIUS XM has entered into various agreements with
third parties for general operaling purposes.
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The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumpiions
ihat affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statemenis and the reporied amounis of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Listed below are the accounting estimates that we believe are critical to
our financial statements due to the degree of unceriainty regarding the estimates or assumpiions involved and the
magnitude of the asset, liability, revenue or expense being reported. All of these accounting estimates and assumplions, as
well as the resulting impact to our financial statements, have been discussed with our audit committee.

Nen-Financial Instraments.  Our non-financial instrument valuations are primarily comprised of our determination
of the estimated fair value allocation of net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired in business combinations,
our annual assessment of the recoverability of our goodwill and other nonamortizable intangibles, such as trademarks, and
our evaluation of the recoverability of our other long-lived assels upon cerlain triggering events. If the carrying value of
our long-lived assets exceeds their estimated fair value, we are required to wnte the carrying value down to fair value. Any
such writedown is included in impaimient of long-lived assets in our consolidated statement of operations, A high degree
of judgment is required fo estimate the fair value of our long-lived assels. We may use quoted market prices, prices for
similar assets, present value techniques and other valuation techniques to prepare these estimates. We may need to make
estimaies of future cash fows and discount rates as well as other assumptions i order (o implement these valuation
techniques. Due 1o the high degree of judgment involved in our estimation techniques, any value ultimately derived from
our long-lived assets may differ from our estimate of fair value, As each of our operating segments has long-lived assets,
this critical accounting policy affects the financial position and resulis of operations of cach segment.

As of December 31, 2014, the intangible assets noi subject 0 amonization for each of our significani reporiing units
were as follows (amounts in millions):

Goodwill  FOC Licenses Oiher Total
SIRIUS XM...ooinvnvaiermnnaninanen 5 14,165 8,600 930 23,695
e e e eSSt PV speyatets 180 - 143 323
Consolidated . ... ... .. ..., $ 14,345 8,600 1,073 24018

We perform our annual assessment of the recoverability of our goodwil] and other nonamontizable intangible assets in
the fourth quarter each year, The Company utilizes a qualitative assessment for determining whether step one of the
goodwill impairment analysis is necessary. The accounting guidance permits entities to first assess qualitaive factors (o
determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis
for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test. In evaluating goodwill on a
qualitative basis, the Company reviews the business performance of each reporting unit and evaluates other relevant factors
as identified in the relevant accounting guidance to determine whether it is more likely than not that an indicated
impairment exists for any of our reporting units. The Company considers whether there are any negative macroeconomic
conditions, indusiry specific conditions, market changes, increased competition, increased costs in doing business,
management challenges, the legal environments and how these factors might impact company specific performance in
future periods. As pant of the analysis, the Company also considers fair value determinations for certain reporting units
that have been made at various points throughout the current and prior year for other purposes.

Carrying Value of Invesements.  We periodically evaluale our investments (o determine if decreases in fair value
below our cost bases are other than temporary. If a decline in fair value 15 determined to be other than femporary, we are
required to reflect such decline in our consolidated statement of operations. Other than temporary declines in fair value of
our cost investments are recognized on a separate line in our consolidated statement of operations, and other than emporary
declings in fair value of our equity method investments are included in share of eamings (losses) of affiliates in our
consolidated statement of operations.

The primary factors we consider in our determination of whether declines in fair value are other than temporary are
the length of time that the fair value of the investment is below our carrying value; the severity of the decline; and the
financial condition, operating performance and near term prospects of the investee. Inaddition, we consider the reason for
the decline in fair value, be it general market conditions, indusiry specific or investee specific; analysis' ratings and
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estimaies of 12 month share price targets for the investee; changes in stock price or valuation subsequent to the balance
sheet date; and our intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in far
value, Fair value of our publicly traded cost and equity investments is based on the market prices of the investments at the
balance sheet date. We estimate the fair valve of our non-public cost and equily invesimenis using & variety of
methodologies, including cash flow mualtiples, discounted cash flovw, per subscriber values, or values of comparable public
or privale businesses. Impairmenis are calculated as the difference between our carrying value and our estimate of fair
value. As our assessment of the fair value of our investments and any resulting impairment losses and the timing of when
to recognize such charges requires a high degree of judgment and includes significant estimates and assumptions, actual
results could differ materially from our estimates and assumptions,

Ouwr evaluation of the fair value of our invesimenis and any resuliing impairment charges are made as of the most
recent balance sheet date. Changes in fair value subsequent o the balance sheet date due to the factors described above are
possible. Subsequent decreases in fair value will be recognized in our consolidated statement of operations in the period
inwhich they occur to the extent such decreases are deemed to be other than temporary. Subsequent inereases in fair value
will be recognized in our consolidated stalement of operations only upon our ultimate disposition of the investment.

Usefid Life of Broadeast/Transmission System.  SIRIUS XMs satellite system includes the costs of satellite
construction, launch velicles, launch insurance, capitalized interest, spare satellites, terrestrial repeater network and
satellite uplink facilities. SIRIUS XM monitors its satellites for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset is not recoverable,

SIRIUS XM operates five in-orbit Sirius satellites, FM-1, FM-2, FM-3, FM-5 and FM-6. The FM-1 and FM-2
safellites were launched in 2000 and reached the end of their depreciable lives in 2013, but are still in operation. SIRIUS
XM estimates that its FM-3 and FM-3 satellites, launched in 2000 and 2009, respectively, will operate effectively through
the end of their depreciable lives in 2015 and 2024, respectively. SIRIUS XM's FM-6 satellite that was launched i 2013
15 currently used as an m-orbit spare that i1s planned to start full-time operation in 2015 and is expected to operate effectively
through the end of its depreciable life in 2028, SIRIUS XM operates four in-orbit XM satellites, XM-1, XM-3, XM-4 and
XM-5. SIRIUS XM’s XM-1 satellite reached the end of its depreciable life in 2013 and will be de-orbited in 2013, SIRIUS
XM estimates that its XM-3 and XM-4 zatellites launched in 2005 and 2006, respectively, will reach the end of their
depreciable lives in 2020 and 2021, respectively. The XM-5 satellite that was launched in 2000 18 used as an in-orbit spare
and is expected o reach the end of its depreciable life in 2025,

SIRIUS XM's in-orbil satellites may experience component failures which could adversely affect their useful hife.
SIRIUS XM continues 1o monitor the operating condition of its in-orbit satellites. If events or circumstances indicate that
the depreciable lives of its in-orbil satellites have changed, the depreciable life will be modified accordingly. If SIRIUS
XM were to revise its estimates, depreciation expense would change. For example, a 109 decrease in the expected
depreciable lives of satellites and spacecrafl control facilities during 2014 would have resulied in approximately $28
million of additional depreciation expense,

Income Taxes. 'We are required to estimate the amouni of tax payable or refundable for the current year and the
deferred income tax liabilities and assets for the future tlax consequences of events that have been reflected in our financial
slalemenis or fax refurns for each taxing junsdiction in which we operate. This process requires our management (o make
Judgrents regarding the iming and probability of the ultimate tax impact of the various agreements and transactions that
we enter into. Based on these judgments we may record tax reserves or adjustments to valuation allowances on deferred
tax assets to refleet the expected realizability of fulure tax benefits, Actual income taxes could vary from these estimates
due to future changes in income tax law, significant changes in the jurisdictions in which we operate, our inability to
generate sufficient future taxable income or unpredicted resulis from the final determination of each year's lability by
taxing authorities. These changes could have a significant impact on our financial position.

lis of Operations - in
Siring XM Holdings Ine.  SIRIUS XM broadeasts its music, sports, entertainment, comedy, talk, news, traffic and

weather channels, as well as nfotainment services, i the United States on a subsceription fee basis through s two
proprietary satellite radio systems. Subscribers can also receive music and other channels, plus features such as Sirius XM

F-16



On Demand and MySXM, over the Internet, including through applications for mobile devices, SIRIUS XM also provides
connected vehicle services which are designed to enhance the safety, security and driving experience for vehicle operators
while providing marketing and operational benefits 1o automakers and their dealers. Subscribers to SIRIUS XM's
connected vehicle services are not included in SIRIUS XM's subscriber count or subseriber-based operating metrics,

SIRIUS XM has agreemenis with every major automaker ("OEMs") to offer satellite radios in their vehicles from
which it acquires the majority of their subscribers. SIRIUS XM also acquires subseribers through marketing 1o owners and
lessees of vehicles that include factory-installed satellite radios that are not currently subscribing to SIRTUS XM's services,
Additionally, SIRIUS XM distribules its radios through retail locations nationwide and through its website, Satellite radio
services are also offered to customers of certain daily rental car companies. SIRIUS XM's primary source of revenue is
subscription fees, with most of s cusiomers subscribing on an annual, semi-annual, quarierly or monthly basis, SIRIUS
XM also derives revenue from other subscription related fees, the sale of advertising on select non-music channels, the
direct sale of satellite radios, aceessonies, and other ancillary services, such as its Backseat TV, data, traffic, and weather
serviees, SIRIUS XM is a separate publicly traded company and additional information about SIRIUS XM can be obtained
through its website and its public filings.

As of December 31, 2014, SIRIUS XM had approximately 27.3 million subscribers of which 22.5 million were self-
pay subscribers and 4.8 million were paid promotional subscribers. These subscriber totals include subscribers under
regular pricing plans; discounted pricing plans; subscribers that have prepaid, incloding payments either made or due from
automakers for subscriptions included in the sale or lease price of a vehicle; subscribers o SIRIUS XM Internet services
who do not also have satellite radio subscriptions; and certain subscribers to SIRIUS XM's other ancillary services,

We acquired a controlling inierest in SIRIUS XM on January 18, 2003 and applied purchase accounting and
consolidated the results of SIRIUS XM from that date. See additional discussion about the application of purchase
aceounting in note 3 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Previous to the acquisition of our controlling
interest we mamtained an mvestment in SIRTUS XM accounted for using the equity method, For companson purposes we
are presenting the stand alone results of SIRIUS XM prior to any purchase accounting adjustments in the curment vear for
a discussion of the operations of SIRIUS XM. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, see the reconciliation of
the results reported by SIRIUS XM to the results reported by Liberty included below. For the vear ended December 31,
2012, SIRIUS XM was treated as an equity method affiliaie so the resulis reported by SIRTUS XM were noi consolidated.
Additionally, as of December 31, 2004, there 15 an approximate 44% noncontrolling interest in SIRTUS XM, and the net
eamings of SIRIUS XM atributable to such noncontrolling interest is eliminated through the noncontrolling interest line
item in the consolidated statement of operations,
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SIRIUS XM's stand alone operating resulis were as follows:

Years ended December 31
2014 2013 02
amsonnts in millions

SUbSCIIDET FEVEIIUE . .. oo v vt e e e s s s e sma e e e ra st a e r s e $ 3,554 3,285 2,963
L 627 514 439

I T 4,181 3,799 3,402
Operating expenses (exclu:hng stock- bmsedt.ampenmmn included h-clm.j:
Cost of subscriber services . Caa P P (1,592) (1,380 (1,218)
Subscriber acquisilion COSIS ..ot it i e i e e e e (493) {496) {475)
Other operating ¢xpenses (54) (31) (42)

Selling, general and administrative expenses . . (578) {505) (4635)

Adjusted OIBDA ... ... ... .. 1,464 1,367 1,202
Stock-based COMPENSAION .. .00 v et e aa e s s e nasarnraas {7%) (] (64)
Drepreciation and amomizalion . .. oL ... o i e (266) {253) (266)

Operaling MCOMS .. ... ... i $ 1,120 1,045 B72

Swbscriber revenue includes subseription, activation and other fees. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
subscriber revenue increased 8% and 11%, ru.'\]x:'cli\ru.lyr as compared to the prior year periods. The current year increase
was primanly atinbutable to a 6% increase in the daily weighted average number of subscribers, the inelusion of a full
vear of subscription revenue generated by SIRIUS XM's connected vehicle business and the increase in certain
subscription rates beginning in January 2014, These increases were partially offset by subscription discounts and limited
channel line-up plans offered through customer acquisition and retention programs, a change in an agreement with an
automaker and a rental car company and an increasing number of lifetime subscription plans that have reached full revenue
recognition, The prior year increase was primanly altributable to a 9% increase i the daily weighted average number of
subscribers, the impact of the increase in centain subscription rates begimning in January 2012 as more subscribers migrated
io the higher rate, and an increase in subscriptions {o premium services, premier channels and Internel streaming, as well
as the inclusion of connected vehicle subscription revenue in 2013, These increases were partially offset by subscription
dizcounts offered through customer acquisition and retention programs and an increasing number of lifetime subscripiion
plans that have reached full revenue recognition.

Cvher revenue mcludes advertising revenue, equipment revenue, rovalty revenue fees and other ancillary revenue, For
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2013, other revenue increased 22% and 17%, respectively, as compared to the
corresponding prior year periods. The most significani change in other revenue during both years was the resull of an
increase in the rate charged to SIRIUS XM and passed through to subscribers for the U8, Music Royalty Fee, which
increased to 12.5% m 2013, which was compounded by an increase in the number of subscnibers.

Cast of subscriber services includes revenue share and royalties, programming and content Costs, CUSIONKT Service
and billing expenses and other ancillary cosis associated with providing the satellite radio service. The cost of subscriber
services increased 15% and 13% for the vears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as compared to the
corresponding prior year periods and slightly increased as a percentage of olal revenue during 2014, The increases were
primarily due 1o increases in the revenue share and royalties of 209 and 23%; in 2014 and 2013, respectively, as compared
to the corresponding prior year periods. The increase in both years was attributable to increased revenues subject to rovalty
and/or revenue sharng amangements, and a 5.6% increase and a 12.5% mercase in the statutory rovalty rate for the
performance of sound recordings during 2014 and 2013, respectively. Additionally, customer service and billing expense
increased 15% and 934 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as compared io the corresponding
prior vear periods. The current year increase was primarily due to the inclusion of a full year of costs associated with
SIRIUS XM's connected vehicle services business, higher subscriber volume driving increased subscriber contacts and
increased bad debt expense. The increase in the prior year was primarily due to investment in cuslomer service experience
which resulted in higher spend on customer service agents, staffing and training. Additionally, higher subscriber volunme
drove increased subscriber contacts, increased bad deld expense and higher technology costs.
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Subscriber acquisition costs include hardware subsidies paid to radio manufaciurers, distribulors and automakers;
subsidies paid for chip sets and certain other components used in manufacturing radios; device royalties for certain radios
and chip sets; commissions paid to awtomakers and retailers; product warranty obligations; freight; and provisions for
inventory allowances atinbutable to inventory consumed in OEM and refail distribution channels. The majority of
subscriber acquisition costs are incurred and expensed in advance of, or concurrent with, acquiring a subscriber. For the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 subscriber acquisition costs decreased less than 1% and increased 4%,
respectively, and slightly decreased as a percentage of total revenue, as compared 1o the comesponding periods in the prior
year, The decrease iy the current year was primarily due to improved OEM subsidy rates per vehicle and a change in a
coniract with an avtomaker which decreased subscriber acquisition costs, The decrease was partially offset by inereased
subsidy costs related 1o a larger number of satellite radio installations in new vehicles. The increase in 2013 was primarily
a resuli of higher subsidies from increased OEM installations occurring in advance of acquiring the subscriber.

her aperating expense includes engincenng, design and development costs. For the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013, other operating expense increased 6% and 21%, respectively, but remained relatively flat as a percentage of total
revenue, The increase in the cument year was driven primanly by the inclusion of a full year of costs associated with
SIRIUS XM's connected vehicle services business and higher personnel costs, The increase during the prior year was
driven primarily by higher product development costs, costs related to enhanced subscriber features and service
functionalify.

Selling, geweral and administrative expense includes costs of advertising, media and production, including
promotional events and sponsorship, finance, legal, human resources and information technology. For the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, selling, general and administrative expense increased 14% and 996, respectively, but slightly
increased and decreased a percentage of toial revenue, respectively, as compared to the corresponding prior year periods.
For hoth periods, the increase was primanly due to additional subscriber communications and retention programs
associated with a greater number of subscribers and promotional trials and higher information technology costs,
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The following tables reconcile the resulis reported by SIRIUS XM, used for companison purposes above to
understand their operations, to the results reporied by Liberty for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013;

Year emled December 31, 20014
As reportel Furchase
hy SIRIUS Accoumn As pepinrted

by Liberty
5 31514
627
4,181 (40) 4,141
Operating expenses (excluding stock-based compensation included below):
Cost of subseriBer SEVICES. ... ...ttt (1,592) 42 {1,550)
Subscriber acquIBItIN COBIS . . . ... ouiiir it iiia it aa st ananas ooo: {493) - (493)
Other operafing SXPEMEES .. ... 0 ittt e it it ia it b ie ey baaas (54} — {34)
Selling, general and administrative expenses ... . ..o (578) — (578)
Adjusted OIBDA 1,464 2 1,466
Stock-based compensation . . ... (78) {70} (148)
Depreciation and amorization . . {266) {48) (314)
OPErRINE IMCOMIE . . ..t v s e s et e s ie s ie s e st s asstinsnaraneras b 1,120 (116) 1,004
Year emled December 31, 2003
Elimination
For Equity

As reporied Parchase Mt hoel
iy SIRITUS Accounting  Accomnfing  As reported

XA Adj {17 days) by Lilserty
SUDSCHTET FEVEMUE . ..o v vttt ie ettt is e iiinaasiieeineaes k3 3,285 (%) (146 3,131
LS g T O A A S s14 — {20} 494
Tolal revenue, A 3,799 (8) (166) 3625
Operating expenses (excluding stock-based compensation included
below):
o8l OF SUbSGHBEr SEIVIGES . - ...t ettt e 1,380) 12 &0 {1,308)
Subscriber aequisition cosis . {496) {15) 20 {491)
Other operating expenses . ... ... . oo (51) R 3 (48)
Selling, gencral and administrative EXPENSes ... ..u v e e, (505) (6 22 (48%)
Adivsted OIBDA ..ottt 1,367 (17} (61) 1,289
Stock-based COMPENSAION .. ..o ou v ivenaeiercanaiinacanacs {6%) {67} 3 {133)
Depreciation and amonization . . (253) ATy 12 {278)
Operaling income $ 1,045 {121) (46} 878
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

We are exposed to market risk in the normal course of busimess due 0 our ongoing investing and linancial activities
and the conduct of operations. Market risk refers to the nisk of loss ansing from adverse changes in stock prices and inferest
rates. The risk of loss can be assessed from the perspective of adverse changes in fair values, cash flows and future earnings.
We have established policies, procedures and internal processes governing our management of market nsks and the use of
financial instruments o manage our exposure o such risks.

We are exposed to changes in iderest rates pnmanly as a result of our borrowing and investment activities, which
include investments in fined and floating rate debt instruments and borrowings used to maintain liquidity and to fund
business operations. The nature and amount of our long-term and short-term debi are expecied o vary as a resuli of fuiure
requirenents, market conditions and other factors. We manage our exposure to interest rates by maintaining what we
believe 15 an appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debt. We believe this best protects us from interest rate risk. We
have achieved this mix by (i) issuing fixed rate debt that we believe has a low stated interest rate and significant term 1o
maturity, (i) issuing variable rate debt with appropriate maturitics and interest rates and (ili) entering into interest rate
swap arrangements when we deem appropriate.

As of December 31, 2014, our debt is comprised of the following amounis:

Variabbe rate debi Fived rate debi
Principal  Weighied avg Principal  Weighted avg
amommt interesi rafe amount interest raie
dollar amsounts in millions
SIRIUS XM, ...t innr e irinannrnnnans 5 380 14% 5 4,163 5.5%
Corporate and Other . .................... 348 1.9% 1,(HH0 L4%

The Company is exposed io changes in stock prices primarily as a resull of our significant holdings in publicly traded
securifies. We continually monitor changes in stock markets, in general, and changes in the stock prices of our holdings,
specifically. We believe that changes in stock prices can be expected to vary as a result of general markel conditions,
technological changes, specific industry changes and other factors. We periodically use equity collars and other financial
instruments to manage market risk associated with certain investment positions. These instruments are recorded at fair
value based on option pricing models,

At December 31, 2014, the fair value of our AFS equity securities was S816 million. Had the market price of such
securities been 108 lower al December 31, 2014, the aggregate value of such securities would have been 582 million
lower, Additionally, our stock in Live Nation (an equity method affiliate) is & publicly raded security which is not reflected
at fair value i our balance sheet. This secunty 15 also subject to market nsk that 15 not direetly reflected in our financial
statements.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The consolidated financial statements of Liberty Media Corporation are filed under this [tem, beginning on Page F-
25, The financial statement schedules required by Regulation S-X are filed under Item 15 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure,

None,



Controls and Procedures.

In accordance with Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the
supervision and with the participation of management, including iis chief executive officer and principal sccounting and
financial officer {the "Executives™), of the effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Execulives concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of December 31, 20014 1o provide reasonable assurance that information required 1o be
disclosed in its reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time penods specified i the Secunitics and Exchange Commission's rules and forms,

See page F-23 for Management's Report on fetevnal Control Over Finaneial Reporting.

See page F-24 for Report af Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for their aftestation regarding our intemnal
control over financial reporting,

There has been no change in the Company’s internal conirol over financial reporiing that occurred duning the three
months ended December 31, 2004 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, its intemal
control over financial reporting.

Other Information.

Nane.
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Liberty Media Corporation’s (the "Company™) management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
intemal conirol over the Company's financial reporiing, as such term is defined in Rule 13a - 15(f) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for exiernal purposes
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amernica. Because of inherent
limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

The Company's management assessed the effecivensss of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2014, using the criteria in Mermal Conrvol-Integrated Framework {1992), 1ssued by the Commitiee of Sponsoning
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation the Company’s management believes that, as of
December 31, 2004, its internal control over financial reporting is effective.

The Company's independent registered public accounting firm audited the consolidated financial statements and

related disclosures in the Annual Report on Form 10-K and have issued an audit report on the effectiveness of the
Company’s intemal control over financial reporting. This repont appears on page F-24 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Liberty Media Corporation:

We have audited Liberty Media Corporation and subsidianes” (ihe Company) internal control over financial reporiing as
of December 31, 2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework {1992}, issued by the
Committee of Sponsonng Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0). The Company's management is
responsible for maintaimng effective infernal conirol over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, incleded in the accompanying Management's Report on Intermal Control Over
Financial Reporiing. Our responsibility is o express an opinion on the Company s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
intemal control over financial reporting was maimtamed in all matenal respects. Our audil included obtaining an
unrderstamding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operaling effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our andit also incloded
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our awdit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s intemal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
a5 necessary o permil preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthonzed acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a matenal effect on the financial
slalements.

Because of its mherent limitations, intermal control over financial reporting may not prevent or defect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Liberty Media Corporation and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective intermal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on entenia established in fnfernal Comtrol — Integrated Framework
{1992} issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0),

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Liberty Media Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 20014 and 2013,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive eamings (loss), cash Mows, and equity for each of
the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, and our report dated February 26, 2015 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements,

s/ KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 26, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Liberty Media Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Liberty Media Corporation and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive
eamings (loss), cash flows, and equity for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2014, These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s management, Our responsibility 15 to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our awdits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the andil 1o obiain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial stalement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Liberty Media Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with
U5, generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United
Stutes), Liberty Media Corporation and subsidiaries” internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014,
based on criteria established in Internal Comtral - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoning
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0), and our report dated Febroary 26, 2015 expressed an ungualified
opinton on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporiing.

s/ KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 26, 2015



LIBERTY MEDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIMARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2004 and 2013

2013

amounts in millions

4
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalenmis . ... ... i et i £ 681
Trade and other receivables, net Crei 235
Short term marketable securilies (Mo 6) .o L. L. i 199
Deferred income tax agsets (note 11). . ... oo iie it in it it aiasaaais 931
Other current assets - 298
TOIA] CUITEIEASSES . o 2 vt e vt e s sen ea e e et it st s s ma s be e et e e 2,344
Investments in available-for-sale secunties and other cost investments (noe 7). ... ... .. .. Rl
Investments in affiliates, accounted for using the equity method (note 8) . ............... 851
Property and equipment, b COBt. ... ..o iveiavuiivanaianavaratinasasatnnatasscnnana 2,257
Accumulated deprecialion .. ... ... iiii i i i e e e i e (501}
1756
Iniangible assets not subject o amorization {nofe %)
6 b | | S e R ) s A ) s e S e e 14,345
o B 600
i 1 A S S 1,073
24,018
Intangible assets subject to amortization, net (note 93 1,004
Other assets, al cost, net of accumulated amortization - 326
B T . . L

See accompanying notes (o consolidated financial stalements.
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LIBERTY MEIMA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDMARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued)

December 31, 2004 and 2013

Lighilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . .. ... oo oo i i i i
Current portion of debt (note 10) g
LB B el 1 e e e (o A ) ) s A P s S P e e
Other current Babilities. . .. ... cco v i iiiinic i ia it rias e na s b i b
Total cument HaBilIEs. .. ..o ovn e e i s e
Long-term deb, including £9%0 million and $1,002 million measured af fur valoe,
respectively (note 1) ..o i
Deferred income tax liabilities (note 11) -
L0 T ]
b e T T R e e e L e O e S o GO Ar o e
Stockholders’ equity (notes 12,14 and 16):
Prefermed stock, $.01 par value, Authonzed 50,000,000 shares; no shares ssued . ... ..., ...,
Series A common stock, 8,01 par value, Authorized 2,000,000,000 shares; issued and
outstanding 104,505,449 and 104,421,488 shares at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
rEspeclively L. il
Series B common stock, $.01 par value, Authorized 75,000,000 shares; ssued and
oulstanding 9,873,972 and 9,876,178 shares al December 31, 2004 and 2013,
LT
Series C common stock, .01 par value, Authonzed 2,000,000,000 shares; issued and
oculstanding 228 781 948 shares at December 31, 2014 and retroactive issued and
oulstanding 228,595,332 shares at December 31,2013 . ...
Addional paid-incapital ... oo o o
Accumulated other comprehensive earnings (loss), net of taxes
Fetammed SATIINES . .. ..o e e s ce st e e e
Total stockholders’ equity ... oo
Noncontrolling interests in equity of subsidianies. . ............. ..o i ey,
L e e e = e SO B S S0 DR e 0 DO LHE0 D0 S0 e S0 D0 SN0 Cona S0 0o S0n D St
Commitments and contingencies (note 17)
Total liabilities &and SqUILY . .. .o v v e et i et st e

See accompanying notes 10 consolidated financial stalements.

F-27

2014

2013

amannis in mfllio s

2

21
11,416
11,398

8,778

20,176

§ 31,207

670
M
1,575
150
3,172

4,778
2,312
398
10,660

2
2,215
4
11,859
14,081
9,501

23,882

34,542



LIBERTY MEIMA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDMARIES
Consolidated Statements Of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

2014

2013

2012

amonnis i millions,

except per share amounts

Revenue:
Subscriber revenue . . 5 3514 3,131 —
Odther revenue ... ... 936 871 368
TOIAL FEVEIIE L & o ot s e e et et e ettt ettt s e e e e e 4,450 4,002 368
Operating costs and expenses, including stock-based compensation (note 2):
Cost of subscriber services (exclusive of deprecintion shown separately below):
Revenue and share royalties .. o o oo 10 679 —
Programming and COMERE .. .. ..ot e 262 243 —
Customer service and BIllIng . . .. ... o i a i 373 308 —
OHIET . L i e e e 135 104 —
Subscriber acquIsItIoN COBIS . .. ... i. i it i i i st s it s i i s e 493 491 —
Otther operating expenses . .. ... ... i 304 284 230
Selling, general and administrative 73 64 176
Depreciation and amortization . . . . .. P . hdee B e e e B R EE e i 359 315 42
3,609 3,188 448
Operating income (JoSS) .. ... ..o i e i .23 | 814 {80)
Other income {(expense):
T {255) (132) ()]
Dividend and inlerest IEOME ... ..o v uuenet e e ieia e 27 48 76
Share of eamings (losses) of affiliates, net{note 8. .. .. ... iviiiiiiaianans {113) (32) 1,346
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial instraments, net (nole 6). .. . . 3R 295 230
Gains (losses) on transactions, net (notes 3, 12) .. ... ... — 7978 22
Other, net (otes &, 170, . oot e i e (77) {115) 42
{380) 8042 1,709
Eammngs (loss) from continuing operations before meome taxes .. ............... 461 #8560 1,629
Income tax (expense) benefit (mote 11h. ..ot in i iai s iee e anins {6 135 (469
Net camnings {loss) from continuing operations 395 8991 1,160
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes (notes 1, 4) .. ... ... — — 252
NGt CAMINES (JOSEN, 2 4o vt v e e s e e s e e st s n s s e e e e 395 8991 1412
Less net camings {loss) atinibutable to the nonconirelling interests .. ... ......... 217 211 (2)
Net eamnings (loss) attributable to Liberly stockholders . ... ... .. .. ... § 178 8,780 1414
Basic net eamings {loss) from continuing operations attributable to Liberty
stockholders per commaon share (Mole 21, ... oo i e £ 0352 24,73 e |
Diluted net carnings (loss) from continuing operations atiributable to Liberty
stockholders per comman share (o0 21, ... oo ie i e e £ 052 24.46 312
Basic net earings (loss) atiributable to Liberly siockholders per common share
L e Py P e A e o) O ) o o e £ 032 24.73 392
Diluted net earnings (loss) attributable to Liberty stockholders per common share
T o . $ 052 2446 3.80

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY MEIMA CORPORATION AND SUBSIIMARIES
Consolidated Statements OFf Comprehensive Earnings (Loss)

Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Nel earnings {loss) £

Other comprehensive eamings (Joss), net of taxes:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) anising during the period ..........0veeinnn
Recognition of previously unrealized {gains) losses on available-for-sale
L 1T O O S P
Share of other comprehensive eamings (loss) of equity affilimtes. . ... ... .. ...,
Other comprehensive earnings (loss) from discontinued operations.

(Other comprehensive eamings (088) ... ..o iiieiiiiaiiiiiiianaiaianaianas

Comprehensive eamings (J0S8). . ... ..ot e i
Less comprehensive earmings (loss) attributable 1o the noncontrolling interests ...

2014 203 2012
amounts in millisns
395 8,991 1412
(8) 10 6)]
o (25) (13}
) 4 o
= = (i
(17 (11 (17}
378 8,980 1,395
217 211 (2)
161 5,768 1,397

Comprehensive eamings (loss) attributable to Liberty stockholders. .. ............. £

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LIBERTY MEDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements Of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2004, 2013 and 2012

Cash Mows from operating activities:
Miet eamings (loss) . e
Audjustments »mmmeml cammgswn.cl uahpmvldmbyo;ummg acm'nm.

Earmings fom discortmued operations . o

Depreciation anda:mﬂumm

Cash payments for stock-based compensation . .
Excess tax benefit froms stock-based compemamn
Share of {earnings) loss of affiliates, met
Realized and nnrealized {gains) losses on financial instrements, re1,
Noncash interest expense . = 5
Lnsses{guns)onhmc‘nw net ..
Losses {gains) on dilution of investment in affili
Losses {gains) on early extingmishment of debt . .. ... e
Deferred income tax expense (benefith ... ... Peeratats
Other charges {credits), met. ...
Changes in operating assets and linbilities
Current and other assets .. ..
Payables and other labalities .
Net cash pmﬂtd{mﬂﬂhyopmu:;admhcs
Cash Mows from mvesting activities:
Cash (paid) for acquisitions, net of cash acquired .
Cash procesds fram dispositions of myvestments .
Proceeds (payments) fom senlement of financial i msu'umcms. r.c1
Investments m and loans 1o cost and equily invesles .
Repayment of loans ard other cash receipts from cost a.l:d equrr)' mveslees
Remm of investment in equity method affilinte, .. .. ... ..o
Capital expended for property and equipment . .
Purchases. of short term mvestmenis andoﬂlenmrttlnhle s:mmlu
‘Sales of short tenm investmenis and oiher marketable secunties. .. ...
Net (merease) decrease in restricted eash. .
Other investing activities, net .. .. .oooeon s
Met cash provided (esed) by investing setivities ... ... oo i i i i i s aaaas
Cash flows from I'|11nn¢i.ﬂg activities:
Bomowisgs of dehd. .
Repayments of debd . .
Repurchases nlleerlyl:nmmn:wulf _____
Cash provided by the Broadbaed Spin-Off . .
Cash meluded mul.lnns!lr&:n.ﬁl:llnn .....
Shares issued by subsidiary. .
Shares repurchased by m’hudmry .............
Proceeds (paynwnts) ﬁemmwma.ﬂd s.ctthm:nuol‘ linam:n iEstnEnsEnts, Ll .
lasuance of warranls. . g .
Tames paid in lew nfahm:s |ss1.|.=d i'm s1o-uk—basedoo|mcruallm1
Excess tax henefit from stock-based compensation .
Other finapcing sctivitics, pet .
Met cash provided {esed) hy ﬁnu.emg aﬂmun
Met cash provided (used) by discontipued operations:
ﬁ.ll:pmvin‘hd[la:djhyopentingaﬂiviﬁu................................................
Cash provided (used) by investing activities .,
Cash provided (ised) by firancing activities . . .
Change in available cash held by discontineed wmllvur.s. 5
Met cash provided (esed) by discontineed operations |
Net increase (decreasz) in cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents al begmuing of penod _ . . L
Cash and cash equivalemtsatendofperiod . .. ... ..o o i e e

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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ameuanls in millions
(see nole 6

385 8,00 1,412
— - (252)
359 315 42
7 193 46
2 ] {1
[E1] i) (12
13 52 i1.346)
(38) (295 (230
(34) 162} (2)
— (7.878) {22)
78 b1] °
— 21 -
91 [{kr] 65
17 (3 [E1}]
(74) 187 18
33 (78 33
1,125 1,256 25
(47 (7 =
247 &0 Tab
(72) {5y (%
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42 1
- -_ 165
{154y {207y {16
{360y (178) (393)
176 porl ) o215
- - T
(20) 4] (5)
[SANN]) (2764 il
2,738 5,023 -
{1,936 (2,779) (750
= {140y (323)
39 — —
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2157 (1,602) -
— (209 {54)
— 170 —
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LIBERTY MEDA CORPORATION AND SUBSIMARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

{1} Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Liberty Media Corporation (formerly named Liberty
Spinco, Inc.; see discussion below pertaining to the Starz Spin-Off (defined below)) ("Liberty™ or the "Company" unless
the comtext otherwise requires ) represent a consolidation of certain media, communications and enfertainment related assels
and businesses. All significant ntercompany accounts and transactions have been elimmated in the consolidated financial
slalements.

In September 2011, Liberty Interactive Corporation ("Liberty Interactive” and formerly named Liberty Media
Corporation) completed the split-oif of its former wholly-owned subsidiary (then known as Libery Media Corporation)
from its Liberty Interactive tracking stock group {the "Split-Of™ ).

In January 2013, the entity then known as Liberty Media Corporation (now named Starz) spun-off (the “Starz Spin-
Oy us then-former wholly owned subsidiary, now known as Liberly Media Corporation, which, at the time of the Starz
Spin-Oif, held all of the businesses, assets and liabilities of Starz not associated with Starz, LLC (with the exception of the
Starz, LLC office building). The transaction was effected as a pro-rata dividend of shares of Liberty to the stockholders of
Starz. Due to the relative significance of Liberty fo Starz {the legal spinnor) and senior management’s confinued
involvement with Liberty following the Starz Spin-OfT, Liberty is being treated as the "accounting successor” to Starz for
Mnancial reporting purposes, notwithsianding the legal form of the Starz Spin-Off previously described. Therefore, the
historical financial statements of the company formerly known as Liberty Media Corporation continue to be the historical
financial statements of Liberty, and Starz, LLC is presented as discontinued operations for all periods prior to the
completion of the Starz Spin-Off. Therefore, for purposes of these consolidaled financial statements, Liberty 15 treated as
the spinnor for purposes of discussion and as a practical matter for describing all the historical information contained
herein.

During 2014, Liberty's board approved the issuance of shares of its Series C common stock to holders of its Series
A and Senes B common stock, effected by means of a dividend. On July 23, 2014, holders of Series A and Series B
common stock as of 5:00 p.m,, New York City, time on July 7, 2014, the record date for the dividend, received a dividend
of two shares of Series C common stock for each share of Series A or Series B common stock held by them as of the record
date, The impact of the Series C common issuance has been reflected retroactively in these consolidated financial
statements due to the treatment of the dividend as a stock split for accounting purposes. Additionally, in connection with
the Series C common stock issuance and the Broadband Spin-Of (defined below), outstanding Series A common stock
warrants have been adjusted. See note 10 for further discussion regarding the warrants. There were 21,085 900 warrants
with a strike price of §64.46 outstanding at December 31, 2014,

On November 4, 2014, Liberty completed the spin-off o its stockholders common stock of a newly formed company
called Liberty Broadband Corporation (“Liberty Broadband" ) (the “Broadband Spin-Of1"). Shares of Liberty Broadband
were distnbuted to the sharcholders of Liberty as of a record date of 5:00 pm., New York City time, on October 29, 2004,
Liberty Broadband is comprised of, among other things, (i) Libeny's former interest in Charter Communications, Inc.
{“Charter™), (i} Liberty's former subsidiary TruePosition, Inc. (“TroePosition™), (i) Liberly's former minority equily
investment in Time Warner Cable, Inc. ("Time Wamer Cable™), {(iv) certain deferred 1ax liabilities, as well as liabilities
related to Time Warner Cable call options and (v) inifial indebledness, pursuant to margin loans entered into prior to the
completion of the Broadband Spin-OfT. Prior to the transaction, Liberty Broadband borrowed funds under margin loans
and made a final distribution 1o Liberty of approximately $300 million in cash, The Broadband Spin-Off is intended to be
tax-free to stockholders of Liberty. In the Broadband Spin-OfT, record holders of Senes A, Senes B and Senies C common
stock received one share of the corresponding series of Liberty Broadband common stock for every four shares of common
stock held by them as of the record date for the Broadband Spin-Of, with cash paid in liew of fractional shares. The
Company’s former investments i and results of Chanter and Time Wamner Cable are no longer included in the results of
Liberty from the date of the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off forward. Based on the relative sigmificance of
TruePosition o Liberty, the Company concluded that discontinued operations presentation of TruePosition 1s not necessary,
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During August 2014, Liberty Interactive completed the distribution of Liberty TripAdvisor Holdings, Inc. (“Liberty
TripAdvisor”) (the “TripAdvisor Spin-Of"). Following the Splu-Off, Starz Spin-Off, TrpAdvisor Spin-Off and
Broadband Spin-Off, Liberty, Liberty Interactive, Starz, Liberty TripAdvisor and Liberty Broadband operate as separate
publicly traded companies, none of which has any stock ownership, beneficial or otherwise, in the other. In connection
with the Split-Odf, Starz Spin-Off, TripAdvizor Spin-Off and Broadband Spin-Off, Liberty entered into certain agreements
with Liberty Interactive, Starz, Liberty TripAdvisor and Liberty Broadband, respectively, in order to govemn ongoing
relationships between the companies and to provide for an orderly transition. These agreements include Reorganization
Agreements, Services Agreements, Facilities Sharing Agreements, a Lease Agreement (in the case of the Starz Spin-Off
onlyd and with respect o Starz and Liberty Broadband, Tax Sharing Agreements. The Reorganization, Services and
Facilities Shanng Agreements entered into with Liberty Interactive were assigned from Starz to Liberty in connection with
the Starz Spin- (T,

The Reorganization Agreements provide for, among other things, provisions governing the relationships between
Liberty and each of Liberty Interactive, Starz, Liberty TripAdvisor and Liberty Broadband following the Split-OifT, Starz
Spin-Off, TripAdvisor Spin-OfT and Broadband Spin-Off, respectively, including certain cross-indemnities. Pursuant to
the Services Agreements, Libenty provides Liberty Interactive, Starz, Liberty TripAdvisor and Liberty Broadband with
general and administrative services including legal, tax, accounting, treasury and ivestor relations support. Liberty
Interactive, Starz, Liberty TripAdvisor and Liberty Broadband reimburse Liberty for direct, out-of-pockel expenses
incurred by Libeny in providing these services and for Liberty Inferactive’s and Starz's allocable portion of costs associated
with any shared services or personnel based on an estimated percentage of time spent providing services 1o each respective
company. Liberty TripAdvisor and Liberty Broadband reimburse Liberty for shared services and personnel based on a flat
fee. Under the Facilities Shanng Agreements, Liberty shares office space and related amenities with Liberty Interactive,
Starz, Liberty TripAdvisor and Libenty Broadband at Liberty's corporate headquarters. Under these various agreements,
approximately $15 million, $16 million and $10 million of these allocaied expenses were reimbursed to Liberty during the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Under the Lease Agreement, Starz leases its corporate
headguarters from Liberty. The Lease Agreement with Starz for their corporate headguariers requires a payment of
approximately 33 million annually, subject to certain increases based on the Consumer Price Index. The Lease Agreement
expires on December 31, 2023 and contains an extension option,

The Tax Sharing Agreements provide for the allocation and indemnification of tax liabilities and benefils between
Liberty and each of Starz and Liberty Broadband as well as other agreemenis relaied to fax matters. Among other things,
pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreements, Liberty has generally agreed to indemnify Stare and Liberty Broadband for taxes
and losses resulting from the failure of the Starz Spin-OfT and the Broadband Spin-OfT, respectively, to gualify for tax-free
treatment, However, Starz will be responsible for any such taxes and losses related to the Starz Spin-Off which (1) result
primarily from the breach of certain restrictive covenants made by Starz, or (i) result from Section 355(¢) of the Code
applying to the Starz Spin<Off as a result of the Starz Spin-Off being part of a plan {or series of related transactions)
pursuant to which one or more persons acquire a S0-percent or greater interest (measured by vole or value) in the stock of
Starz, and Liberty Broadband will be responsible for any such taxes and losses related to the Broadband Spin-Off which
(1) result primarily from the breach of cerlain restrictive covenants made by Liberty Broadband, or (1) result from
Section 355(¢) of the Code applying to the Broadband Spin-OfT as a result of the Broadband Spin-Off being part of a plan
{or series of related transactions) pursuant o which one or more persons acquire a S0-percent or greater mterest (measured
by vote or value) in the stock of Libenty Broadband. In February 2014, the IRS and Starz entered into a closing agreement
which provides thai the Starz Spin-Off qualified for tax-free treatment to Starz and Liberty. In December 2014, the [RS
completed its review of the Broadband Spin-Off and notified Liberty that it agreed with the nontaxable characterization of
the transaction.

Liberty, through its ownership of interests in subsidiaries and other companies, is primarily engaged in the media,
communicaiions and entertainment indusines primarily in North America. Our significant subsidiaries mnclude Sinus XM
Heldings Inc. and the Atlanta National League Baseball Club, Inc. (the "Adlanta Braves" or "ANLBC"). Our significant
investment accounted for under the equity method of accounting 18 Live Nation Enterfainment, Inc. ("Live Nation").
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(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Casle and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of investments which are readily convertible into cash and have maturities of three months
or less at the time of acquisition.

Receivables

Receivables are reflected net of an allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns, Such allowance aggregated $8
million and $4 million i December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Activity in the year ended December 31, 2014
included an increase of $45 million of bad debt charged to expense and 541 million of write-offs. Activity in the year ended
December 31, 2013 included an increase of 24 million of bad debt charged to expense and $1 million of write-offs. The

amounts charged to bad debt expense and write-offs were less than a million in 2012,
Invesimenis

All marketable equity and debd securities held by the Company are classified as available-for-sale ("AFS™) and are
carried at fair value generally based on quoted market prices. TS, generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP7)
permil entities (o choose (o measure many financial instruments, such as AFS securities, and certain other items at far
value and to recognize the changes n fair value of such instruments in the entity’s statement of operations (the "fair value
option"). Under other relevant GAAF, entities were required to recognize changes in fair value of AFS secunitics in the
balance sheet in accumulated other comprehensive eamings. Liberty has entered info economic hedges for cerlain of iis
non-strategic AFS securities {although such instruments are not accounted for as fair value hedges by the Company).
Changes in the fair value of these economic hedges are reflected in Liberty’s statement of operations as unrealized gains
(losses). In order o better match the changes in fair value of the subject AFS secunties and the changes in fair value of the
comesponding economic hedges in the Company's financial statements, Liberty has elected the fair value option for those
of its AFS securities which it considers to be non-strategic ("Fair Value Option Securities”). Accordingly, changes in the
fair value of Fair Value Option Secunities, as determined by quoted market prices, are reponted in realized and unrealized
gain (losses) on financial instruments in (the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The total value of AFS
securities for which the Company has elected the fair value option aggregated 3745 million and $1,253 million as of
December 31, 20014 and 2013, respectively.

Other mvestments in which the Company's ownership interest is less than 2094 and are not considered marketable
securifies are camed al cost,

For those invesimenis in affiliates in which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence, the equity
method of accounting is wsed. Under this method, the investment, onginally recorded at cost, is adjusted to recognize the
Company’s share of net camings or losses of the affiliate as they occur rather than as dividends or other distributions are
received. Losses are limited to the extent of the Company's investment in, advances to and commitments for the investee.
In the event the Company is unable (o obtain accurate financial information from an equity affiliate in a timely manner,
the Company records its share of eamings or losses of such affiliate on a lag.

Changes in the Company’s proportionaie share of the underlying equity of an equily method investee, which result
from the issuance of additional equity securities by such equity investee, are recognized i the statement of operations
through the other, net line item. To the extent there is a difference between our ownership percentage in the underlying
equity of an equity method investee and our carrying value, such difference s accounted for as if the equity method investee
were a consolidated subsidiary.
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The Company continually reviews its equity investments and its AFS securities which are not Fair Value Securities to
determine whether a decline in fair value below the cost basis is other than temporary. The primary faciors the Company
considers in its determination are the length of time that the fair value of the investment is below the Company's carrying
value; the severity of the decline; and the financial condition, operating performance and near term prospects of the
investee, In addition, the Company considers the reason for the decline in fair value, be it general market conditions,
industry specific or investee specific; analysts” ratings and estimates of 12 month share price targets for the investee:
changes in stock price or valuation subsequent (o the balance sheet date: and the Company's intent and ability to hold the
investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in fair value. If the decline in fair value is deemed to be
other than temporary, the cost basis of the security is written down o fair value. In situations where the fair value of an
investment is not evident due to a lack of a public market price or other factors, the Company uses ils best estimates and
assumplions to armive al the estimated fair value of such investment. The Company's assessment of the foregoing factors
involves a high degree of judgment and accordingly, actual results may differ materially from the Company’s estimates
and judgments. Writedowns for AFS securities which are not Fair Value Option Securities are included in the consolidated
stalemenis of operations a8 other than temporary declines in fair values of invesimenis. Writedowns for equity method
investments are included in share of earnings (losses) of affiliates.

Derivaiive Insirwments and Hedging Aciivities

All of the Company's derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are recorded on the balance
sheet at fair value. If the derivative is designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and
of the hedged item attributable to the hedged nsk are recognized in camings. If the denvative is designated as a cash low
hedge, the effective portions of changes in the fair value of the denvative are recorded in other comprehensive eamings
and are recognized in the statement of operations when the hedged item affects carnings, Ineffective portions of changes
in the fair value of cash flow hedges are recognized in eamings. [f the derivative is not designated as a hedge, changes in
the fair value of the derivative are recognized in earings. None of the Company’s derivatives are currently designated as
hedges.

The fair value of certain of the Company’s denivative instruments are estimated using the Black-Scholes model. The
Black-Scholes model mcorporates a number of variables in determining such fair values, including expected volatility of
the underlying security and an appropriate discount rate. The Company obtained volatility rates from pricing services
based on the expected volatility of the underlying security over the remaining term of the derivative instrument. A discount
rate was obtained at the inception of the derivative instroment and updated each reporting period, based on the Company's
estimate of the discount rate at which 1t could currently seitle the derivative instrument. The Company considered its own
eredit nsk as well as the credit nsk of its counterparties n estimating the discount rate. Considerable management
Judgment was required in estimating the Black-Scholes vanables,

Property and Eguipment
Property and equipment consisted of the following:

Estimated Useful Life December 31, 2004 December 31, 2013
amounts in millions

[E H e S R R Rt A e e R R Ot NA 5 124 59
Buildings and improvements ... .. 10 - 40 years 162 157
Support equipment . ... 3 - 20 years 230 257
Satellite system . .. .............. 215 years 1,590 1,573
Construction in progress. .. ........ NA 151 103

Total property and equipment . . . . & 2,257 2,149




LIBERTY MEIMA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Maotes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Property and equipment, including significant improventents, is stated al cost. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method using estimated useful lives, Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2014, 20103 and
2012 was $200 million, $200 million and £23 million, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2013, SIRTUS
XM capitalized expenditures, including interest, of approximately $87 million related to the construction of one of its
satellites, which was launched and placed inio operation in the fourth quarter of 2013,

Infangible Asseix

Intangible assets with estimable wseful lives are amoriized over their respective esiimated useful hives (o their
estimated residual values, and reviewed for impairment upon certam triggering evenls, Goodwill and other intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives (collectively, "indefinite lived intangible assets™) are not amortized, it instead are tested
for mpairment ai least annually. Our anmual impairment assessment of our indefinite-lived intangible assels is performed
during the fourth quarter of each year.

The Company utilizes a qualitative assessment for determining whether step one of the goodwill impairment analysis
is necessary. The accounting guidance permits entities to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more
likely than not that the fair value of a reporting umi is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it
is necessary to perform the two-step goedwill impairment test, In evaluating goodwill on a qualitative basis the Company
reviews the business performance of each reponiing unit and evaluates other relevant factors as identified in the relevant
aceounting guidance to determine whether it is more likely than not that an indicated impairment exists for any of our
reporting units, The Company considers whether there are any negative macroeconomic conditions, indusiry specific
conditions, market changes, increased competition, increased costs in doing business, management challenges, the legal
environments and how these factors might impact company specific performance in future periods. As pant of the analysis,
the Company alse considers fair value determinations for cerfam reperiing units thai have been made al various points
throughout the current and prior yvears for other purposes.

I a step one test is considered necessary based on the qualitative factors, the Company compares the estimated fair
value of a reporting unit to its carying value, Developing estimates of fair value requires significant judgments, including
making assumptions aboul approprate discount rates, perpetual growth rates, relevant comparable market multiples, public
trading prices and the amount and timing of expected future cash flows. The cash flows employved in Liberty's valuation
analysis are based on management's besi estimaies considering current markeiplace factors and risks as well as assumpiions
of growth rates in future years. There is no assurance that actual results in the future will approximate these forecasts. For
those reporting units whose carrying value exceeds the fair value, a second test is required (o measure the impaimment loss
{the "Step 2 Test™), In the Step 2 Test, the fair value of the reporting unit 15 allocated to all of the assets and liabilines of
the repomnting unit with any residual value being allocated to goodwill, The difference between such allocated amount and
the camrying value of the goodwill is recorded as an impairment charge.

The accounting guidance also permils entities to first perform a qualitative assessment (o determine whether it 18 more
likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset 15 impaired. I7 the qualitative assessment supports that it is more
likely than not that the carrying value of the Company’s indefinite-lived intangible assets, other than goodwill, exceeds its
fair value, then a quantitative assessment s performed, [ the carrying value of an indefmite-lived intangible asset exceeds
its fair value, an impaiment loss is recognized in an amount equal (o that excess.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

The Company periodically reviews the carrying amounts of its property and equipment and its mtangible assets (other
than goodwill and mdefinite-lived intangibles) 1o determine whether current events or circumstances indicate that such
carrying amounis may not be recoverable. If the camrying amouni of the asset group is greater than the expected
undiscounted cash flows to be generated by such asset group, an impaimient adjustment is to be recognized. Such
adjustment is measured by the amount that the carrying value of such asset groups exceeds their fair value. The Company
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generally measures fair value by considering sale prices for similar assets or by discounting estimated future cash flows
using an appropriaie discount rate. Considerable management judgment 1s necessary (o estimate the fair valoe of asset
groups. Accordingly, actual results could vary significantly from such estimates. Asset groups to be disposed of are carned
at the lower of their financial statement carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell,

Noncontrolling Tnteresis

The Company reports noncontrolling interests of subsidiaries within equity in the balance sheet and the amount of
consolidated net income aitributable to the parent and 1o the noncontrolling interest 1s presented m the statement of
operations. Also, changes in ownership inlerests in subsidianes in which the Company mamtains a controlling interest are
recorded in equity.

Revenne Recogniiion

Revenue is recognized as follows:

Revenue from SIRIUS XM subscribers is recognized as it is realized or realizable and eamed. Subscription
fees are recognized as SIRIUS XM's services are provided, Prepaid subscription fees received from certain
aulomakers are recorded as deferred revenue and amontized to revenue ratably over the service period which
commences upon retail sale and activation.

SIRIUS XM recognizes revenue from the sale of advertising as the advertising is broadeasi. Agency fees are
caleulated based on a staled percentage applied to gross billing revenue for advertising inventory and are
reporied as a reduction of advertising revenue. Adventising revenue is recorded gross of revenue share
payments made to cerlain third parties, which are recorded to Revenue share and royalties during the period
in which the adventising is broadcast.

Equipment revenue and royalties from the sale of satellite radios, components and accessories are recognized
upon shipment, net of discounts and rebates. Shipping and handling costs billed (o customers are recorded as
revenue, Shipping and handling costs associated with shipping goods to customers are reported as a
component of Cost of subscriber services,

Certain revenue arrangements contain mulliple products, services and right 1o use assets, such as SIRIUS
XM's bundled subseription plans. The applicable accounting guidance requires that such multiple deliverable
revenue arangements be divided into separate units of accounting if the deliverables in the arrangement meet
certain criteria, Consideration is allocated at the inception of the arrangement to all deliverables based on
their relative selling price, which is determined vsing vendor specific objective evidence of the selling price
of self-pay customers.

SIRIUS XM also eams revenue from U.S. Music Rovalty Fees, which are recorded as revenue and as a
component of Revenue share and royalties expense. Fees received from subscribers for the U5, Music
Royalty Fee are recorded as deferred revenue and amortized to revenue ratably over the service period which
coincides with the recognition of the subscriber’s subscription revenue,

SIRIUS XM revenue is reported net of any taxes assessed by a govemmental authority that is both imposed
on, and concurrent with, a specific revenue-producing transaction between a seller and a customer in the
consolidated statements of operations.

Revenue for ticket sales, local radio and television nights, signage and suites are recognized on a per game
basis during the baseball season based on a pro rata share of total revenue eamed during the entire basehall
season o the fotal number of home games during the season. Concession revenue is recognized as
commissions are camed from the sale of food and beverage at the stadium in accordance with agreements
with the Company's concessions vendors, Major League Baseball (MLB) revenue is earned throughout the
year based on an estimate of revenue generated by MLE on behalf of the 30 MLB clubs through the MLB
Central Fund and MLB Propertics and revenue sharing income or expense.
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In May 2014, the FASB issued new accounting guidance on revenue from contracts with customers. The new guidance
requires an enlity (o recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods
or services o customers. The updated guidance will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP when it
becomes effective and permits the use of either a retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. This guidance 1s
effective for fiscal years, and mterim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2016, The Company
is currently evaluating the effect that the new standard may have on its revenue recognition and has not yet selected a
iransition method but does not believe the standard will significantly impact its financial statements and related disclosures.

Cost of Subscriber Services
Revenne Shave

SIRIUS XM shares a portion of its subscription revenues earned from subscribers with certain automakers. The terms
of the revenue share agreements vary with each automaker, but are typically based upon the earned audio revenue as
reported or gross billed audio revenue. Such shared revenue is recorded as an expense and not as a reduction o revenue.

Programming Cosis

Programming costs which are for a specified number of events are amortized on an event-by-event basis; programming
costs which are for a specified season or period are amortized over the season or period on a straight-line basis. SIRTUS
XM allocates a portion of certain programming costs which are related to sponsorship and marketing activities to Selling,
general and administrative expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreement,

Subscriber Acguisition Cosis

Subscriber acquisition cosis consist of costs incurred to acquire new subseribers and include hardware subsidies pawd
1o radio manufacturers, distributors and avtomakers, including subsidies paid o automakers who include a satellite radio
and a prepaid subscription to SIRIUS XM service in the sale or lease price of a new vehicle; subsidies paid for chip sets
and certain other components used in manufacturing radios; deviee royalties for certain radios and chipseis; commissions
paid to retailers and sutomakers as incentives to purchase, install and activate radios; product warranty obligations; freight;
and provisions for mveniory allowance afiributable (o mventory consumed in SIRIUS XM's aviomaker and retail
distribution channels. Subscriber acquisition costs do not include advertising costs, lovalty payments o distributors and
dealers of radios and revenue share payments to automakers and retailers of radios.

Subsidies paid to radio manufacturers and automakers are expensed upon installation, shipment, receipt of product or
activation and are included in Subscriber acquisifion costs because SIRIUS XM is responsible for providing the serviee to
the customers. Commissions paid to retailers and automakers are expensed upon either the sale or activation of radios.
Chipsets that are shipped to radio manufacturers and held on consignment are recorded as inventory and expensed as
subscriber acquisition costs when placed into production by radio manufacturers. Costs for chip sets not held on
consignment are expensed as subscriber acquisition costs when the automaker confirms receipt.

Advertising Costs
Advertising expense aggregated 5226 million, $181 million and 54 million for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively. Advertising costs are pnmarily atiributable (o costs incurred by SIRIUS XM, Media-related

advertising costs are expensed when advertisements air, and advertising production costs are expensed as ineurred, These
costs are reflected in the Selling, general and administrative expenses line in our consolidated statements of operations.
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Sitock-Based Compensation

As more fully described in note 14, Liberty has granted to its directors, employees and employees of its subsidiaries
options, restricted stock and stock appreciation rights ("SARs") to purchase shares of Liberty common stock {collectively,
“Awvards”). The Company measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for an Award of equity instruments
(such as stock options and restricted stock) based on the grant-date fair value of the Award, and recognizes that cost over
the peried during which the employee is required io provide service (usually the vesting period of the Award). The
Company measures the costof employee services received in exchange for an Award of liability instruments (such as stock
appreciation rights that will be seitled in cash) based on the current fair value of the Award, and remeasures the fair value
of the Award at each reporting date.

Included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations are the following amounis of siock-based
compensation, a portion of which relates to SIRIUS XM as discussed in note 14:

Years ended December 31,
2014 2003 2012
amsmnis in millions

Cost of subscriber services:

Programming and content ... ........ ...l 317 15 —
Customer service and billing . _ . . 5 4 —
L # 7 —
CHhier Operaling EXpense . ... .o.oou e 17 14 —
Selling, general and administrative .. ........... 000000000 170 153 46
5 217 193 46

Incame Taves

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future fax consequences atiributable fo differences between the financial statement carrying value
amaunts and income tax bases of assets and liabilities and the expected benefits of utilizing net operating loss and tax
credil carryforwards, The deferred tax assets and liabilities are caloulated using enacted tax rates in effect for each taxing
Junsdiction in which the company operates for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. Met deferred tax assets are then reduced by a valuation allowance if the Company belicves it more likely than
not such net deferred tax assets will not be realized. The effect on deferred tax assets and habilities of an enacted change
in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

When the tax law requires interest to be paid on an underpayment of income taxes, the Company recognizes interest
expense from the first period the interest would begin accruing according o the relevant tax law. Such interest expense is
included in inferest expense in the accompanying consolidated stalements of operations. Any accrual of penalties related
to underpayment of income tAxes on uncenain tax positions is incleded in other income (expense) in the accompanying
consolidaied statements of operations.
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Met earnings attributable 1o Liberty stockholders is comprised of the following:

Years ended December 31,
w014 2013 2012
amoeants in millions
Eamings (loss) from continuing operations. . . ........... 5 178 8,780 1,160
Eamings (loss) from discontinued operations. .. ......... 58 — - 254

Basic earmings (loss) per common share ("EPS”) is computed by dividing net eamings (loss) by the weighted average
number of common shares that were outstanding for the period at the Company. Diluted EPS presents the dilutive effect
on a per share basis of potential common shares as if they had been converted at the beginning of the periods presented,

Sevies A, Sevies B and Sevies © Liberty Common Stock

The basic and diluted EPS calcolation is based on the following weighted average shares outstanding (WASO0) of
Liberty's common stock. As discussed innote 1, on July 23, 20014 the Company completed a stock dividend of two shares
of Series C common stock for every share of Series A or Series B common stock held as of the record date. Therefore, all
prior period oulstanding share amounts for purposes of the calculation of EPS have been retroactively adjusted for
comparability. Excluded from diluted EPS for the yvears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are 21 million, 17
million and less than a million potential common shares, respectively, due to warranis issued in connection with the Bond
Hedge transaction (see note 10) because their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

Wears ended December 31,
014 2013 2012
number of shares in millions
Basie WASO . ... it e 342 355 361
Potentially dilutive shares. ... ... ... ... ...... . ... 3 4 i1
Dilwted WASD. . ... cviviiiiiinrinnnsiinnnasasanns 345 359 372

Reclasses and adfusiments
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified for comparability with the current year presentation.
Estimates

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with GAAP requires management (o make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
Company considers (i) recurnng and nonrecurnng fair value measurements, (i) accouniing for mcome taxes,
(iii) assessments of ather-than-temporary declines in fair value of its investments and {iv) determination of the useful life
of SIRIUS XM's broadcast/ transmission sysiem to be its most significant estimates.

The Company holds invesiments that are accounted for using the equity method. The Company does not conirol the
decision making process or business management practices of these affiliates. Accordingly, the Company relies on
management of these affiliates to provide it with accurate financial information prepared in accordance with GAAP that
the Company uses in the application of the equity method, In addition, the Company relies on audit reports that are provided
by the affiliates’ independent auditors on the financial statements of such affiliates. The Company is not aware, however,
of any errors in or possible misstatements of the financial information provided by ils equity affiliates that would have a
miaterial effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.
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(3) Sirius XM Radio, Inc. Transactions

On January 18, 2013, Liberty settled a block transaction with a financial institution taking possession of an additional
50 million shares of SIRIUS XM as well as converting its remaming SIRIUS XM Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock,
Series B- 1, par value $0.001 per share, into 1,293,509,076 shares of SIRIUS XM Common Stock. As a result of these two
iransactions Liberty holds more than 50% of the capifal stock of SIRIUS XM and is entitled o voie on any matter, including
the election of directors.  Following the transactions, Liberty designated and STRIUS XM's board of directors appointed
certain directors o SIRIUS XM's hoard of directors and Liberty effectively controls the board as of January 18, 2013, This
resulted in the application of purchase accounting and the consolidation of SIRIUS XM in the first quarter of 2013, Liberty
recorded a gain of approximately $7.5 billion in the first quaner of 2013 associated with application of purchase accounting
based on the difference between fair value and the carrying value of the ownership interest Liberty had in SIRIUS XM
prior to the acquisition of the controlling interest. The gain on the transaction was excloded from taxable income.
Additionally, the difference between the book basis and tax basis of SIRIUS XM, as previously accounied for under the
equity method, was relieved as a result of the transaction. The fair value of our ownership interest previously held ($10,215
million)and the fair value of the initial noncontrolling interest (310,286 million) was determined based on the trading price
{level 1) of SIRIUS XM on the last trading day prior to the acquisition of the controlling interest, Additionally, the
noncontrolling interest includes the fair value of SIRIUS XM's fully vested options {level 2), the fair value of warrants
oulstanding (level 2) and the intrinsic value of a beneficial conversion feature accounied for in purchase accounting,
Following the transaction date SIRIUS XM is a consolidated subsidiary with just less than a 509 noncontrolling interest
accounted for in equity and the consolidated statements of operations. Effective November 15, 2013, SIRIUS XM
completed a corporate reorgamzation whereby SIRIUS XM Holdings Inc. replaced Sinus XM Radio Inc. as its publicly
held comporation, and Sirius XM Radio Inc. became a wholly-owned subsidiary of SIRIUS XM Holdings Inc. and has no
operations independent of ils subsidiary SIRIUS XM Radio Inc.

The final purchase price allocation for SIRIUS XM is as follows (amounts in millions):

Fair value of SIRIUS XM equity inferests .. .....oooveiiniineinnnieanan.. 510,372
Fair value of SIRIUS XM debt securities ... .....ooooiiiiiiiaiaiins 253
Nencontrolling INERESt. ... ..o ettt it i i s 10,841

$ 21,466
Cash and cash equivalents . ... _............... e £ 569
Receivables ..o i e i 210
Property, plant and equipment 1,714
Goodwill .. .. 13,775
FCC Licenses. 8,600
B TS L T 11 S - Lt
Intangible assels subject 10 ANOTHZRTON . ... .. v vus v e n s o s s 930
(iher assels 480
Debt ........ . o {2.490)
REEBEDE DEWBINI .+ -0 000 0010 0t 0000 810 K e 18 R 0 K 4 08 B B e 08 e 0 em 8 e 8 K {1,565)
Deferred income tax habilities, nel ... ... ... {685)
Crhier labilities assumed. ..o o e e e e (1,002)

5 21 466

Goodwill is caleulated as the excess of the consideration transferred over the identifiable net assets acquired and
represents the future economic benefits expected to anse from other intangible assets acquired that do not qualify for
separate recognition, including assembled workforce and noncontractual relatonships. SIRIUS XM applied purchase
accounting for the acquisition of XM Satellite Radio Holdings Inc. in 2008 and has entered into many of its operating
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agreements al market rates in recent years, therefore, the carrying value of the identifiable assets were reflected at amounts
near their fair value in SIRIUS XM's financial statements. Accordingly, a large percentage of Liberty’s purchase price was
allocated to FCC licenses and goodwill. During the year ended December 31, 2013, Liberty adjusted the imtial purchase
price allocation for SIRIUS XM by recording a decrease to the initial deferred tax liability and an offsetting decrease to
goodwill of $227 million, The adjustment was due to the wdentification of tax attributes not included in SIRIUS XM's
deferred tax assets from excess stock-based compensation deductions. Additionally, during the vear ended December 31,
2013, Liberty adjusied the carrying value of cerfain contract fair values that resulied in a change to the initial purchase
price allocation to SIRIUS XM goodwill of §18 million. This change resulted in a change to the recognition of the contract
value through the statements of operations i prior periods and has been reflected retroactively in the appropriate periods.
These adjustments are reflected m Liberty's final SIRIUS XM purchase price allocation table above,

The Pro Forma summarized combined unaudited statement of operafions of Liberly using the historical financial
statements for SIRIUS XM, giving effect to any purchase accounting related adjustments made at the time of acquisition
and excluding the impact of the gain, a5 if the transactons discussed above oecurred on January 1, 2011, 15 as follows:

Year ended
Degember 31, 2002

amounis in millions

{unandited)

BUBVEINIE . . o e et e e e e L] 3,730
Operating IMCOMKE (JOSE) « . .0 v v v e e vt e ms e e e e e e H 686
Interest expense $ (162)
Share of carnings {loss) ol’atlll.mlcs 5 (21)
Less eamings (loss) atiributable to the nonconirolling |||leresls ............................... ¥ 1,736
Net Earnings (loss) from continuing operations attributable to Liberty stockholders ... . ... .. 5 2052
Pro Forma basic net eamings {|nsr-} from continuing nrwratmm attributable to Liberty stockholders

per common shane (BOWE 20 . ... u s s et s i s e e B 5.68
Pro Forma diluted net earings (loss) from continuing operations aftributable to Liberty

stockholders per commaon share (nole 2) .. ..o e 5 5.52

This Pro Forma information is not representative of Liberty’s future financial position, future resulis of operations or
future cash flows nor does it refleet what Liberty’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows would have been
as if this ransaction happened previously and Liberty controlled this entity duning the periods presented.

On October 9, 2013, Liberty entered into a share repurchase agreement with SIRIUS XM pursuant to which SIRIUS
XM agreed to acquire 136,600,826 SIRIUS XM shares for $500 million, in three separate iranches between the fourth
quarter of 2013 and second quarter of 2014, at a price of $3.6603 per sharf: (which was based on a 1.5% discount to the
average of the daily volume weighted average price (VWAP) per share of SIRIUS XM common stock over a period of ten
days beginning on the third trading day following the daie of the public release of SIRIUS XM's third quarier 2013 camings
subject to a cap on the average VWAP of $4.18 and a floor on the average VWAP of £3.64). The repurchase of shares
approximated 2% of the outstanding shares of SIRIUS XM on an as adjusted basis as the shares were retired at the SIRIUS
XM level. The first tranche of shares in the amount of 43,712,265 was repurchased on November 14, 2013, The final two
tranches were settled on Apnl 25, 2014 for total proceeds of $340 million. The retirement of SIRIUS XM shares on a
consolidated basis did not significantly impact the consolidated resulis as it only required an adjustment to noncontrolling
interest as the shares were repurchased and retired. Liberty continues to maintain a controlling interest in SIRIUS XM
following the completion of the share repurchases.
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On November 4, 2003, SIRIUS XM announced the completion of the acquisition of Agero, Inc. ("Agero”), pursuant
0 a stock purchase agreement in which SIRIUS XM agreed to acquire the connected vehicle business of Agero for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $325 million, net of cash acquired. Agero’s connected vehicle business is a
leader in implementing the next generation of connected vehicle services, The business offers a portfolio of location-based
services through two-way wireless connectivity, including safety, secunty, convenience, maintenance and data services
and remote vehicle diagnostics. The excess purchase price over identifiable net tangible assets of $390 million has been
recorded o Goodwill in our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013, A total of $247 million was allocated
to identifiable imangible assets subject to amortization related to the assessed fair value of the acquired OEM relationships
and proprictary software and is being amortized over the estimated weighted avernge useful lives of 15 and 10 years,
respectively, Pro forma financial information related to this acquisition has not been provided as it 15 not material 1o our
consolidated results of operations,

In May 2014, SIRIUS XM entered into an accelerated share repurchase agreement ("May ASK agreement™) with a
third-party financial institution o repurchase up to $600 million of its common stock. Under the May ASE agreement
SIRIUS XM prepaid 3600 million to a financial institation and received an initial delivery of 112,500,000 shares of its
common stock and final delivery, during August 2014, of 39,346,125 shares of its common stock.  Approximately $94
million of the prepaid May ASR Agreement was retumed upon the final settlement. In August 2014, SIRIUS XM entered
into another accelerated share repurchase agreement (“August ASR Agreement” and together with the May ASR
Agreement, the “ASR Agreements™) to repurchase up to $250 million of s common stock. Under the Avgust ASR
Agreement SIRIUS XM prepaid 3250 million and received 51,884,795 shares of its common stock prior 1o September 30,
2014 which were refired upon receipl. The August ASR Agreement setiled in October 2004 and SIRIUS XM retired an
additional 19431708 shares of its common stock. As of December 31, 2004, we owned approximately 56%% of the
outstanding equity inferest in SIRIUS XM.

(4)  Discontinued Operations

As discussed in note 1, the Starz Spin-Off was completed on January 11, 2013, At the time of the Starz Spin-OfT,
Liberty owned all of iis assets, businesses and habilities except for Starz. This transaction has been accounted for at
historical cost due to the pro rata nature of the distiibution. Additionally, due to the short period between the end of the
year and the distnbution date Liberty did not record any results for Starz in discontinued operations for the statement of
operations due to the insignificance of such amounts for that period except for the distribution of approximaiely $1.2 billion
of cash from Starz prior to the distribution reflected in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Following the Starz Spin-OfT, Liberty and Stare operate as separate, publicly traded companies, and neither has any
stock ownership, beneficial or otherwise, in the other. As discussed innote 1, in connection with the Spin-OiY, Liberty and
Starz entered mio cerfain agreements in order to govern certain of the ongoing relationships between the two companies
afier the Spin-Off and to provide for an orderly transition.

The consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes of Liberty have been prepared to reflect Starz as
discontinued operations. Accordingly, the relevant financial statement balances and activities of the businesses, assets and
Tiabilities owned by Star at the time of Starz Spin-OM (for periods prior to the Starz Spin-OM) have been excluded from
the respective captions in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive camings and cash flows
in such consolidated financial statements,
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Certain combined financial information for Starz, which is included in earnings (loss) from discontinued operations,
15 a5 follows:

Year ended
December 3,
2012
amaunts in millions
BVEBIIIE L . oottt et ot ot ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e 5 1,631
Earmings (loss) before ncome LAXSS. .. ... ... .. i 5 383
Earnings per share impact of discontinned operafions
The earnings per share from discontinued operations, discussed above, is as follows:
Year ended
December 31,
012
Basic carnings (losses) from discontinued operations attributable to Liberty shareholders per
commen share (ole 2) .. ... i i it it i i e sa e e e ia e e 5 0.7l
Dilusted eamings (losses) from discontinued operations attributable to Liberty sharcholders per
CoOmMON Share (018 2] .. o. e s uossaausssinanssasssanisssatasnsanssssassissnrass $ .68

As discussed in note 1, Libenty completed the Broadband Spin-Off on November 4, 2014, As of the date of the
completion of the Broadband Spin-OfT, the Company s former invesiments in and resulis of Charter and Time Wamer
Cable are no longer included in the resulls of Liberty. Based on the relative significance of TruePosition 1o Liberty, the
Company concluded that discontinued operations presentation of TruePosition is not necessary, However, the tables below
include historcal financial information of TruePosition o illustrate the historical impact of the Broadband Spin-Off on
Liberty’s financial statements.

Financial information for TreePosition, which iz included in the consolidated statements of operations, is as follows:

Years ended Dy 3,
w14 013 pITH
amsunds in millions
REVEIUE . .0 vttt e et s e e st ia s e s s na s s e 5 57 77 83
Earnings {loss) before income @axes. ... ....ooueues SHoB0CEnon UG RO n0 pee s (6} 1 [
Net eamnings {loss) aftributable to Liberty Stockholders .. ... ... .0 5 (8) 2 3
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A summary of certain asset and liability amounts for TruePosition, which is included in the conselidated balance
sheets, 15 as follows:

December 31,
2013
Aszeis amounis in millkons
Cash and cash equivalenis .. ... ... .. i e ie i e e 3 9
L T b4 7
Byt e e e e A B B e B H S a I DB SO GO L 00 SHS CoRnEn o Codnr D oo Sn Do aan EE s 5 13
Lo b e e o e P U O S ) oy et s S e ) S i O O P ey o P o ety 5 11
L 5 20
Liahilities
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities .. ... vt i e e s b3 9
Dreferred FEVEILE. . ... .00t it ettt i i e e g 19
(o ) T e A e R A A S SR IR e R S LB B S O B L E R B OO A LA GO s C AR e s 5 3
Years ended December 31,
204 w13 2

amonnis in millions

Cash paid for acquisitions:

Fairvalue of assets acquibed .. .......c.cvciiiiecniirocarainscaracanans 5 1 2,586
Intangibles not subject to amorization 4 23,694 e
Intangibles subject W amortizalion ... .o oo T L177 —_
Met liabilities assumied .. oL ..o oL e e e 12) {5,367) ——
Deferred tax Babililies . ... .o. oo e ene e e na e eas (2) {760y -
Fair value of previously held ownershipinterest ... ......c.ooiiiiiiiinnans —_— {10,372) _—
Noncontrolling inlerest. . .. ..o it iiia it it it i {10,841
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash aequired .. ... ... .. re e e e prieen dm 5 47 117 —
Cash paid for exchange transaction;
Fair value of Liberty Series A commeon stock received . ... & — 937 -—
Carrying value of business deconsolidated .. ... oiiiiiiiiii i (19)
Cash held by business deconsolidated. ... .. ...... ... .o i — 12 ~
Gam on ransacion. . ... ... .ol — {4%6) —
Tax impact of transaction = {5) =
Net cash paid for exchange tnSaclion. . .. ... et iee e erieaeerainras ] - 429 o
Stock repurchased by subsidiary not vetsettled .. ...........cooiiant P | 26
[T B T L § 212 144 3
Cash paid (received) for income xes. ... ... ool 5 20 (750 129
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{6) Assets and Liabilities Measured at Falr Value

For assets and liabilities required to be reported at fair value, GAAP provides a hierarchy that prionitizes inputs to
valuation technigues used to measure fair value into three broad levels, Level 1 inputs are quoted market prices in active
markets for wentical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability 1o access ai the measurement date, Level 2
inpusts are inputs, other than quoted market prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inpuis are unobservable inpuls for the asset or liability. The Company does not have
aiy fecurfing assets or liabilities measured at fair value that would be considered Level 3.

Liberty’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value are as follows:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 20013
Quoted prices Shgnilbeant oiher uoted prices Significant other
in active markets obscrvable in active markets abservable
T fidentical assets inputs for identical assets hmpits
Dreseriplion Total iLevel 13 2 Total iLevel 13 iLevel 2)
amonnts in millions
Cashequivalemts . .. ............. 5 7 07 — &850 1250 —
Short term marketable sec e 5199 - 194 15 15 —
Available-for-sale securities. ... ... % Ta® (201 78 1,203 978 315
Firancial instrument assets |, . & dos 96 20 7 — 397
e A o S A D e T e L] — 490 1,002 — 1,002

The majority of Liberiy’s Level 2 financial instruments are ded related instruments and derivative instraments. The
Company notes that these assets are not always traded publicly o not considered to be traded on "active markets,” as
defined in GAAP. The fair values for such mstruments are derived from a typical mode] using observable market data as
the significant inpuls. The fair value of debt related instruments are based on quoted market prices but not considered to
be traded on "active markets," as defined by GAAP, Accordingly, those available-for-sale securities, financial instruments
and debt related instrumenis are reporied in the foregoing table as Level 2 fair value, The financial mstrument assets
included in the table above are included in the Other assets, net of accumulated amontization line item in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Realized and Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Financial Instruments

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial instruments are comprised of changes in the fair valse of the
following (amounts in millions):

Vears ended December 31,
2014 2003 2012
Fair Value Option Securities b L] 306 30
Cash convertiblenotes (a) .. ... iiiinoen.s 12 (17 —
Change in fair value of bond hedges (a) . ........... ... {80 (1) -
Other derivatives (BIE). .. v v e v e e e aen 35 7 (80}
b 38 295 230

(a) Liberty issued 51 billion of cash convertible notes in October 2013 which are accounted for at fuir value
(Level 2), as elected by Liberty at the time of issuance. Conterporancously with the issuance of the
convertible notes, Liberty entered into privately negotiated cash convertible note hedges, which are
expecied (o offsel potential cash payments Liberty would be required to make in excess of the principal
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amount of the convertible notes, upon conversion of the notes. The bond hedges are marked to market
based on the trading price of underlying securities and other observable market data as the significant
inputs (Level 2). See note 10 for additional discussion of the convertible notes and the bond hedges.

(b) Derivatives, including Charter warrants (as discussed in note 8), are marked to market based on the trading
price of underlying securities and other observable market data as the significant mputs (Level 2).

{¢) During September 2004, Liberty entered into a forward contract to acquire up to 15.9 million shares of Live
Nation common stock. The contract expires during March 2015, The counterparty has acquired 8.6 million
shares of Live Nation common stock through December 31, 2014 at a volume weighted average share price
of $23.40 per share. Upon expiration of the contract, Liberty has the option to cash setile the contract.

All marketable equity and debd securities held by the Company are classified as available-for-sale ("AF5™) and are
carmed at fair value generally based on quoted market prices. GAAP permiis enfities to choose (o measure many financial
instruments, such as AFS securities, and certain other items at fair value and to recognize the changes in fair value of such
instruments in the entity's stitement of operations. The Company previously had entered into economic hedges for certain
of its non-strategic AFS securities (although such imstroments were not accounted for as fair value hedges by the Company),
Changes in the tair value of those economic hedges were reflected in the Company's statement of operations as unrealized
gains (losses). In order (o better match the changes in fair value of the subject AFS securities and the changes in fair value
of the corresponding economic hedges in the Company's financial statements, the Company has elected 1o account for
those of its AFS securities which it considers to be non-strategic ("Fair Value Option Securities™) at fair value. Accordingly,
changes in the fair value of Fair Value Option Securities, as determined by quoted market prices, are reported in realized
and unrealized gains (losses) on financial instruments in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations,

Investnients in AFS securities, including Fair Value Option Securities separately aggregated, and other cost
investments are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
amounnis in millions

Fair Value Option Secuntics

Time Wamer INc. () . .. vvvvneiiiinnniiincaneiie. 8 363 297
Time Wamer Cable (akb) ...........coociiiaiinen 320
Viacom, Inc. (a) .............. 273 7
Bames & Noble, Ine. () 27 255
Other equity securiti 55 7
Other debt securities _ 27 27
Total Fair Value Option Securities . ................ 745 1,253
AFS and cost mvestments

Live Nation debt securities .. ... oo oeiiinnrannes 24 24
Other AFS and cost investiments 47 47
Total AFS and cost investments | 71
5 16 1,324

{a) Seenote 10 for details regarding the number and fair value of shares pledged as collateral pursuant (0 certain
margin loan agreements as of December 21, 2014 and 2013,

(b} As discussed in note 1, Liberty"s former investment in Time Warner Cable was spun off to stockholders as

part of the Broadband Spin-Off, which was completed on November 4, 2014,
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{c) InApril 2014 Libeny reduced its overall ownership interest in Barnes & Noble, Inc. to less than 2% through
the sale of approximately 90% of the preferred stock held by Libenty as of such date for $247 million in

proceeds.

Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses

Unrealized holding gaing and losses related to investments in AFS securities are summariaed below.

Equity
securilies securities securities securilies

amsomnds in millions
Gross unrealized holding gamns . ........... & — — [ 1
Gross unrealized holding losses. . ........... 5 — — — —

Liberty reclassified approximately $40 million of pre-tax previously unrealized gains in the consolidated statement
of operations in gains (losses) on fransactions, net during the year ended December 31, 2013 due to the application of
purchase accounting and the effective settlement of SIRIUS XM debt securities previously accounted for as available-

for-sale securities through other comprehensive camings (loss).

{8) Investments in Affiliates Accounted for Using the Equity Method

Liberty has varous investments accounted for using the equity method. The following table includes the Company's
carrying amount and percentage ownership and market value (level 1) of the more significant investments in affiliates at
December 31, 2014, and the carrying amount at December 31, 2013;

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Percentage  Barkel  Carrying Carrying
ownership Value amonnt ammunt

dallar amonnts in millisns

Charter (&) ..o oooe e . NA § — = 2,395
Live Nation {d)(e) . . ...oovvriniannnnan.. 27% 1,403 396 409
SIRIUS 30M Canada(b) ... ... ............ 7% 47 17 m
L T varnous MA 218 222

% 851 3,209
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The following table presents the Company’s share of eamings (losses) of affiliates:

Years ended December 31,
04 2013 2
amounts in millions

Charer () ... oot e i e e e i e e e es § (4 (83 NA
STRTUS XM (BICh v v eie s iaee s e e £ 1,367
Live Nation () ... oou i (30 (18) (45)
SIRIUS XM Canada (b) 3 7 NA

L 6 54 M
£ (113) (32) 1,346

{a) As discussed below, Liberty acquired its interest in Charter during May 2013 for approximately $2.6
billion, Our share of losses related to Charter included $60 million and $51 million of losses due o the
amworiization of the excess basis of our investment during the vears ended December 31, 20014 and 2013,
respectively. As discussed in note 1, Liberty's investment in Charter was spun off to stockholders as part
of the Broadband Spin-OfT, which was completed on November 4, 2014,

{ly) Omn January 18, 2013, as discussed in note 3, Liberty acquired an additional 50 million common shares
and acquired a controlling interesi in SIRIUS XM and as a result consolidates SIRIUS XM as of such
date. SIRTUS XM has an investment in SIRIUS XM Canada that was recorded at fair value in purchase
accounting. See discussion below of SIRIUS XM Canada,

{c) SIRIUS XM recognized a £3.0 billion tax benefit during the vear ended December 31, 2012, SIRIUS
XM recorded the tax benefit as the result of significant positive evidence that a valuation allowance was
no longer necessary for its recorded deferred tax assets, The Company recogmzed its portion of this
benefit (51,229 million) based on our ownership percentage at the time of the recognition of the deferred
fax benefit by SIRIUS XM.

{d) During the vear ended December 31, 2014, Liberty acquired an additional 1.7 million shares of’ Live
Nation for approximately $39 million. During the year ended December 31, 2013, Liberty acquired an
additional 1.7 million shares of Live Nation for approximately $19 million. During the year ended
December 31, 2012, Liberty acquired approximately 11 million shares of Live Nation for £107 million.

(e) See note 10 for details regarding the number and fuir value of shares pledged as collateral pursuant o
certain margin loan agreements as of December 31, 2004,

SIRIUS XM Canada

In the acquisition of SIRIUS XM, Liberty acquired an interest in SIRIUS XM Canada which SIRIUS XM accounts
fior as an equity method affiliate. Liberty recognized the investment at fair value, based on the market price per share (level
1), on the date of acquisition,

In 2005, SIRIUS XM entered into agreemenis (o provide SIRIUS XM Canada with the right to offer SIRIUS XM
satellite radio service in Canada, The agreements have an mitial ten year term and Sirus XM Canada has the umlateral
option to extend the agreements for an additional five yvear term. SIRIUS XM receives a percentage-based royalty for
cerlain types of subscriber fees eamed by SIRIUS XM Canada each month for its basic service and an activation fee for
each gross activation of a SIRIUS XM Canada subscriber on the satellite radio system. SIRIUS XM Canada is obligated
o pay SIRIUS XM a total of 370 million for the rights 1o broadeast and market National Hockey League ("NHL") games
for a ten year term. SIRIUS XM recognizes these payments on a gross basis as a principal obligor, The estimated fair value
of deferred revenue from SIRIUS XM Canada as of the acquisition date was approximately $21 million, which is amortized
on a stranghi-line basis through 2020, the end of the expected term of the agreements, SIRIUS XM provides programming
and chipsets as well other services and SIRIUS XM Canada reimburses SIRIUS XM for such costs, At December 31, 2014,
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SIRIUS XM has approximately £7 million and $18 million in related party assets and liabilities, respectively, related 1o
these agreements described above with SIRIUS XM Canada which are recorded in other assets and other liabilities,
respectively, in the consolidated balance sheet. At December 31, 2013, SIRIUS XM has approximately 310 million and
521 million in related party assets and liabilities, respectively, related to these agreements described above with SIRIUS
XM Canada which are recorded in other assets and other habilities, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheet,
Additionally, SIRIUS XM recorded approximately S50 million and $49 million in revenue for the years ended December
31, 2004 and 2013, respectively, associated with these various agreements in the other revenue line in the consolidated
statements of operations. SIRIUS XM Canada declared and paid dividends to SIRIUS XM of 543 million and $17 million
during the vears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Charter Communications, Inc.

In May 2013, Liberty completed a transaction with investment funds managed by, or affiliated with, Apollo
Management, Ouakiree Capital Management and Crestview Pariners to acquire approximately 26.9 million shares of
common stock and approximately 1.1 million warrants in Charter for approximately £2.6 billion, which represented an
approximate 27% beneficial ownership (meluding the wamants on an as if converted basis) in Charter at the time of
purchase and a price per share of $95.50, Liberty accounted for the investment in Charter as an equity method affiliate
based on the ownership interest obtained and the board seats held by Liberty appointed individuals. Liberty funded the
purchase with a combination of cash of approximately $1.2 billion on hand and new margin loan arrangements on
approximately 203 million Charter common shares, approximately 720 million SIRIUS XM conmon shares,
approximately 8.1 million Live Nation common shares and a portion of Liberty's available for sale secunities. Liberty
allocated the purchase price between the shares of common stock and the warrants acquired in the transaction by
determining the fair value of the publicly traded warrants and allocating the remaining balance to the shares acquired,
which resulied in an excess basis in the invesiment of $2.5 billion. The excess basis was primarily allocated to franchise
fees, customer relationships, debt and goodwill based on a valuation of Charters assets and liabilities. During the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recognized 572 million and $93 million, respectively, in losses in s
investment in Charter shares and warrants due to warrant and stock option exercises at Charter below Liberty's book basis
per share, Dilution losses are included in the other, net ling in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, As
discussed in note 1, Liberty's investment in Charter was spun off to stockholders as part of the Broadband Spin-Off, which
was completed on November 4, 2014, Liberty ceased recording the results of Chanter in its financial statements as of the
date of the completion of the Broadband Spin-Off.

(9)  Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Changes in the camying amount of goodwill are as follows:

SIRIUS XM (iher Tital

Balance al Jamsary 1, 2013, . ........coinine e So0-o0oan0c NA 200 200
ACQUISITIONS (). . ..o § 14,168 — 14,165
Balance at December 31, 2003, ... .00 v niiicnieennns 14,165 200 14,365
Acguisitions (). ... — 24 24
Broadband Spin-Off .. ... —  {46) {46)
Other ............ Sp——— S S EHED A R RE HDOaE = 2 2
Balance at December 31,2004 ... § 14165 180 14345

(a)  The increase to SIRIUS XM goodwill was the result of the acquisition of a controlling interest in SIRTUS
XM in January 2003 and SIRIUS XM's acquisition of Agero in November 2013, see note 3 for further
discussion.

(b)  TrucPosition made an acquisition during the year ended December 31, 2014,
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Other imangible assets not subject to amortization, not separately disclosed, are tradenames (5930 million) at
December 31, 2014 and 2013 and franchise nghts owned by ANLBC (8143 million) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
We identified these assets as indefinite life intangible assets after considering the expected use of the assets, the regul.
and economic environment within which they are used and the effects of obsolescence on their use, SIRIUS XM's FCC
licenses are currently scheduled to expire in 2017, 2008, 2021 and 2022, Prior to expiration, SIRIUS XM is required to
apply for a renewal of its FOC licenses. The renewal and extension of its licenses is reasonably certain al mininal cost,
which is expensed as incurred. Each of the FCC licenses authorizes SIRIUS XM o use the broadcast spectrum, which is
a renewable, reusable resource that does not deplete or exhaust over time.

Intemgitle Assets Subject o Amortization

Intangible asseis subject io amortization are comprised of the following:

1] ber 31, 2004 n ber 31, 2013
Giross Met Giross Met
carrying  Accumulated carrving  carrving  Accmmalated  carrying
amouani amoriization  amosni anmwmni amorlizalion  amownd
amounts in millions
Customer relationships 5 B3R (122) Ti6 B3R {65) 773
Licensing agreements . . 116 (52) 264 LY (22) 294
OUIET. « oo e e 462 (346) 116 433 G001 133
Total oo e $ 1,616 (520) 1,006 1,587 (387) 1,200

Customer relationships are amortized over 10-15 years and licensing agreements are amortized over 15 years,
Amortization expense was 5150 million, $115 million and $19 million for the vears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively. Based on ils amortizable intangible assets as of December 31, 2014, Liberty expects that amortization
expense will be as follows for the next five vears (amounts in millions):

Ll s e B N0 DR 0O OO 00 CHD B D G0 BE SO 0 B B0 GO E0 0 Br 00 60 Boma

158
137
105
]
96

U R R ]
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Debt s summarized as follows:

Oratstanadi Carrying valne
Principal December 31, December 31,
|1l 31, 2014 214 iy

amounls in millions
Comporate level notes and loans:
Liberty 1.375% Cash Convertible Notes due 2023 ... ... ... ..., 5 1,000 900 1,002
Margin loans _ ... ... 250 250 920
Subsidiary notes and loans:

SIRIUS XM 7% Exchangeable Senior Subordinated Notes due 2004, .., — — 520
SIRIUS XM 5.875% Senior Notes due 20200 ... .....vniiinnnns 650 b 643
SIRIUS XM 5.75% Senior Notes duwe 2021 ... ...coiiiiiiiiiiannns 600 595 S04
SIRIUS XM 5.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2022 ... ... ... .. ..... 400 407 407
SIRIUS XM 4.25% Semor Notes due 20200 ... ... oo ot 500 496 4094
SIRIUS XM 4.625% Sentor Notes due 2023 . ... .. ..... 00 495 495
SIRIUS XM 6% Senior Notes due 2024 .. ... oo iiiiiiiinnnns 1,500 1,484 —
SIRIUS XM Credit Facility ... ..o i i i iieiia s 380 380 il
Other subgiciary dabl ... .. ... 0coiiiiinnaiiciinaticnsntaninnnns 111 111 20
TeHAl BB, e . v i e iieiemiie i in 5o mm nn e e re e e e by 5891 5,852 5,355
Less debd classified as current (257) (777}
Total long-term debt. .. ...... 00 CO0G0O00 0A0A00 00 Do00 00 00050000 50 £ 53505 4,778

Litverfy 1.375% Cash Convertible Notes due 2023

On October 17, 2013 Liberty issued £1 billion aggregate pnincipal amount of 1.375% Cash Convertible Senior Notes
due 2023 ("Convertible Notes™), The Convertible Notes will mature on Ogtober 15, 2023 unless carlier repurchased by us
or converted. Interest on the Convertible Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each
vear af a rate of 1.375% per annum. All conversion of the Convertible Noles will be sefiled solely in eash, and not through
the delivery of any securities. The initial conversion rate for the Convertible Notes was 5.5882 shares of Liberty Series A
common stock per 51,000 principal amount of Convertible Motes, which was equivalent to an initial conversion price of
£178.95 per share of Liberty Senies A common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2014, in connection with the
issuance of Liberty Series C commaon stock and the Broadband Spin-OfT, as discussed in note 1, the conversion rate was
adjusted o 21,0859 shares of Liberty Senes A common stock per $1,000 principal amount of Convertible Notes and an
adjusted conversion price of $47.43 per share of Liberty Series A common stock. Holders of the Convertible Notes may
convert their notes af their option at any ime prior (o the close of business on the second business day immediately
preceding the maturity date of the notes under the following circumstances: (1) dunng any fiscal quarter afler the fiscal
quarter ending December 31, 2013, if the last reported sale price of our Series A common stock for at least 20 trading days
in the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter is
equal to or more than 13054 of the conversion price of the notes on the last day of such preceding fiscal quaner; (2) during
the five day period afier any five consecutive trading day period, which we refer to as the measurement peniod, in which
the trading price per §1,000 principal amount of notes for each trading day of that measurement period was less than 98%
of the product of the last reported sale price of our Series A common stock and the applicable conversion rate on each such
day; or (3) upon the oecurmence of specified corporate transactions, Liberty has elected to account for this instrument using
the fair value option, Accordingly, changes in the fair value of this instrument are recognized as unrealized gains (losses)
in the statements of operations, As of December 31, 2004, the Convertible Notes are classified as a long term hability in
the consolidated balance sheets, as the conversion conditions have not been met as of such date.
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Additionally, contemporanecusly with the issuance of the Convertible Notes, Liberty entered into privately negotiated
cash converiible note hedges and purchased call options {the “Bond Hedge Transaction™). The Bond Hedge Transaction
covered approximately 5,588,200 shares of Liberty Series A common stock, subject to anti-dilution adjustments pertaining
to the Convertible Notes, which was equal o the number of shares of Liberty Series A common stock that mitially
underlying the Convertible MNotes, The Bond Hedge Transaction is expecied o offsel potential cash payments Liberty
would be required to make in exeess of the principal amount of the Convertible Notes, upon conversion of the notes in the
event that the volume-weighted average price per share of the Liberty Series A common stock, as measured under the cash
convertible note hedge transactions on each trading day of the relevant cash settlement averaging period or other relevant
valuation period, s greater than the strike price of $178.95 per share of Liberty Series A common stock, which
comesponded to the initial conversion price of the Convertible Notes. During the year ended December 31, 2014, in
connection with the issuance of Liberty Series C common stock and the Broadband Spin-Oif, as discussed innote 1, the
number of shares covered by the Bond Hedge Transaction was adjusted to 21,085,%00 shares of Liberly Series A common
stock and the strike price was adjusted to 34743 per share of Liberty Series A common stock, which corresponds to the
adjusted conversion price of the Convertible Notes. Liberty paid approximately 5299 million for the Bond Hedge
Transaction. The bond hedge expires on October 15, 2023 and is included in other long-term assets as of December 31,
2014 and 2013 in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, with changes in the fair value recorded in the Unrealized
gains {Josses) on financial instruments, net ling item of the statements of operations.,

Concurrenily with the Convertible Notes and Bond Hedge Transaction, Liberty also entered into separaie privately
negotiated warrant transactions under which Liberty sold warrants relating to the same number of shares of conmon stock
as underlie the Bond Hedge Transaction, subject to anti-dilution adjusiments, The warrani transactions may have a dilutive
effect with respect to the Liberty Series A common stock to the extent that the price of the Liberty Series A common stock
exceeds the strike price of the warrant transactions and warrant transactions are setiled with shares of Liberty Series A
common stock. The first expiration date of the warranis is Jameary 16, 2024 and expire over a period covering 81 days
thereafter.  Liberty may elect to settle its delivery obligation under the warrant transactions with cash. Liberty received
approximately $170 million in proceeds for the sale of warranis. The issuance of the warrants were recorded os a
component of Additional paid-in capital. The strike price of the warrants was initially $255 64 per share of Liberty Senes
A common stock. In connection with the Series C common stock issuance and the Broadband Spin-OfT during the current
vear, as discussed in nofe 1, the number of warrants outstanding was adjusted to 21,085 900 with a strike pnce of $64.46
per share.

The net proceeds from these transactions of $871 million will be used for general corporate purposes and
approximately 3200 million was used to pay down a portion of the revolving credit facility under the margin loans.

Murgin Loans

During the year ended December 31, 2013, in connection with Liberty’s acquisition of Charter common stock and
warrants, as discussed in note 8, Liberty, through certain of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, enfered into three different
margin loans with various financial mstitutions (“lender parties™) in order to fund the purchase. Each agreement containg
language that indicates that Liberty, as borrower and transferor of underlying shares as collateral, has the night to exercise
all voting, consensual and other powers of ownership pertaining to the transferred shares for all purposes, provided that
Liberty agrees that it will not vote the shares in any manner that would reasonably be expected to give rise to transfer or
ofher certain resirictions. Similarly, the loan agreemenis indicate that no lender party shall have any voling righis with
respect 1o the shares transfermed, except to the extent that a lender party buys any shares in a sale or other disposition made
pursuant to the terms of the loan agreements. The margin loans consist of the following:

21 Billion Margin Loan due 2015

On April 30, 2013, Liberty Siri MarginCo, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Liberty, entered into a margin loan
agreement whereby Liberty Sirit MarginCo, LLC borrowed 5250 million pursuant to a term loan and $450 million pursuant

F-53



LIBERTY MEDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIMARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

to a revolving credit facility with various lender panties. Shares of common stock of certain of the Company's equity
afliliates and cost mvestiments were pledged as collateral pursuant o this agreemeni. Borrowings under this agreement
were due October 31, 20014 and bore interest equal to the three-month LIBOR plus a spread, based on the market value of
the non-SIRIUS XM shares pledged as collateral pursuant to the agreement. Given the non-SIRIUS XM market value of
the eligible pledged shares as of April 30, 2013, the mitial interest rate on the loan was LIBOR plus 2%, which did not
change sinee inception. Interest on the term loan was payable on the first business day of each calendar quarter, and interest
was payable on the revolving line of credit on the lasi day of the interest period applicable to the borrowing of which such
loan is a part. Additionally, up to £1 billion in loans may be extended under the loan agreement in the form of incremental
loans, subject (o the satisfaction of certain conditions. During June 2013, Liberty Sin MarginCo, LLC repaid $250 million
outstanding under the revolving credit facility. During October 2013, Liberty Sin MarginCo, LLC repaid an additional
£200 million outstanding under the revolving credit facility.

During October 2014, Liberty refinanced this margin loan arrangensent for a similar financial instrament with a term
loan of $230 million and a $750 million undrawn line of credit. The term loan and any drawn portion of the revolver will
carry an interest rate of LIBOR plus an applicable spread between 1.75% and 25085 (based on value of collateral) with
the undrawn portion carrying a fee of 0.75%, As of December 31, 2014, shares of SIRIUS XM, Live MNation, Time Wamer,
Inc. and Viacom, Ine. comman stock were pledged as collateral pursuant to this agreement, Bomrowings outstanding under
this margin loan bear interest at a rate of 1.98% per annum at December 31, 2014, The maturity of the new arrangement is
October 28, 2003, Other terms of ihe loan were substantially similar to the previous arrangement. As of December 31,
2014, availability under the revolving line of credit was $750 million.

F670 Million Margin Loan due 2013

Al closing on May 1, 2013, LMC Cheetah 2, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Liberty, entered info a margin loan
agreement with an availability of $670 million pursuant to a term loan with various lender parties ("$670 Million Margin
Loan due 200 3"). Shares of Charter commaon stock were pledged as collateral pursuant to this agreement. The 3670 Million
Margin Loan was due May 1, 2015 and bore interest equal to the three-month LTBOR plus 3.25%, payable on the first day
of each of February, May, August and November throughout the term of the loan, As of December 31, 2013, Liberty had
fully drawn the 670 Million Margin Loan due 2015, Dunng the year ended December 31, 2004, Liberty fully repand the
£670 Million Margin Loan due 2015 and the shares previously pledged under the loan are no longer pledged as collateral,

As of December 31, 2014, the value of shares pledged as collateral pursuant to the $1 billion margin loan due 2005 is
as follows:

Nuamiber of Shares Pledged

as Collateral as of Share value as of

o Inwvesfment ) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2014
amounts in millions

SIRIUS XM. . ..o 1500 5§ 515
Live Nation .. .....ocoviiiiiiaann 1200 § 313
Time Wamer, Inc. .. .............. 6§ 309
Viecom, Inc.. ... ...l 315 % 266
Time, InC.. . o e e e 1.0 5 13

The outstanding margin loan coniains varioes affirmative and negative covenants that restrict the activities of the
borrower. The loan agreement does not include any financial covenants.
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SIRIUS XM Outstanding Debt
SIRIUS XM 7% Exchangeable Senior Subordinated Notes due 2004

In Avgust 2008, SIRIUS XM issued £550 million aggregate principal amount of 7% Exchangeable Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2014 (the “Exchangeable MNotes™). The Exchangeable Notes were exchangeable at anytime at the
oplion of the holder into shares of SIRIUS XM common stock at an exchange rale of 543.1372 shares of common stock
per $1,000 principal amount of the notes, which is equivalent to an approximate exchange price of $1.841 per share of
common stock. All holders of the Exchangeable Notes converted prior to maturity on December 1, 2014, During the year
ended December 31, 2014, $502 million principal amount of the Exchangeable Notes were converted in a non-cash
financing transaction, resulting in the issuance of 272,855,859 shares of SIRIUS XM common stock, Mo loss was
recognized as a resull of the conversion. In connection with the conversion, Liberty received 5,974,510 shares of SIRIUS
XM commaon stock upon maturity of the Exchangeable Notes.

STRIUS XA 3.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2022

In August 2012, SIRIUS XM issued $400 million aggregate principal amount of 5,.25% Senior Secured Notes due
2022 (the “5.25% Notes™). Interest is payable semi-anmually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year at a rate
of 5.25% per annum. The 5.25% Notes mature on August 15, 2022, Substantially all of SIRIUS XM's domestic wholly-
owned subsidiaries guarantes SIRIUS XM's obligations under the 5.25% Notes. The premium associated with the 5.25%
Notes was recorded in purchase accounting as the difference between fair value and the outstanding principal amount at
the date of acquisiion. This premium is being amorized over the remaiming period to matunty through interest expense.

In April 2004, SIRIUS XM entered into a supplemental indenture to the indenture govemning the 5.25% Notes pursuant
to which SIRIUS XM granted a first priority lien on substantially all of its assets and the guarantors to the holders of the
5.25% Notes. The liens securing the 5.235% Notes are equal and ratable to the liens granted to secure the Credit Facility
{as defined and discussed below).

SIRIUS XM Senior Secrved Revolving Credit Facility

In December 2012, SIRIUS XM entered into a five-year senior secured revolving credit facility (the "Credit Faciliiy™)
with a syndicate of financial institutions for $1,250 million. The Credit Facility 15 secured by substantially all of SIRIUS
XM's assets and the assets of its subsidiaries. The proceeds of loans under the Credit Facility will be used for working
capital and other general corporate purposes, including financing acquisitions, share repurchases and dividends. Interest
on borrowings is payable on a monthly basis and accrues at a rate based on LIBOR plus an applicable rate. Bomrowings
outstanding under the Credit Facility as of December 31, 2014 bear inferest al a rate of 2.41% per anmum. SIRIUS XM 1z
required to pay a variable fee on the average daily unused portion of the Credit Facility which is currently 0.35% per
annum and is payable on a quarterly basis. The Credit Facility contaims customary covenants, including a mainienance
covenant.

As of December 31, 2014, availability under the Credit Facility was $870 million,
SIRIUS XM Senior Notes Due 2020 and 2023

In May 2013, SIRIUS XM issued $500 million of Senior Notes due 2020 which bear interest at an annual rate of
4.25% and $500 million of Senior Notes due 2023 which bear interest at an annual rate of 4.625%. SIRIUS XM received
net proceeds of SY89 million from the sale of the notes after deducting commissions, fees and expenses, Interest on the

notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 15 and Movember 15 of each vear. Substantially all of SIRIUS XM's
domestic wholly-owned subsidiaries guarantee SIRIUS XM's obligations under the notes.
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SIRIUS XM 5.75% Senior Noves Due 2021

During August 2013, STRIUS XM ssued S600 million of $.75% Senior Motes due 2021 ("5.75% Notes"). Interest on
the notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on February | and August 1 of each year at a rate of 5.75% per annum,
Substantially all of SIRIUS XM's domestic wholly-owned subsidiaries guarantee SIRIUS XM's obligations under the
notes. The 5.75% Notes were issued for $594 million.

SIRIUS XM 5.875% Semior Notes Due 2020

During September 2013, SIRIUS XM issued 3650 million of 5.875% Senior Notes Due 2020 ("5.875% Notes").
Interest on the notes is payable semi-annually in arrcars on April 1 and October 1 of cach year at a rate of 5.875% per
annum, Substantially all of SIRIUS XM's domestic wholly-owned subsidiaries goaraniee SIRIUS XM's obligations under
the notes. The 5.875% Notes were issued for 5643 million.

STRIUS XM 6,00 Semior Notes due 2024

In May 2014, SIRIUS XM issued $1.3 billion prncipal amount of new semior secured notes due 2024 at a discount of
%17 million which bear interest at an annual rate of 6.00% ("SIRIUS XM 6.00% Senior Notes due 2024") paid semi-
annually in January and July. SIRIUS XM infends (o use the net proceeds from the offering for general corporate purposes.
The notes are recorded net of the remaining unamortized original issue discount.

Other subsidiary debt

Oiher subsidiary debt is comprised of SIRIUS XM capital leases and other borrowings at ANLBC. [n 2014, ANLBC,
through a wholly-owned subsidiary, purchased 82 acres of land for the purpose of constructing a Major League Baseball
facility and development of a mixed-use complex adjpeent o the ballpark. The new facility is expecied v cost
approximately 3672 million and ANLBC expects to spend approximately 250 million in other costs and equipment related
10 the new ballpark. Funding for the ballpark will be split between ANLBC, Cobb County and Cobb-Marietta Coliseum
and Exhibit Hall Authonity, Cobb-Marietia Coliseum and Exhibit Hall Authority and Cobb County will be responsible for
funding $392 million of ballpark related construction and ANLBC will be responsible for remainder of cost, including cost
overruns, Cobb-Marietia Coliseum and Exhibit Hall Authority will issue $368 million in bonds that are expected to close
and fund in second half of 2015, In order to maintain an April 20017 opening of ballpark, ANLBC agreed to advance funds
o cover project related cost until the Cobb-Marietta Coliseum and Exhibit Hall Authonity bonds are funded. ANLBC
funding for ballpark imitiatives has come from cash reserves and utilization of two eredit facilities with a capacity of $250
million, Az of December 31, 2014, ANLBC has borrowed approximately $100 million under these two facilities. In
addition, ANLBC through affiliated entities and outside development partners are in the process of developing land around
the ballpark for a mixed-use complex, that is expected to feature retail, residential, office, hotel and entertainment
opportunities.  The expected cost for mixed-use development will be 5432 million of which affiliated entiies will be
responsible for approcamately $363 million of development cost.

Debt Covenants
The SIRIUS XM Credit Facility coniains cerfain financial covenanis related to SIRIUS XM's leverage ralio.

Additionally, SIRIUS XM's Credit Facility and other borrowings contain cerain non-financial covenants. As of
December 31, 2004, the Company and SIRIUS XM were in compliance with all debt covenants.
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Fair Value of Debt

The fair value, based on quoted market prices of the same instroments but not considered to be active markets
{Level 2), of SIRIUS XM's publicly traded debt securities is as follows (amounts in millions):

December 31,
T4
SIRIUS XM 5. 875% Sentor Notes due 2020 .. ... .. ... oiinnnnns % 672
SIRIUS XM 5.75% Senior Motes due 2021 ... niinnnans g 619
SIRIUS XM 5.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2022 ... ...ovnveinnnnn $ 421
SIRIUS XM 4.25% Senior Motes due 2020 ... ... cooiiiiiena.s g 494
SIRIUS XM 4.625% Senior Notes due 2023 ... oo 5 471
SIRIUS XM 6% Senior Motes due 2024 . ... b 1,545

Due to the variable rate nature of the Credit Facility, margin loans and other debt, the Company believes that the
carmying amount approximates fair value at December 31, 2014,

Five Year Matarities

The annual principal maturities of outstanding debt obligations for each of the next five years is as follows (amounts
in millions);
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(11}  Income Taxes

Income tax benefit (expense) consists of:

Years ended December 31,

014 3 12

amaounts in millions

Current:
1 1) P § 18 (45 (7
State and local . ... ... 7 3 4
T S P — 5 (1
5 (37 ()
Deferred:
1 1 (103) 165 (407
State and Jocal . ... .. e e e e 12 T (58)
R I T; (ete et on i e e tnta afen{alelae ta{a1s mlatalate t5(a[ bl lat s etet et ntald] e falelate ale — — —
1 172 (465)
Income tax benefil (EXPEnse) .. ..ovvu e iir i §_(66) _135 469
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Income tax benefit (expense ) differs from the amounts computed by applying the ULS. federal income tax rate of 35%
as o resull of the following:

Years ended December 31,
2014 3 T
amomnts in millions

Computed expected tax benefil (expense). . .. ...oooviiiiii i auns 5 (161) (3,100 {5700
MNon-taxable gain on book consolidation of SIRIUS XM, ... ........ — 1,054 S
Liguidation of consolidated subsidianes 107 — 101
Non-faxable exchange of subsidiary .. ...... oo oo iiiii i iia 174
Dividends received deductions. . ... oot iiii i 99 46 40
Sale of subsidiary shares (o subsidiary treated as a dividend fortax. ......... (123) (56) —_
State and local income taxes, nel of federal income taxes ... ... ... ... {4) 11 {46)
Change in valuation allowance affecting tax expense .................000s 2 1
Recognition of tax benefits not previously recogmized, met . ... ... .......... 11 — 5
L o P P S S P S 7 {3

Income tax benefil (EXPENSE]. ... ..o e ] (6i6) 135 (4649)

For the year ended December 31, 2014 the significant reconciling items, as noted in the table above, are the result of
taxes attributable to our sale off Sinus XM shares to Sinus XM, which is treated as a taxable distnbution, but 15 not
recognized for financial statement purposes. In addition, we recognized a benefit on our liquidation of a consolidated
parinership invesiment and the related reduction in the ax basis of the parinership’s assets, which was not recognized for
financial statement purposes and a dividends received deduction, primarily attributable to the taxable SIRIUS XM
distribution during the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 the significant reconciling items, as noted in the table above, are the resull of
a $7.5 billion non-taxable gain on the conselidation of SIRIUS XM on Janvary 18, 2013, as discussed in note 3, and the
non-taxable exchange of one of Liberty's consolidated subsidiaries on October 4, 2013, in exchange for Liberty shares (see
note 12 for further discussion of this ransaction).

For the year ended December 31, 2012 the sigmficant reconciling items, as noted in the table above, are the result of
a capital loss realized on the taxable hiquidation of a consolidated subsidiary. The realized capital loss was approximately
259 million and as a result a $101 million federal tax benefit was recorded that offset federal tax expense from capital
gains realized during the year ended December 31, 2012,
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred income tax assets and
defierred income fax liabilities are presented below:
Deecombaer 31,
04 3
armounts i millions

Deferred tax assets:
MNet operating and capital loss caryforwards .. ... ... ... oL $ 2119 2 487
Accrued S10ck COMPERSATON. .. .00 vt rscnes e rneainraranen
Other acerued liabilities . . . ..o cinvin e iie i i i i sa s
Discount onconvertible debt. .. ... Scoon
Deferred revenue .. ...........
Other future deduetible amounts
Deferred tax assets. .........
Walwalion allowance .. ... .o e e
MNet defermed I 5515, . ..o v v e
Deferred tax liabilities:
IOVESEMEILS - o\ oo e s ie e s e e e e e e e
Intangible assels ... ... ..

Deferred fax liabilities. . .. .. .ovii ittt e e e
Wet deferred tax abililies . .. .. e e

The Company's deferred tax assets and Labilities are reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as
follows:

Diecember 31,

L) 2013

amounis in millisns
Current deferred tax liabilities (assets) .. ... .. ... ... . ... ..., £ (931) (916)
Long-term deferred tax liabilities (assets). .. ... 2,438 2312
Met deferred tax Habililes . . ..o e et e et e e £ 1,507 1,396

SIRIUS XM's deferred tax asseis and liabilities are included m the amounis above although SIRIUS XM's deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not offset with Liberty's deferred tax assets and liabilities as SIRIUS XM is not included in the
group tax return of Libery. Liberty's acquisition of a controlling interest in SIRIUS XM's ouistanding common stock
during January 2013 did not ereate a change in control under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Company’s net decrease in the valuation allowance was $4 million in 2014, Of the change in valuation allowance,
£2 million was an increase 1o tax expense and 36 million was a decrease as a result of the Broadband Spin-Off,

At December 31, 2014, the Company had federal net operating loss carry forwards for income tax purposes which, if
not utilized o reduce taxable income in future periods, will expire between 2017 and 2028, most of which expire between
2024 and 2027, The Company’s federal net operating loss carryforwards are pnmarily attributable to those at the SIRTUS
XM level (855 billion). These net operating loss carryforwards are subject 10 certain limitations and may ot be carmently
utilized.

In addition, Liberty currently has $70 mullion of excess share-based compensation deductions resuliing in an
approximate gross operaling loss carryforward on ils tax return of §70 million.  Excess tax compensation benefits are
recorded off balance sheet until the excess tax benefit is realized through a reduction of taxes payable.
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A reconciliation of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Deeember 31,

24 3

ammounts in millions
Balance at beginning of wear ... ... s 30 9
Reductions for tax positions of prior yvears, ... .......... (11) e
Lapse in the statute of IMBMALONS .. ... .. inen i ienneninnas (17 —
Increase i tax positions from acquisition. ... .........o..eee... — 1
Balanceatendof year. . ... .. .. ... ... Ly i 30

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had recorded tax reserves of £2 million related to unrecognized tax benefits
for uncertain tax positions, [f such tax benefits were to be recognized for financial statement purposes, less than a million
dollars would be reflected in the Company’s tax expense and affect its effective tax rate, We do not cumently anticipale
that our existing reserves related (o uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2004 will significantly increase or decrease
during the twelve-month period ending December 31, 2015; however, various events could cause our current expeciations
to change in the future. The Company’s estimate of its unrecognized tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions requires
a high degree of judgment.

As of Decernber 31, 2014, the Company's 2002 through 2010 tax vears are closed for federal income tax purposes,
and the IRS has completed ils examination of the Company’s 2011 through 2013 tax years. The Company's fax loss
carryforwards from its 2011 through 2013 tax years are stll subject to adjustment. The Company’s 2014 tax vear is being
examined currently as part of the IRSs Compliance Assurance Process ("CAP") program. Various states are cumently
examining the Company’s prior years state income tax returns. The Company believes its gross unrecognized tax benefits
will not decrease within the next twelve months, Sirius XM, which does not consolidate with Liberty for income tax
purposes, has federal and certain state income tax avdils pending. We do not expect the ultimate disposition of these audits
1o have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had no accrued interest and penalties recorded related to uncertain tax
positions.
(12)  Stockholders Fquity
Preferred Stock

Liberty's prefemred stock is issuable, from time to time, with such designations, preferences and relative participating,
optional or other rights, qualifications, limitations or resirictions thereof, a5 shall be stated and expressed in a resolution or
resolutions providing for the issue of such preferred stock adopted by Liberty's board of directors. As of December 31,
2014, no shares of preferred stock were 1ssued.

Cammon Stack

As discussed in note 1, on July 23, 2004, holders of Series A and Series B common stock received a dividend of two
shares of Series C common stock for each share of Series A or Series B common siock held by them as of July 7, 2014,

Liberty's Series A common stock has one vote per share, Liberty's Series B common stock has ten votes per share and
Liberty's Series C common stock has no votes per share. Each share of the Series B common stock is exchangeable at the
option of the holder for one share of Series A common stock, All senies of our common stock participate on an equal basis
with respect o dividends and distnbutions,
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As of December 31, 2014, there were 3.2 million shares of Series A and 9.8 million shares of Series C commaon stock
reserved for issuance under exercise privileges of oulstanding stock options.

Purchases of Common Siock

During the year ended December 31, 2012 the Company repurchased 3,591,271 shares of Series A Liberty common
stock for aggregate cash consideration of 3323 million under the authorized repurchase program.

During the year ended December 31, 2013 the Company repurchased 1,264,550 shares of Series A Liberty common
stock for the aggregate cash consideration of $140 million under the authorized repurchase program. Additionally, Liberty
obtamned shares of Liberty Series A common stock on Oclober 3, 2013, pursuant o a transaction in which a subsidiary of
Comcast, Inc. exchanged approximately 6.3 million shares of Liberty's Series A common stock for a newly created
subsidiary of Liberty which held Liberty's wholly owned subsidiary Leisure Aris, Inc., approximately $417 million in cash
and Liberty's rights in and to a revenue sharing agreement relating to the carmage of CNBC ("CNBC Agreement”). Liberty
recorded a gain of approximately $496 million determined based on the difference between the fair value of the shares
obtained in the exchange transaction and the camying value assets and businesses delivered. These exchange shares
obtained were done 5o through special approval from the Company’s Board of Directors and was not considered a
repurchase of shares under the Company’s formal share repurchase program. Liberty treated the transaciion as a tax-free
exchange. In January 2014, the IRS completed its review of the exchange and notified Liberty that it agreed with the non-
taxahle charactenzation of the transaction.

There were no repurchases of Liberty common stock made pursuant to the Company 's authorized repurchase program
during the year ended December 31, 2014,

All of the foregoing shares obiained have been refired and retumed to the status of authorized and available for
issuance.

(13)

Chief Executive Officer Compensation Arrangement

In December 2014, the Compensation Commitice (the "Committee") of Liberty approved a compensation
arrangement, meluding term options as discussed in note 14, for s President and Chief’ Executive Officer (the "CEO™),
The arrangement provides for a five vear employment term which began on January 1, 2015 and ends December 31, 20019,
with an annual base salary of $360,750, increasing annually by 5% of the prior year's base salary, and an annual target cash
bonus equal to 25025 of the applicable vear's antual base salary. The arangement also provides that, in the event the CEQ
is terminated for "cause,” he will be entitled only (o lis accraed base salary and any amounts due under applicable law and
he will forfent all rights 1o his unvested term options. IT, however, the CEO is terminated by Liberty without cavse or if he
fterminates his employment for “good reason,” he will be entifled o his acerued base salary, his accrued but unpaid bonus
and any amounts due under applicable law, a severance payment of 1.5 times his base salary during the year of his
termination, a payment equal to $11,750,000 pro rated based upon the clapsed number of days in the calendar vear of
fermination, a paymeni equal to $17.5 million, and his unvesied term options will generally vest pro rata based on the
portion of the term elapsed through the termination date plus 18 months and for all vested and accelerated options to remain
exercisable until their respective expiration dates. If, however, the CEQ terminates his employment without “good reason,”
he will be entitled to his accrued base salary, his acerued but unpaid bonus and any amounts due under applicable law, a
payment equal to $11,750,000 pro rated based upon the clapsed number of days in the calendar year of termination, and
for his unvested termy oplions to generally vest pro rala based on the portion of the term elapsed through the termination
date and all vested and accelerated options to remain exercisable until their respective expiration dates. Lastly, in the case
of the CEOQ's death or his disability, he is entitled to the his accrued base salary, his accrued but unpaid bonus and any
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amaunts due under applicable law, a payment of 1.5 times his base salary during the year of his termination, a payment
equal to 511,730,000 pro rafed based upon the elapsed number of days in the calendar year of termination, a payment equal
10 $17.5 million, and for his unvested term options o fully vest and for his vested and accelerated term options o remain
exercisable until their respective expiration dates,

Beginning in 2015, the CEQ will receive annual performance-based options to purchase shares of LMCK with a termy
of 7 years (the “Performance Options”) and performance-based resiricted stock umis with respect to LMCK (the
“Performance RSUs" and together with the Performance Options, the “Performance Awards”) during the employment
term.  Grants of Performance Awards will be allocated between Liberty and Liberty Interactive. The aggregate farget
amount to be allocated between Liberty and Liberty Interactive will be $16 million with respect to calendar year 2015, $17
million with respect to calendar vear 2016, £18 million with respect to calendar year 2017, $19 million with respect to
calendar year 201% and $20 million with respect to calendar year 2019, Vesting of the Performance Awards will be
determined based on satisfaction of performance meltrics that will be set by Liberty and Liberty Interactive's respective
compensation commitiees in the first quarter of each applicable year, except that the CEQ will forfeit his unvested
Performance Awards i his employment is terminated for any reason before the end of the applicable vear, except that the
CEO will forfeit his unvested Performance Awards if his employment is terminated for any reason before the end of the
applicable year. In addition, Liberty and Liberty Interactive's compensation commitiees may grant additional Performance
Awards, with a value of up 1o 50% of the targel amount allocated to Liberty for the relevant year {the “Above Target
Awards™), and the compensation commitiees may defermine (o establish additional performance metrics with respect (o
such Above Target Awards.

Salary compensation related to services provided by the CEO 15 charged from Liberty to Liberty Interactive, Liberty
TripAdvisor and Liberty Broadband pursuant to the Services Agreements with each respective company. Any cash bonus
attributable to the performance of Liberty or Liberty Inferaciive is paud direetly by each respective company.

Chairman's Employment Agreement

On December 12, 2008, the Committee determined to modify its employment arrangements with its Chairman of the
Board, to permit the Chairman to begin receiving paymenis in 2009 in satisfaction of Liberty’s obligations to him under
two deferred compensation plans and a salary continuation plan. Under one of the deferred compensation plans (the "8%
Plan"), compensation has been deferred by the Chairman since January 1, 1993 and accrues inferest at the rate of 8% per
annum compounded annually from the applicable date of deferral. The amount owed to the Chairman under the 8% Plan
aggregated approximately $2.4 mallion at December 31, 2008, Under the second plan (the "13% Plan"), compensation
was defermed by the Chairman from 1982 until December 31, 1992 and accrues interest at the mate of 13% per annum
compounded annually from the applicable date of defermal. The amount owed 1o the Chairman under the 13% Plan
aggregated approximately $20 million at December 31, 2008, Both deferred compensation plans had provided for payment
of the amounts owed to him in 240 monthly installments beginning upon termination of his employment. Under his salary
continuation plan, the Chairman would have been entitled o receive 515,000 (increased at the rate of 12% per annum
compounded annually from January 1, 1998 to the date of the first payment, (the "Base Amount”™) per month for 240
months beginning upon termination of his employment. The amount owed to the Chairman under the salary contineation
plan aggregated approximately £3% million at December 31, 2008, There 15 no further accrual of inferest under the salary
continuation plan onee payments have begun.

The Committee determined to modify all three plans and began making payments to the Chairman in 2009, while he
remains employed by the company. By commencing payments under the salary continuation plan, interest ceased to accrue
on the Base Amount. As a result of these modifications, the Chainman will reeeive 240 equal monthly installments as
follows: (1) approximately $20,000 under the $% Plan; (2) approximately $237,000 under the 13% Plan; and (3)
approximately $164,000 under the salary continuation plan.
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The Committee also approved certain immaterial amendments to the Chairman's employment agreement intended to
comply with Section 4094 of the Internal Revenue Code.

(14) Stock-Hased Compensation

Liberty = Inrcentive Plans

Pursuant to the Liberty Media Corporation 2003 Incentive Plan {the "2013 Plan"), the Company has granted and may
grant to certain of its employees stock options and stock appreciation nghts ("SARS™) (collectively, "Awards") to purchase
shares of Senes A, Series B and Senes C Liberty common stock. The 2003 Plan provides for Awards 1o be made in respect
of a maximum of 75 million shares of Liberty common stock. Awards generally vest over 4-5 vears and have a term of 7-
10 years, Liberty 1ssues new shares upon exercise of equity awards, The Company measures the cost of employee services
received in exchange for an Award of equity instruments (such as stock options and restricted stock) based on the grant-
date fur value of the Award, and recognizes that cost over the period during which the employee s required to provide
service (usually the vesting period of the Award). The Company measures the cost of employes services received in
exchange for an Award of liability instruments (such as SARs that will be seitled in cash) based on the current fair value
of the Award, and remeasures the fair value of the Award at each reporting date.

Pursuant to ihe Liberty Media Corporation 2013 Nonemployee Direcior Incentive Plan, as amended from time o time
(the "2013 NDIP"), the Liberty Board of Directors has the full power and authority to grant eligible nonemployee directors
stock options, SARs, stock options with tandem SARs, and restricled stock.

On July 23, 2014 a dividend of Series C common stock was distributed and adjustments (o the Awards outstanding
were required to reflect the changes to the capital structure of the Company. For every Series A Award held, two Series C
Awards were issued with an exercize price equal 1o one third the exercise price of the outstanding Award. Additionally, the
exercise price of the outstanding Series A Awards was adjusted to one third the exercise price associaied with such Award.
The change to outstanding Awards did not change the aggregate intrinsic value associated with the Awards outstanding just
prior to the distribution and immediately following the distnbution,

In connection with the Broadband Spin-OMF in November 2014, all outstanding Libenty Awards were adjusted
pursuani to the anti-dilution provisions of the incentive plans under which the equity awards were granted, such that a
holder of a Liberty Award received:

I An adjustment 1o the exercise price or base price, as applicable, and the number of shares subject to the
Liberty Award (as so adjusted, an “Adjusted Liberty Award™) and

ii. A corresponding equity award relating to shares of Liberty Broadband common stock (a “Broadband
Award”).

The exercise prices and number of shares subject 1o the Adjusted Liberty Award and the Broadband Award were
determined based on 1) the exercise prices and number of shares subject (o the Liberty Award, 2) the distribution ratio, 3)
the pre-distribution trading price of Liberty common stock and 4) the post-distribution trading prices of Liberty common
stock and Liberty Broadband common stock, such that all of the pre-distribuiion intrinsic value of the Liberly Award was
allocated between the Adjusted Liberty Award and the Broadband Award.

Following the Broadband Spin-Off, employees of Liberty hold Awards in both Liberty common stock and Liberty
Broadband common stock. The compensation expense relating to employees of Liberty is recorded at Liberty,
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Similarly, following the Starz Spin-OfT during 2013, employees of Liberty and Starz hold Awards in both Liberty

common stock and Starz common stock. The compensation expense relating (o the employees of Liberty 15 recorded at
Liberty and the compensation expense relating o employees of Starz is recorded at Stare.

Liberty - Grants of stock aptions

Awards granted in 2004, 2013 and 2012 pursuant to the Incentive Plans discussed above are summarized as follows:

e Wears enied December 31, P
2014 013 2012
Welghted Welghied Wekghied

Options  average  Options  average  Options  sverage

granfed  grant-date  granted grant-date granted grant-<daie

(00's) Fzir value  (000°s)  fair value  (000's)  air valee
Seres A Liberty common stock 1 & 38846 21 8 5516 B34 5 4204
Series C Liberty common stock 3,359 11.09 NA NA MNA NA
Series A Liberty common stock from Option Exchange., . . MNA NA NA NA 3,713 3 3725

During the year ended December 31, 2014, Liberty granted 3.3 million options 1o purchase Liberty Series C common
stock to the CEQ of Liberty in connection with a new employment agreement (see note 13); of those options, one half vest
on December 24, 2018 and the oiher half vest on December 24, 2019, The remainder of the opiions granted typically vest
quarterly over a4 year vesting period.

During the fourth quanter of 2012, the Company entered into a series of transactions with certain officers of Liberty
and iis subsidiaries, which transactions were associated with stock opiions, in order fo recognize tax deductions in the
current year versus future yvears (the "Option Exchange™). On December 4, 2012 (the "Gramt Date”), pursuant to the
approval of the Compensation Commitiee of its Board of Directors, the Company effected the acceleration of each unvested
in-the-money option o acquirg shares of LMCA held by certain of its and its subsidiaries’ officers (collectively, the
“Eligible Optionholders™), Following this acceleration, also on the Grant Date, each Eligible Optionholder exercised, on a
net seitled basis, substantially all of his or her outstanding in-the-money vested and unvested options to acquire LMCA
shares (the “Eligible Options™), and:

+  with respect o sach vested Eligible Option, the Company granted the Eligible Optionholder a vested new option
with substantially the same terms and conditions as the exercised vested Eligible Option;
* and with respeet to cach unvested Eligible Option:

s the Eligible Optionholder sold to the Company, for cash, the shares of LMCA received upon exercise off
such unvested Eligible Option and used the proceeds of that sale to purchase from the Company an equal
number of resiricted LMCA shares which have a vesting schedule identical to that of the exercised
unvested Eligible Option; and

+  the Company granted the Eligible Optionholder an unvested new option, with substantially the same
terms and conditions as the exercised unvested Eligible Option, except that (a) the number of shares
underlying the new option is equal to the number of shares underlying such exercised unvested Eligible
Option less the number of restricted shares purchased from the Company as deseribed above and (b) the
exercise price of the new option is the closing price per LMCA share on The Masdaq Global Select
Market on the Grant Date.

The Option Exchange was considered a modification under ASC 718 - Stock Compensation and resulted in incremental
compensation expense m 2012 of $18 million. Incremental compensation expense 15 also being recognized over the
remaining vesting periods of the new wnvested options and the restricted shares and 15 included in unrecognized
compensation until recognized over the vesting period.
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The Company has calculated the grani-date fair value for all of its equity classified awards and any subsequent
remeasurement of its liability classified awards using the Black-Scholes Model. The Company estimates the expected term
of the Awards based on historical exercise and forfeiture data. For grants made in 2014, 2013 and 2012, the range of
expecied terms was 1.3 to 9.0 years. The volatility used in the calculation for Awards is based on the historical volatility
of Liberty's stocks and the implied volatility of publicly traded Liberty options. The Company uses a zero dividend rate

and the risk-free rate for Treasury Bonds with a term similar to that of the subject options.

The following table presents the volatilities used by the Company in the Black-Scholes Model for the 2014, 20173 and

2012 grants.
Valatility

2014 grants

LABEILY OPHIONS - . .+ .ot et ettt et et e e e e e eneeen e 282% - 313
2013 grams

Liberty Oplions . ... ..ieu e i i e 3% - 414
2042 grants

Liberty 0ptONS . ... ... 251% - 542

Liberty - Outstanding Awards

The following table presents the number and weighted average exercise price ("WAEP™) of Awards (o purchase Liberty
common siock granted fo cerlain officers, employees and directors of the Company, as well as the weighted average

remaining life and aggregate intrinsic value of the Awards.

Series A
Wieighted Agpregate
average Intrinsic
Liberty remaining valme
Awards (0005} WAEP life {in mailliomns )
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 ... .. 3656 5 30.58
Granfed . .......cooiiiiiiiiinnn 1§ 4510
Exercised. .. ... ............. - (197) § 49.49
Forfeited/Cancelled/Exchanged (1) $ 2526
Broadband Spin-Off adjustment ... .. (52) § 2322
Ouistanding at December 31, 2014 .. .. 3207 8 2321 42vears § 39
Exgrcisable at December 31, 2004, ... o898 8 2299 40 years $ 13
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Series C
Weiighted Apgregaie
average intrinsbe
Lilerty remaining valwe
Awards (000°s) __WAEP life . Ain millions)
Cuistanding at Janvary 1, 2004 ..., — % —
Series C Dividend Adjustment. . ... . 6,942 5 4601
Granted . ........ciiiiiiicanan, 3359 85 3406
Brerciged . ........cociiiaiii.. {428) § 2246
Forfeited CancelledExchanged. . . .. (1) & 4232
Broadband Spin-Off adjustment . ... (39} § 2292
Cutstanding at December 31, 2014 ... 9,833 § 2671 52 years 5 82
Exercisable at December 31, 2014, ... 5446 8§ 2269 4.1 years $ 67

There were no ouistanding Series B options during 2014,

As of December 31, 2014, the total unrecognized compensation cost related (o unvested Liberty Awards was
approximately $58 million, mcluding ineremental compensation under the Option Exchange. Such amount will be
recognized in the Company's consolidated stalements of operations over a weighted average period of approximately
2.3 years,

Liberty - Exercises

The aggregate intrinsic value of all options exercised during the vears ended December 21, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was
%17 million, $23 million and $494 million, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised for the year
ended December 31, 2012 includes approximately $358 million related 1o the intrinsic value of options exercised as a
result of the Oplion Exchange.

Liberty - Restricted Stock

Associated with the Option Exchange the Company issued unvested restricted shares of Liberty common stock, of
which 594,000 shares remamn unvested as of December 31, 2004, These shares continue o vest over the next year and
since the Option Exchange was accounted for as a modification, the compensation expense associated with these restricted
shares was treated as incremental compensation, as discussed above, and is included in unrecognized compensalion cosis
under the outstanding Awards section above.  The Company had approximately 224 000 unvested restricted shares of
Liberty common stock held by certain directors, officers and employees of the Company as of December 31, 2014, not
issued under the Option Exchange, with a weighted average grant-date fair value of 16,88 per share,

The aggregate fair value of all restricied shares of Liberty common siock thal vested during the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2013 and 2012 was £1 million, 7 million and £10 million, respectively.

SIRIUS XM - Stock-based Compensaiion

During the year ended December 31, 2004, SIRIUS XM granted stock oplions and resiricied stock units fo ils
employees and members of its board of directors. SIRIUS XM also caleulates the grant-date fair value for all of its equity
classified awards and any subsequent remeasurement of ils liability classified awards using the Black-Scholes Model. The
weighted average volatility applied to the fair value determination of SIRIUS XM's option grants during 2014 and 2013
was 339 and 47%, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2014, SIRIUS XM granted approximately 61.9
million stock options with a weighted-average exercise price of $3.39 per share and a grani date fair value of $1.05 per
share, As of December 31, 2014, SIRIUS XM has approximately 268 million options outstanding of which approximately
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121 million are exercisable, each with a weighted-average exercise price per share of $2.72 and $2.27, respectively. The
aggregate intrinsic value of these outstanding and exercisable options was 5246 million and $180 million, respectively.
During the year ended December 31, 2014, SIRIUS XM granted approximately 6.1 million restricted stock units with a
grant date fair value of $3.38 per share, The stock-based compensation related to SIRIUS XM stock options and restricted
stock awards was §14% million and £133 million for the years ended Decemnber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. As of
December 31, 2014, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested SIRIUS XM stock options was $236
million. The SIRIUS XM unrecognized compensation cost will be recognized in the Company's consolidated statements
of operations over a weighted average period of approximately 2.4 years.

her

Certain of the Company's other subsidianies have stock based compensation plans under which employvees and non-
employees are granted options or similar stock based awards. Awards made under these plans vest and become exercisable
over various terms. The awards and compensation recorded, if any, under these plans is not significant to the Company.

(15) Emplovee Benefit Plans

Liberty is the sponsor of the Liberty Media 401{k) Savings Plan (the "Liberty 401(k) Plan"y, which provides its
employees and the employees of certain of 11z subsidiaries an opporiunity for ownership in ihe Company and creates a
retirernent fund. The Liberty 401 (k) Plan provides for employees to make contributions to a trost for investrment in Liberty
common stock, as well as several mutual funds. The Company and its subsidianes make matching contributions to the
Liberty 401(k) Plan based on a percentage of the amount contributed by employees, In addition, certain of the Company's
subsidiaries have similar emplovee benefit plans, Emplover cash contributions to all plans aggregated $11 million, $12
million and $12 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

(16) Other Comprehensive Earnings (Loss)

Accumulated other comprehensive camings (loss) included in Liberty's consolidated balance sheets and consolidated
statements of equity refleet the aggregate of foreign currency translation adjustmenis, unrealized holding gains and losses
on AFS secunties and Libenty's share of accumulated other comprehensive camings of affiliates.
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The change in the components of accumulated other comprehensive eamings (loss), net of taxes ("AOCI"), is
summarized as follows:

Unrealized
halding AOCT of
gains (losses) discontinued
on securities D1ther aperations  AOCT
ampunts in millions
Balance at Jamuary 1, 2012, ...t b 36 (5) 2y 9
Other comprehensive eamings (loss) atinbutable to Liberty Media
Corporation stockholders. ... oo oo oo R L) (L (7
Balance at December 31, 20012, ... iii e e aeaiaea 20 (5) (3) 12
Other comprehensive camings (loss) aftributable to Liberty Media
Corporation stockholders. ..o o oo oo {15) 4 —_ {11}
Distribution to stockholders for Starz Spin-OfC ... ... ... L. — — 3 _ 3
Balanee a December 31,2003 .. o e 5 (1) — 4
Other comprehensive eamings (loss) attributable to Liberty Media
Corporation stockholders. .. ... il (%) (%) —_ {17)
Distribution to stockholders for Broadband Span-OIT ... ... {7} (1) — (8
Balance at December 31, 2004 Lo i 5 (10 (11) — 2

The components of other comprehensive camings (loss) are reflected in Liberty’s consolidated statements of
comprehensive eamings (loss) net of taxes. The following table summarizes the tax effects related to each component of
other comprehensive earnings (loss).

Tax
Before-tax {expense)  Met-of-tax
amont benvefit amount

amounts in millions

Year ended December 31, 2014:

Unrealized holding gains (losses) on securities arising during period. .. ... ... ... s (13) 5 (&)
Foreign currency translation adjustments ... ......oooiiiiiiiiii i (14) 5 N
Other comprehensive eamings. ... ... ...ovoririnrnriananeirananss T 1 (27) 10 {17)
Year ended December 31, 201 3;
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on securities arising during period. .. .......... $ 16 () 10
Reclassification adjustment for holding (gains) losses realized in net camings {lossj (40) 15 (25)
Foreign currency translation adjustments . .........cooiiiiiiiiiiniinianann L] {2) 4
Chther comprehensive eamings. ... .. Docontos beson0CHon BoctCE00 BHea 0n Doaa 5 (1%) 7 {11)
Year ended December 31, 2012:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on securiies arising during penod. ... ... ... 5 {5) 2 {3
Reclassification adjustment for holding losses realized in net camings . .......... (21) # {13)
Other comprehensive camings from discontimued operations . ... .. ........o... . 3] 1 (1)
Other comprehensive BaminEs. ... ... ocusaiicansiinscarainseararnnsis k] (28) 11 {17)
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{17y  Commitments and Contingencies

Guaranices

In prior penods the Company guaranteed Starg’s obligations under certain of iis studio output agreements, At
December 31, 2004, the Company's guarantee of the studio output agreements have been fully satisfied as Starz has made
all applicable payments under the studio outpul agreements.

In connection with agreements for the sale of assets by the Company or its subsidiaries, the Company may retan
labilities that relate to events occurning prior to its sale, such as tax, environmental, litigation and employment matiers,
The Company generally indemnifies the purchaser in the event that a third party asserts a claim against the purchaser that
relates o a liabality retained by the Company. These types of indemnification obligations may extend for a number of
years. The Company is unable to estimate the maximam potential liability for these types of indemnification obligations
as the sale agreements may not specify a maximum amount and the amounts are dependent upon the oulcome of fuiure
contingent events, the nature and likelihood of which cannot be determined at this time. Historically, the Company has not
made any significant indemnification payments under such agreements and no amount has been accrued in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to these indemmnification guaraniees,

Employment Confracis

The Atlanta Braves and cerain of their players and coaches have entered into long-term employment coniracts
whereby such mdividuals’ compensation is guaranteed. Amounts due under guaranized contracts as of December 31, 2014
aggregated $398 million, which is payable as follows: 380 million in 2015, 72 million in 2016, 888 million in 2017, $54
million in 201%, and $104 million thereafter. In addition to the foregoing amounts, cerlain players and coaches may carn
incentive compensation under the terms of their employment contiacts.

Operating Leases

The Company leases business offices, has entered mio satellite transponder lease agreements and vses certain
equipment under lease arrangements. These leases provide for minimum lease pavments, additional operating expense
charges, leaschold improvemenis and reni escalations, and ceriain leases have oplions (o renew. The effect of the rent
holidays and rent concessions are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term, including reasonably assured
renewal periods.

Rental expense under such arrangements amounted to $532 million, $48 million and 59 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2012, respectively.

A summary of fulure minimum lease payments under cancelable and noncancelable operating leases as of
December 31, 2004 follows (amounis m millions):

Years ending December 31:

2015 5 53
2016 5 47
2017 b 44
2018 3 41
2019 . : b3 36
T R R e e e S R e et e S R S men BRSNS

Itis expected that in the normal course of business, leases that expire generally will be renewed or replaced by leases
on other properiies; thus, it 15 anticipated that future lease commitments will not be less than the amouni shown for 2004,
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Programming and content

SIRIUS XM has entered into various programming agreements under which SIRIUS XM's obligations include fixed
payments, advertising commitments and revenue shanng armangements. Amounts due under such agreements are payable
as follows: 8231 million in 20135, $110 million in 2016, $75 million in 2017, $60 million in 2018 and 548 million in 2019.
Future revenue sharing costs are dependent upon many faciors and are difficult (o estimate: therefore, they are not included
in the amounts above.

Litigation

The Company has confingent liabilities related to legal and tax proceedings and other maiters ansing in the ordinary
course of business. We record a liability when we believe that it is both probable that a liability will be incurred and the
amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. We evaluate developments in legal maiters that could affect the amount of the
liahility acerual and make adjustments as appropriate. Significant judgment s required to determine both probability and
the estimated amount of a loss or potential loss. We may be unable to reasonably estimate the reasonably possible loss or
range of loss for a particular legal contingency for vanous reasons, incleding, among others, because: (1) the damages
sought are indeterminate; {ii) the proceedings are in the relative early stages; (iii) there is uncentainty as to the outcome of
pending proceedings (including motions and appeals); (iv) there is uncertainty as to the likelihood of seitlement and the
outcome of any negotiations with respect thereto; (v) there remain significant factual issues to be determined or resolved;
{vi) the relevant law is unsettled; or (vii) the proceedings mvolve novel or untested legal theories. In such instances, there
may be considerable uncertainty regarding the ultimate resolution of such matters, including a possible eventual loss, if
any. In the opinion of management, it is expected that amounts, if any, which may be required to satisfy such contingencies
will nod be matenial in relation to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In connection with a commercial fransaction that closed during 2002 among Liberty, Vivendi Universal S.A.
(“Vivendi”) and the former USA Holdings, Inc., Liberty brought suit against Vivendi and Universal Studios, Ine. in the
United States District Court for the Southem District of New York, alleging, among other things, breach of contract and
frand by Vivends, On June 25, 2012, a jury awarded Liberty damages in the amount of €765 million, plus prejudgment
interest, in connection with a finding of breach of contract and fraud by the defendants. On Januvary 17, 2013, the court
entered judgment in favor of Liberty in the amount of approximalely €343 million, including prejudgment interest. The
parties negotiated a stay of the execution of the judgment during the pendency of the appeal. Vivendi has filed notice of
its appeal of the judgment (o the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit, and, m that courd, Liberty intends
1o seek a higher rate of pre-judgment interest than what the district court awarded. As a result, the amount that Liberty
may ultimately recover in connection with the final resolution of the action, if any, is uncertain, Any recovery by Liberty
will not be reflected in our consolidated financial statements until such time as the final disposition of this matter has been
reached.

SIRIUS XM is a defendant in three class action suils and one additional suit, which were commenced in August and
September 2013 and challenge the use and public performance via satellite radio and the Internet of sound recordings fixed
prior to Febroary 15, 1972 under California, New York and/or Flonida law. The plaintiffs in each of these suits purport to
seck in excess of $100 million in compensatory damages along with unspecified punitive damages and injunctive relief.
Accordingly, at this point SIRIUS XM cannot estimaie the reasonably possible loss, or range of loss, which could be
incurred if the plaintiffs were to prevail in the allegations, but SIRIUS XM believes they have substantial defenses to the
claims asserted and intend to defend these actions vigorously.

In September 2014, the United States District Court for the Central District of California ruled that the grant of
“exclusive ownership” to the owner of a sound recording under Califomia’s copyright statule included the exclusive right
to contro] public performances of the sound recording. The court further found that the unauthorized public performance
of sound recordings violated California laws on unfair competition, misappropriation and conversion. In Ociober 2014,
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the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles adopted the Central District Court's
interprefation of "exclusive ownership” under California's copyright statute. That Court did noi find that the unauthorized
public performance of sound recordings violated California laws on unfair competition, misappropriation and conversion,
In November 2014, the United States District Court for the Southem District of New York ruled that sound recordings
fixed before February 15, 1972 were entitled under various theories of New York common law to the benefits of a public
performances right and intend to appeal these decisions.

In addition, in August 2013, SoundExchange, Inc. filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the District
of Columbia alleging that SIRIUS XM underpard royalties for statulory licenses during the 2007-2012 rate penod in
violation of the regulations established by the Copynght Royalty Board for that period. SoundExchange principally alleges
that SIRIUS XM improperly reduced its calculation of gross revenues, on which the rovalty payments are based, by
deduciing non-recognized revenue aftributable to pre-1972 recordings and Premier package revenuee thai is not “separately
charged™ as required by the regulations. SoundExchange is seeking compensatory damages of not less than $30 million
and up 0 S100 million or more, payment of late fees and mierest, and altomeys’ fees and costs.

In August 2014, the United States District Court for the District of Columbia granted our motion to dismiss the
complamt without prejudice on the grounds that the case properly should be pursued before the Copynght Rovalty Board
rather than the district court.  In December 2014, SoundExchange filed a petition with the Copyright Royalty Board
requesiing an order interpreting the applicable regulations. The Copyright Rovalty Board has requesied that the parties
submit briefs regarding whether the agency properly has jurisdiction to interpret the regulations and adjudicate this matter
under the applicable statute, At this point SIRIUS XM cannot estimate the reasonably possible loss, or range of loss, which
eould be mourred if the plaintiffs were to prevail in the allegations, but STIRIUS XM believes they have substantial defenses
to the claims asserted and intend to defend these actions vigorously.

SIRIUS XM is also a defendant in three purported class action suits, which were commenced in February 2002,
January 2013 and January 2015, in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia, Newport News
Division, and the United States District Court for the Southern District of California that allege that SIRIUS XM, or certain
call center vendors acting on its behalf, made numerous calls which violate provisions of the Telephone Consumer
Protection Act of 1991 (the “TCPA™). The plantiifs in these actions allege, among other things, that SIRIUS XM called
mobile phones using an automatic telephone dialing syvstem without the consumer s prior consent or, allematively, after
the consumer revoked their prior consent and, in one of the actions, that SIRIUS XM violated the TCPA's call time
restrictions. The plaintiffs in these suits are seeking various forms of relief, including statutory damages of S300 for each
violation of the TCPA or, in the altemative, treble damages of up to £1,500 for each knowing and willful violation of the
TCPA, as well as payment of interest, attomeys” fees and costs, and certain injunctive relief prohibiting violations of the
TCPA in the future, SIRIUS XM believes it has substantial defenses to the claims asserted in these actions and intends to
defend them vigorously.

SIRIUS XM has notified certain of its call center vendors of these actions and requested that they defend and
indemnify it against these claims pursuant to the provisions of their existing or former agreements with SIRIUS XM,
SIRIUS XM believes it has valid contractual claims against certain call center vendors in connection with these claims and
intends to preserve and pursue its rights to recover from these entities,

With respecit (o the SIRIUS XM maiters described above, it was determined, based on current knowledge, that the
amaunt of loss or range of loss that & reasonably possible is not reasomably estimable. However, these matters are
inherently unpredictable and subject (o significant uncertainties, many of which are beyond SIRIUS XM's control. As
such, there can be no assurance that the final outcome of these matters will not materially and adversely affiect the business,
financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows,
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(iher

During the period from March 9, 19949 to August 10, 2001, Liberty Interactive (Liberty's former parent) was included
in the consolidated federal income tax retun of AT&T and was party to a tax sharing agreement with AT&T (the "AT&T
Tax Sharing Agreement”). While Liberly Interactive was a subsidiary of AT&T, Liberty [nteractive recorded its stand-alone
tax provision on a separate return basis. Under the ATET Tax Sharing Agreement, Liberty Interactive received a cash
paymeni from AT&T in periods when Liberty Interactive generated faxable losses and such taxable losses were utilized by
ATE&T to reduce its consolidated income tax liability. To the extent such losses were not wilized by AT&T, such amounts
were available to reduce federal taxable mcome generated by Liberly Interactive in future periods, similar (o a net
operating loss carryforward, and were accounted for as a defemred federal mcome tax benefit, Subsequent o Liberty
Interactive’s split off from AT&T, if adjustments were made to amounts previously paid under the AT&T Tax Sharing
Agreement, such adjustments are reflecied as adjusiments o additional paid-in capital. During the period from March 10,
1994 to December 31, 2002, Liberty Interactive received cash payments from ATET aggregating 3670 million as payment
for Liberty Interactive’s taxable losses that AT& T utilized to reduce s income tax lability. AT&T requested a refund from
Liberty of £70 million, plus accrued interest, relating to losses that it generated in 2002 and 2003 and was able 1o camry
back to offset taxable income previously offset by Liberty Interactive's losses, AT&T had previously asserted that Liberty
Interactive's losses caused AT&T to pay $70 million in altemative minimum fax ("AMT") that it would not have been
otherwise required to pay had Liberty Interactive's losses not been included in its returm.

Liberty indemnified Liberty Interactive for the contingent liabality and therefore the liability remained with Liberty
afier the Spli-OM. In prior years, a 372 million contingeni liability was recorded through additional paid in capital as
these liabilines were considered 1o have been equity transactions with Liberty Interactive’s former parent, Additionally,
interest was accrued on the liabilities and recorded through interest expense, until the amounts reached an amount the
Company considered to be the maximum exposure under the contingent liability, The total liability recorded, including
accrued interest was 5128 million. During the vear ended December 31, 2012, the Company determined that a requisite
amount of time had passed under the applicable state statuies and that the liability should be released. As $72 million was
onginally set up through additional paid in capital that amount of the Liability was relieved against additional paid in capatal
and the remainder was recorded through the Other, net line item in the Other income (expense ) section of the accompanying
consolidated Statement of Operations.

{18} Information About Liberty's Operating Segments

The Company, through iis ownership interesis in subsidianies and other companies, is primarnly engaged in the media,
communications and entertainment industries, The Company identifies its reporiable segments as (A) those consolidated
subsidiaries that represent 107G or more of its consolidated annual revenue, annual Adjusted OIBDA or total assets and
(B) those equity method affiliales whose share of earnings represent 10% or more of the Company’s annual pre-tax
earnings. The segment presentation for prior periods has been conformed to the current period segment presentation, as
discussed below.

The Company evaluates performance and makes decisions about allocating resources to its operating segmenis based
on financial measures such as revenue and Adjusied OIBDA. In addifion, the Company reviews nonfinancial measures
such as subscriber growth and penetration.

The Company defines Adjusted OIBDA as revenue less operating expenses, and selling, general and administrative
expenses (excluding stock-based compensation). The Company believes this measure 18 an important indicator of the
operational strength and performance of its businesses, including sach business's ability to service debt and fund capital
expenditures. In addition, this measure allows management to view operating results and perform analytical comparisons
and benchmarking between businesses and dentify stralegies to improve performance. This measure of performance
excludes depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation, separately reported litigation settlements and
resfructuring and impaiment charges that are included in the measurement of operating income pursuant to GAAP.
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Accordingly, Adjusted OIBDA should be considered in addition 1o, but not as a substitute for, operating income, net
income, cash flow provided by operating activities and other measures of financial performance prepared in accordance
with GAAP The Company generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were 1o third
parties, that is, al current prices,

The Company has identified SIRIUS XM as its reportable segment. SIRIUS XM is a consolidated subsidiary that
provides a subscripfion based satellite radio service. SIRIUS XM broadeasts music, sports, enferiainment, comedy, talk,
news, traffic and weather channels, as well as infotainment services, in the United States on a subscription fee basis through
its two proprietary satellite radio systems - the Sinus system and the XM system. Subscnbers can also receive music and
other channels, plus features such as SinusXM On Demand and My5XM, over the Intemet, including through applications
for mobile devices,

The Company’s reportable segments are strategic business units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because cach segment requires different technologies, distribution channels and marketing stralegies.
The accounting policies of the segments that are also consolidated subsidiaries are the same as those described in the
Company’s summary of significant policies.

Performance Measures

Years ended December 31,
oid i3 ]
Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted

Revenue OIBDA  Revenme OIRDA  Revenwe  OIBDA
amounts in millions

SIRIUS XM, .. o.ooeeeeen S 4,141 1,466 3,625 1,289 NA NA
Corporate and other, .. ... .. 3 {49 177 11 368 ®
Total ..o e £ 4450 1,417 4,002 1,322 68 H

Other Information

December 31, 2014 I her 31, 2013
Tustal Investmenis Capital Total Twvesiments Capital
assels in sffilistes ifures assels in afMiliates  expenditares
amnanis in millions
SIRIUSXM........ 528000 237 126 28,203 273 200
Corporate and other. . 3,198 6l4 68 6339 3,026 7
Total ..o, $31,207 851 194 34,542 3,200 207
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The following table provides a reconciliation of segment Adjusted OIBDA to earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes:

Years ended December 31,
2014 2013 L
Consolidated segment Adjusted OIBDA. ... ............. S 1417 1,322 #
Stock-based compensation. . ......o i iiii i iia i iia s (217) (193) (46
Depreciation and amorizalion. .. ... ....ooeiiiiia.s (359) {315) (42)
Inferesl SKPEREE. . . ..o iyttt e i e {255) (132) {7
Dividend and interest ineome. . ..o 27 48 76
Share of camings (losses) of affiliates, net . .............. (113) (32) 1,346
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on financial
INSIAAMENIS, Bl L. v vs s ii i s na s ianara s anans 38 295 230
(ains (losses) on transaciions, nel .. ............ 7,978 22
8T 11 ok 1] P {77 (115) 42
Eamings (loss) from continuing operations before income
L e N p Sre Tt A R B an N0 e o0 0B i SO RO oEEo o 5 46l BH56 1.629
(19 Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)
Ist 2nd Ird 4th
Quarier Duarier Ouarier Quarter

amwanis in millions,
excepl per share amounis

2004:
T T £ 1,011 1,160 1,184 1,095
Operating income (I058) .. .. ..ooiiiiia it iiiiaiiaianaiin 5 155 231 249 206
Net cumings L s 72 1046 87 130
Net eamings (loss) attributable to Libery stockholders. . . 8 2 S0 33 T3
Basic net eamings (loss) attributable to Liberty Media C ur;mratmn

stockholders per common share | . § 006 0.15 .10 0.21
Dhiluted net earnings (loss) aml.bulab]c lo Libcny Modm Lorpumllcm

stockholders percommon share ... ..o i ii i 5 00 014 010 0.21

1si Znd Ird d4ih
QJuarter usrier marter Qusricr
amounts in millions,
exce per share amounts

2013:
REVEIIE . ... e £ 789 1,078 1,110 1,025
Operating IMCOME . ... .ocvueniaanninsnsmansnsnssananssanas 3 151 226 248 189
Net eamings (I088). ... .ooouiiii i iiiii it £ 8104 152 116 619
Net camings (loss) atributable to Liberty stockholders | e & B059 93 76 552
Basic net camings (loss) attributable to Liberty sl.uq:khnldt,ﬁ ]lcr

COMMON SHATE . . ..t e i e $ 2157 0.26 0.21 1.62
Diluted net ecarnings (loss) attnbutable to Liberty stockholders per

COMMON ShATE ... .. ieeriaieiraaasssanansssssnasaranassnan £ 120 0.26 0.21 1.60

F-74



Corporate Data

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Jehn C.Malone
Chairman of the Board
Liberty Media Corporation

Robert R. Bennett
Managing Director
Hilltop Inwestments LLC

DanneF. Fisher
President
Fisheer Capital Partners, Ltd.

M. lan G. Gilchrist
Retired Investment Banker

Gregory B. Maffei
President and CEQ
Liberty Media Corporation

Evan D. Malone, Ph.D.
President
MextFab Studio, LLC

David E.Rapley
Retired President and CEQ
Rapley Consulting, Inc.

Larry E. Ramrell
Retired Executive Vice President
Tele-Communications, Inc.

Andrea L.Wong

President, International Production
Sony Pictures Television

President, International

Sony Pictures Entertainment

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Robert R. Bennett

Gregaory B. Maffei
lehn €. Malone

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
M. lan G. Gilehrist {Chairman)

Donne F.Fisher

David E. Rapley

Andrea L.Wong

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Danne F.Fisher (Chairman)
M. lan G. Gilchrist
Larry E. Rompell

NOMINATING & CORPORATE
GCOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
David E.Rapley (Chairman)

ML lan Q. Gilchrist

Larry E. Romeell

Andrea L. Wong

SENIOR OFFICERS
John C. Malone
Chairman of the Board

Gregory B. Maffei
President and CEQ

Richard M.Baer
Senior Vice President
and General Counsel

Mark D. Carleton
Senior Vice President

Albert E. Rosenthaler
Senior Vice President

ChristopherW. Shean
Senior Vice President
and CFO

ECRETARY

CORPORATE HEADMUARTERS

12300 Liberty Boulevard
Englewood, CO 80112
(720) 875-5400

STOCK INFORMATION

Series A Comman Stack (LMCA),
Series B Commen Stock (LMCE],
and Series C Common Stock (LMCK)
trade on the MASDAQ Globkal Select
Market.

CUSIP NUMBERS

LMCA-531229 102
LMCB - 531229201
LMCK - 531229 300

TRANSFER AGENT

Liberty Media Shareholder Services
cfo Computershare

PO, Box 43023

Providence, Rl 02940-3023

Phone: (781} 575-4593

Toll free: (866) 367-6355
www.computershare.com
Telecommunication Device far
the Deaf (TOD) (800) 952-9245

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Courtnee Ulrich

Joe Heelscher

Shane Kleinstein

Mindy Billinghurst
investar@libertymedia.com
(877) 7721518

ON THE INTERNET
Vigit Liberty Media's website at
wanlibertymedia.com

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Liberty Media Corporation financial
staternents are filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. Copies
of these financial statements can be
obtained from the Transfer Agent or
through Liberty Media’s website,

ANNUAL REPORT 2014



LIBERTY MEDIA CORPORATION

12300 Liberty Boulevard Englewood, Colorado 80112 T20-875-5404 www. libertymedia.com




